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PART |

Item 1. Business
General

We are an externally managed, closed-end, nonsifiezt management investment company that haseelé¢otbe regulated
as a business development company under the Ingesttompany Act of 1940, or the “1940 Act.” We damite and invest
primarily in private middle-market companies (tyadlg those with $5.0 million to $50.0 million of EBDA (earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortizationpugh first lien, second lien, unitranche and marmdebt financing, with
corresponding equity co-investments. Unitranche detypically structured as first lien loans withrtain risk characteristics of
mezzanine debt. Mezzanine debt includes seniorcunseé and subordinated loans.

Our investment activities are managed by our imaest adviser, Stellus Capital Management, LLC,Stelius Capital
Management,” an investment advisory firm led by &b0. Ladd and other senior investment professsoivde source
investments primarily through the extensive netwafrkelationships that the principals of Stellup@a Management have
developed with financial sponsor firms, financiadtitutions, middle-market companies, managemeamhseand other
professional intermediaries. The companies in whietinvest are typically highly leveraged, andmast cases, our
investments in such companies will not be rateddtjonal rating agencies. If such investments wated, we believe that they
would likely receive a rating below investment grdde., below BBB or Baa), which are often refdrte as “junk.”

Our investment objective is to maximize the to&lirn to our stockholders in the form of currertome and capital
appreciation by:

e accessing the extensive origination channelstthe¢ been developed and established by the Sdipsal
Management investment team that include long-stendilationships with private equity firms, commatbanks,
investment banks and other financial services firms

e investing in what we believe to be companies witbhng business fundamentals, generally withincoue middle-
market company focus;

« focusing on a variety of industry sectors, inghgdbusiness services, energy, general industrialernment services,
healthcare, software and specialty finance;

« focusing primarily on directly originated trantiaas;

< applying the disciplined underwriting standardattthe Stellus Capital Management investment teasrdeveloped
over their extensive investing careers; and

e capitalizing upon the experience and resourcéleoBtellus Capital Management investment teamdnitor our
investments.

In addition, we received exemptive relief from 8EC to co-invest with investment funds managedtkiius Capital
Management (other than the D. E. Shaw group fuaslglefined below) where doing so is consistent withinvestment
strategy as well as applicable law (including #rens and conditions of the exemptive order issyetth® SEC). Under the
terms of the relief permitting us to co-invest witther funds managed by Stellus Capital Manageragingquired majority” (as
defined in Section 57(0) of the 1940 Act) of ouldépendent directors must make certain conclusionsrinection with a co-
investment transaction, including (1) the termghefproposed transaction, including the considaemat be paid, are reasonable
and fair to us and our stockholders and do notlirevoverreaching of us or our stockholders on the pf any person
concerned and (2) the transaction is consistett thé interests of our stockholders and is consistith our investment
objectives and strategies. We intend to co-inv&siject to the conditions included in the exemptixder we received from the
SEC, with a private credit fund managed by Stellapital Management that has an investment strategys identical to our
investment strategy. We believe that such co-imiests may afford us additional investment oppotiesiand an ability to
achieve greater diversification.
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As a business development company, we are requgiresmply with regulatory requirements, includingitations on our
use of debt. We are permitted to, and expect ttimomto, finance our investments through borrowintgowever, as a BDC,
we are only generally allowed to borrow amountshgihat our asset coverage, as defined in the 1@40efjuals at least 200%
after such borrowing. The amount of leverage thatewploy will depend on our assessment of markaditions and other
factors at the time of any proposed borrowing, sagthe maturity, covenant package and rate steiofithe proposed
borrowings, our ability to raise funds through tbsuance of our securities and the risks of suctoluings within the context
of our investment outlook. Ultimately, we only intéto use leverage if the expected returns fromolpang to make
investments will exceed the cost of such borrowings

We have elected be treated for federal income taggses as a regulated investment company, or "Ri@ler Subchapter
M of the Internal Revenue Code, or the Code. A$@G, Re generally will not have to pay corporatedefederal income taxes
on any net ordinary income or capital gains thathséribute to our stockholders if we meet cersonrce-of-income,
distribution and asset diversification requirements

We have applied for a license to form a small bessninvestment company, or “SBIC,” subsidiary; hesvethe application
is subject to approval by the Small Business Adstiation, or “SBA.” We can make no assurancesttt@SBA will approve
our application, or of the timeframe in which woudgteive a license, should one ultimately be grhritbe SBIC subsidiary
would be allowed to issue SBA-guaranteed debentypds a maximum of $150 million under current SB&gulations,
subject to required capitalization of the SBIC sdiasy and other requirements. SBA guaranteed debengenerally have
longer maturities and lower interest rates thamiotbrms of debt that may be available to us, aadualieve therefore would
represent an attractive source of debt capital.

Our principal executive office is currently locataid4400 Post Oak Parkway, Suite 2200, Houston77027, and our
telephone number is (713) 292-5400. We maintairebsite on the Internet atvw.stelluscapital.com. Information contained
on our website is not incorporated by reference this annual report on Form 10-K and you shouldcoasider information
contained on our website to be part of this anne@brt on Form 10-K.

Portfolio Composition

As of December 31, 2013, we had $277.5 milliorfgatvalue) in portfolio investments under managam®ur portfolio
was comprised of 37 investments in 26 companieaf Acember 31, 2013, our portfolio included apgprately 17% of first
lien debt, 43% of second lien debt, 38% of mezzadiebt and 2% of equity investments at fair vahseof December 31,
2013, $114.3 million of our debt investments at fa@lue were at fixed interest rates, which repnese approximately 42% of
our total portfolio of debt investments at fairwal As of December 31, 2013, $158.8 million of debt investments at fair
value were at floating interest rates, which repnésd approximately 58% of our total portfolio @hd investments at fair
value. The weighted average yield on all of ourtdieestments as of December 31, 2013, was appairign11.4%, of which
approximately 10.8% was current cash interest.ififegmation set forth above regarding our investtmaortfolio does not
include approximately $10.0 million of United StafEreasury securities at fair value that we heldextember 31, 2013.

Our investments generally range in size from $3ionilto $30 million, and we may also selectivelyést in larger
positions, and we generally expect that the sizeuofpositions will increase in proportion to theesof our capital base.
Pending such investments, we may reduce our odisigiindebtedness or invest in cash, cash equitslenS. government
securities and other high-quality debt investmevrits a maturity of one year or less. In the futwwe, may adjust
opportunistically the percentage of our assets imel@rious types of loans, our principal loan smgrand the industries to
which we have greatest exposure, based on markditmms, the credit cycle, available financing ana desired risk/return
profile.

Stellus Capital Management

Stellus Capital Management manages our investnuginttaes and is responsible for analyzing investtn@pportunities,
conducting research and performing due diligencpaiantial investments, negotiating and structudnginvestments,
originating prospective investments and monitoong investments and portfolio companies on an argbasis. Stellus
Capital Management is an investment
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advisory firm led by the former head, Robert T. daand certain senior investment professionalf@firect capital business
of D. E. Shaw & Co., L.P. and its associated inwestt funds and affiliated entities (collectivelget‘D. E. Shaw group”),
which spun out of the D. E. Shaw group in Janu@¥22 The Stellus Capital Management investment tgasresponsible for
helping the D. E. Shaw group build its middle-martieect investment business until it spun outanuary 2012. The senior
investment professionals of Stellus Capital Managi@rhave an average of over 24 years of investimgporate finance,
restructuring, consulting and accounting experiearw have worked together at several companidsiding the D. E. Shaw
group. The Stellus Capital Management investmearhtbas a wide range of experience in middle-mankeststing, including
originating, structuring and managing loans and deburities through market cycles. The Stellusit@apanagement
investment team continues to provide investmentsady services to the D. E. Shaw group with respeein approximately
$430 million investment portfolio (as of Decembér 2013) in middle-market companies pursuant teadbsory
arrangements.

In addition to serving as our investment adviset e sub-advisor to the D. E. Shaw group as nalede, Stellus Capital
Management currently manages a private credit thatlhas an investment strategy that is ident@altr investment strategy
and energy private equity funds. We received exampéelief from the SEC to co-invest with investrhumds managed by
Stellus Capital Management (other than the D. BvwSfroup funds) where doing so is consistent withiovestment strategy
as well as applicable law (including the terms eodditions of the exemptive order issued by the SE& believe that such
co-investments may afford us additional investnamgortunities and an ability to achieve greateedification. We will not
co-invest with the energy private equity fundsttesenergy private equity funds focus on predontlgaquity-related
investments, and we focus on predominantly cred#ted investments.

Stellus Capital Management is headquartered in tdou3 exas, and also maintains offices in New Y®ity and
Washington, D.C. areas.

Market Opportunity

We originate and invest primarily in private midafarket companies through first lien, second ligrifranche and
mezzanine debt financing, often times with a cquoesling equity investment. We believe the environttfier investing in
middle-market companies is attractive for severabons, including:

Robust Demand for Debt Capital We believe that private equity firms have sigrafit committed but uncalled capital, a
large portion of which is still available for inesent in the United States. We expect the largeusanof uninvested capital
commitments will drive buyout activity over the neseveral years, which should, in turn, createilepdpportunities for us. In
addition to increased buyout activity, a high votuof senior secured and high yield debt was ortgohan the calendar years
2004 through 2007 and will come due in the neantand, accordingly, we believe that new financipgartunities will
increase as many companies seek to refinancenttebiedness.

Reduced Availability of Capital for Middle-Market @mpanies. We believe there are fewer providers of, and degstal
available for financing to middle-market compan&scompared to the time period prior to the reeenhomic downturn. We
believe that, as a result of that downturn, mangricing providers have chosen to focus on largeidicorporate loans and
managing capital markets transactions rather thagihg to middle-market businesses. In additionpeleeve recent regulatory
changes, including the adoption of the Dodd-Fraokakd the introduction of new international capdtiad liquidity
requirements under the Basel Il Accords, or “BdBglhave caused banks to curtail their lendiogniddle-market-companies.
As a result, we believe that less competition faiflilitate higher quality deal flow and allow foremter selectivity throughout
the investment process.

Attractive Deal Pricing and Structures.We believe that the pricing of middle-market diglvestments is higher, and the
terms of such investments are more conservativapaced to larger liquid, public debt financingseda the more limited
universe of lenders as well as the highly negdliature of these financings. These transactiarstte offer stronger covenant
packages, higher interest rates, lower leverageddeand better call protection compared to largenfcings. In addition,
middle-market loans typically offer other invespoptections such as default penalties, lien pratecthange of control
provisions and information rights for lenders.
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Specialized Lending RequirementsLending to middle-market companies requires iptdeliligence, credit expertise,
restructuring experience and active portfolio mamagnt. We believe that several factors render nuaBy financial institutions
ill-suited to lend to middle-market companies. Erample, based on the experience of Stellus Cagaabhgement's
investment team, lending to middle-market compaimdbe United States (a) is generally more labtegrisive than lending to
larger companies due to the smaller size of eagtsiment and the fragmented nature of the infoonaivailable with respect
to such companies, (b) requires specialized digedite and underwriting capabilities, and (c) miap aequire more extensive
ongoing monitoring by the lender. We believe thtatpugh Stellus Capital Management, we have thememce and expertise
to meet these specialized lending requirements.

Competitive Strengths
We believe that the following competitive strengivilt allow us to achieve positive returns for anvestors:

Experienced Investment TeamThrough our investment adviser, Stellus Capitah&gement, we have access to the
experience and expertise of the Stellus Capitaldgdament investment team, including its senior itnaeat professionals who
have an average of over 24 years of investing,aratp finance, restructuring, consulting and actingrexperience and have
worked together at several companies. The Stelfyst@ Management investment team has a wide rahgeperience in
middle-market investing, including originating,stturing and managing loans and debt securitieutfir market cycles. We
believe the members of Stellus Capital Managemamiasstment team are proven and experienced, witmsive capabilities
in leveraged credit investing, having participatethese markets for the predominant portion oirtbareers. We believe that
the experience and demonstrated ability of thdu&t&apital Management investment team to comptatesactions enhances
the quantity and quality of investment opportuitivailable to us.

Established, Rigorous Investment and Monitoring Riess. The Stellus Capital Management investment teasn ha
developed an extensive review and credit analysisgss. Each investment that is reviewed by St€lhgtal Management is
brought through a structured, multi-stage apprpvatess. In addition, Stellus Capital Managemekgdan active approach in
monitoring all investments, including reviews afdncial performance on at least a quarterly bagisegular discussions with
management. Stellus Capital Management’s investarethimonitoring process and the depth and expeiehits investment
team should allow it to conduct the type of duégdihce and monitoring that enables it to identif@d @valuate risks and
opportunities.

Demonstrated Ability to Structure Investments Criealy. Stellus Capital Management has the expertiseabitity to
structure investments across all levels of a coyigasapital structure. While at the D. E. Shaw grotine Stellus Capital
Management investment team invested approximatel Killion across the entire capital structurd @8 middle-market
companies. These investments included securedrss@tured debt and related equity securities. Fumibre, we believe that
current market conditions will allow us to strucattractively priced debt investments and mayalis to incorporate other
return-enhancing mechanisms such as commitmentdegal issue discounts, early redemption prensupayment-in-kind,
or “PIK,” interest or some form of equity securitie

Resources of Stellus Capital Management Platfornwe have access to the resources and capabhilft@®llus Capital
Management, which has 15 investment professiomalkiding Messrs. Ladd, Dean D’Angelo, Joshua TviBand Todd A.
Overbergen, who are supported by one managingtdiresix principals, two vice presidents and twalgists. These individuals
have developed long-term relationships with midudigrket companies, management teams, financial spgriending
institutions and deal intermediaries by providitexible financing throughout the capital structufée believe that these
relationships provide us with a competitive advgeta identifying investment opportunities in oarget market. We also
expect to benefit from Stellus Capital Managemedtis diligence, credit analysis, origination armh$action execution
experience and capabilities, including the suppovided with respect to those functions by Mr. Wddd Huskinson, who
serves as our chief financial officer and chief ptiamce officer, and his staff of five additionaldnand back-office
professionals.
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Investment Strategy

The Stellus Capital Management investment team @ysn opportunistic and flexible investing apptoammbined with
strong risk management processes, which we beldlgield a highly diversified portfolio across mpanies, industries, and
investment types. We seek direct origination oppaties of first lien, second lien, unitranche anezzanine debt financing,
often times with modest corresponding equity inwesits, in middle-market companies. We believe lthgtnesses in this size
range often have limited access to public finangiatkets, and will benefit from Stellus Capital Mgement’s reliable lending
partnership. Many financing providers have choseiotus on large corporate clients and managingataparkets transactions
rather than lending to middle-market businesseghBy many financial institutions and traditiotethders are faced with
constrained balance sheets and are requiring existrrowers to reduce leverage.

With an average of over 24 years of investing, orafe finance, restructuring, consulting and actiagrexperience, the
senior investment team of Stellus Capital Managéras demonstrated investment expertise througheutalance sheet and
in a variety of situations, including financial spgor buyouts, growth capital, debt refinancingsafee sheet recapitalizations,
rescue financings, distressed opportunities, agdisition financings. Our investment philosophy éragizes capital
preservation through superior credit selection msidmitigation. We expect our portfolio to providewnside protection
through conservative cash flow and asset coveremggnrements, priority in the capital structure &fdrmation requirements.
We also anticipate benefiting from equity partitipa through warrants and other equity instrumeirisctured as part of our
investments. This flexible approach enables Stéllagital Management to respond to market conditéarsoffer customized
lending solutions.

Stellus Capital Management invests across a widgeraf industries with deep expertise in selecticads including, but
not limited to, business services, energy, genedaistrial, government services, healthcare softveend specialty finance. Our
typical transactions include providing financing feveraged buyouts, acquisitions, recapitalizajagmowth opportunities,
rescue financings, distressed or turnaround sitnatand bridge loans. We seek to maintain a diedlgportfolio of
investments as a method to manage risk and cagitafi specific sector trends.

Our objective is to act as the lead or largeststein transactions, generally investing betwegmllion and $30 million
per transaction. We expect the average investnadirly period to be between two and four yearseddpmg upon portfolio
company objectives and conditions in the capitalkeizs.

We focus on middle-market companies with betweemifton and $50 million of EBITDA in a variety ahdustry sectors
with positive long-term dynamics and dependabld ¢asvs. We seek businesses with management teattmsl@monstrated
track records and economic incentives in strongchéses and sustainable competitive advantagesdejtendable and
predictable cash flows.

We employ leverage prudently and within the limias of the applicable laws and regulations forifiess development
companies. Any decision on our part to use levevatieglepend upon our assessment of the attractisgof available
investment opportunities in relation to the costd perceived risks of such leverage.

Transaction Sourcing

As access to investment opportunities is highlgtrehship-driven, the senior investment team ahéminvestment
professionals of Stellus Capital Management spendiderable time developing and maintaining costadth key deal
sources, including private equity firms, investmianks and senior lenders. The senior investmant tad other investment
professionals of Stellus Capital Management haem laetively investing in the middle-market for fhest decade and have
focused on extensive calling and marketing effaidsspeaking engagements, sponsorships, industriteand referrals to
broaden their relationship network. Existing relaships are constantly cultivated through traneaetiwork and other personal
contacts.
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In addition to financial sponsors, Stellus Caplianagement has developed a network of other deatss, including:
* management teams and entrepreneurs;

e portfolio companies of private equity firms;

< other investment firms that have similar strategp Stellus Capital Management and are seekkigvestors;

« placement agents and investment banks repregdintancial sponsors and issuers;

e corporate operating advisers and other finaragalsers; and

e consultants, attorneys and other service prosittemiddle-market companies and financial sponsors

We believe that Stellus Capital Management’s bioetavork of deal origination contacts will afford with a continuous
source of investment opportunities.

These origination relationships provide accesonbt to potential investment opportunities but alsanarket intelligence
on trends across the credit markets. Stellus dagaaagement has completed financing transactiatts more than 100 equity
sponsors and completed multiple financing traneastivith 19 of those equity sponsors.

We believe that, over the past decade, the semiestment team and other investment professiofi@setius Capital
Management have built a reputation as a thoughtfdldisciplined provider of capital to middle-markempanies and a
preferred financing source for private equity smprasand management teams. We believe these fapterStellus Capital
Management a competitive advantage in sourcingsinvent opportunities, which are put to use forlmemefit.

Investment Structuring

Stellus Capital Management believes that each tmar#t has unique characteristics that must be deresil, understood
and analyzed. Stellus Capital Management structovestment terms based on the business, the edite, the outlook for
the industry in which a potential portfolio compamperates, the competitive landscape, the produdsrvices which the
company sells and the management team and ownexfstiip company, among other factors. Stellus @apanagement
relies upon the analysis conducted and informagathered through the investment process to evalateppropriate structure
for our investments.

We invest primarily in the debt securities of miglgtharket companies. Our investments typically carhygh level of cash
pay interest and may incorporate other return-ecihngmrmechanisms such as commitment fees, origisaki discounts, early
redemption premiums, PIK interest and some forraqufity participation, including preferred stockmooon stock, warrants
and other forms of equity participation. We expéet a typical debt investment in which we invedt have a term at
origination of between five and seven years. Wesekm hold most of our investments to maturityegrayment, but we may
sell some of our investments earlier if a liquidityent occurs, such as a sale, recapitalizatiavoesening of the credit quality
of the portfolio company.

Stellus Capital Management negotiates covenartsrinection with debt investments that provide potide for us but
allow appropriate flexibility for the portfolio copany. Such covenants may include affirmative arghtiee covenants, default
penalties, lien protection and change of control/jmions. Stellus Capital Management requires cetmgmsive information
rights including access to management, financakstents and budgets and, in some cases, membensthip board of
directors or board of directors observation riglidditionally, Stellus Capital Management generadiguires financial
covenants and terms that restrict an issuer’s Lilsverage and limitations on asset sales andaapipenditures.
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Secured Debt

Secured debt, including first lien, second lien andranche financing, has liens on the assetsebbrrower that serve as
collateral in support of the repayment of such fan

First Lien Debt . First lien debt is structured with first-prigriiens on the assets of the borrower that seneobateral in
support of the repayment of such loans. Firstlii@ms may provide for moderate loan amortizatiothenearly years of the
loan, with the majority of the amortization defefnentil loan maturity.

Second Lien Debt . Second lien debt is structured as junior, setloans, with second priority liens on an issuassets.
These loans typically provide for moderate loan dization in the initial years of the loan, withetimajority of the amortization
deferred until loan maturity.

Unitranche Debt . Unitranche debt typically is structured as firsh loans with certain risk characteristics ofarenine
debt. Unitranche debt typically provides for modedaan amortization in the initial years of thétevith the majority of the
principal payment deferred until loan maturity. &runitranche debt generally allows the borrowen#édke a large lump sum
payment of principal at the end of the loan tetmayé is a risk of loss if the borrower is unabl@ay the lump sum or refinance
the amount owed at maturity. In some cases, webwithe sole lender, or we together with our af@ls will be the sole lender,
of unitranche debt, which can provide us with miafeience interacting with a borrower in terms aémitoring and, if
necessary, remediation in the event of underpedaoo®.

Mezzanine Debt

Mezzanine debt, including senior unsecured andrsirieited loans, is not be secured by any collaterdlis effectively
subordinated to the borrower’s secured indebtedftedhe extent of the collateral securing suctebiddness), including
pursuant to one or more intercreditor agreemeratiswie enter into with holders of a borrower’s seuwiebt.

Senior Unsecured Loans. Senior unsecured loans are structured as Ibahsank senior in right of payment to any of the
borrower’s unsecured indebtedness that is contfigtsubordinated to such loans. These loans giyne@ravide for fixed
interest rates and amortize evenly over the terthefoan. Senior unsecured loans are generaby@stile than subordinated
loans due to their priority over subordinated loans

Subordinated Loans . Subordinated loans are structured as unsecsmedydinated loans that provide for relatively high
fixed interest rates that provide us with signifitaurrent interest income. These loans typicadlyehinterest-only payments
(often representing a combination of cash pay dKdrRerest) in the early years, with amortizatioinprincipal deferred to
maturity. Subordinated loans generally allow thertwer to make a large lump sum payment of principashe end of the loan
term, and there is a risk of loss if the borrovgeumable to pay the lump sum or refinance the atmmuad at maturity.
Subordinated loans are generally more volatile #erured loans and senior unsecured loans andnwalyé a greater risk of
loss of principal as compared to other types afiso&ubordinated loans often include a PIK featwtaech effectively operates
as negative amortization of loan principal, therginyeasing credit risk exposure over the lifeta toan.

Equity Securities

In connection with some of our debt investmentsnves also invest in preferred or common stock oeivee nominally
priced warrants or options to buy an equity inteireshe portfolio company. As a result, as a pwitf company appreciates in
value, we may achieve additional investment reftam this equity interest. We may structure suchitygnvestments and
warrants to include provisions protecting our riggas a minority-interest holder, as well as a “putyright to sell such
securities back to the issuer, upon the occurrehspecified events. In many cases, we may aldoteegbtain registration
rights in connection with these equity interestliclt may include demand and “piggyback” registmatiights.

Investment Process

Through the resources of Stellus Capital Managememtave access to significant research resousgpsyienced
investment professionals, internal information syst and a credit analysis framework and investpetess. Stellus Capital
Management has designed a highly involved andantie investment
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management process, which is the core of its milind the basis for what we believe is a stroragktrecord of investment
returns. The investment process seeks to selegtlode investments which it believes have the rattsictive risk/reward
characteristics. The process involves several $eveteview and is coordinated in an effort to idfgrrisks in potential
investments. Stellus Capital Management appliesxitertise to screen our investment opportunitesescribed below. This
rigorous process, combined with our broad origoratiapabilities, has allowed the Stellus Capitahbtgement team to be
prudent in selecting opportunities in which to makeinvestment.

All potential investment opportunities undergo aitial informal review by Stellus Capital Managertisrinvestment
professionals. Each potential investment oppornjuthiat an investment professional determines mensstment consideration
is presented and evaluated at a weekly meetindniochaStellus Capital Management's investment pisitesals discuss the
merits and risks of a potential investment oppadtyuas well as the due diligence process and thengrand structure. If
Stellus Capital Management’s investment profesdsobelieve an investment opportunity merits furtteniew, the deal team
prepares and presents to the investment commadterifial review a prescreen memorandum that gahedescribes the
potential transaction and includes a descriptiothefrisks, due diligence process and proposedtateiand pricing for the
proposed investment opportunity.

Prior to making an investment, Stellus Capital Mgamaent conducts rigorous diligence on each invastimgportunity. In
connection with its due diligence on a potentigeistment opportunity, Stellus Capital Managemeilizes its internal
diligence resources which include its internallyeleped credit analytical framework, subscriptibmshird party research
resources, discussions with industry experts, matanformation sharing systems and the analyggalertise of its investment
professionals. Stellus Capital Management typicalyews the company’s historical financials; inayslrivers and outlook,
competitive threats, customer concentration, agsetrage, projected financials and credit metntanagement background
checks; and, if applicable, the track record amdlifing capabilities of the private equity sponsor.

Upon review of the prescreen memorandum, if thestment committee determines to proceed with thieweof an
investment opportunity, the deal team continuediligence and deal structuring plans, and prepamedit approval
memorandum for review by the investment committé® credit approval memorandum, updates the preseremorandum
with more deal specific detail, including an updat¢he diligence process and any changes in thetste and pricing of the
proposed investment. Upon unanimous approval byntrestment committee of the proposed investmepresented in the
credit approval memorandum, the Chief Investmeffic&f reviews any amendments before finalizing eloding negotiations
with the prospective portfolio company.

Investment Committee

Each new investment opportunity is unanimously apgd by Stellus Capital Management’s investmentrodtee. Follow-
on investments in existing portfolio companies iegjthe investment committee’s approval beyond tiihined when the
initial investment in the company was made. Thegpse of Stellus Capital Management'’s investmentroittee is to evaluate
and approve all of our investments, subject airaks to the oversight and approval of our boardigctors. The investment
committee process is intended to bring the divergperience and perspectives of the committee’s reesrtb the analysis and
consideration of each investment. The investmemirgittee consists of Messrs. Robert T. Ladd, Dealnigélo, Joshua T.
Davis, Todd A. Overbergen and W. Todd Huskinsore ifivestment committee serves to provide investro@nsistency and
adherence to our core investment philosophy anidipsl The investment committee also determinesagpiate investment
sizing and suggests ongoing monitoring requirements

In addition to reviewing investments, investmeninoaittee meetings serve as a forum to discuss orimits and outlooks.
Potential transactions and deal flow are reviewed cegular basis. Members of the investment teanercouraged to share
information and views on credits with the investinesmmittee early in their analysis. We believes fhiocess improves the
quality of the analysis and assists the deal te@mipers to work more efficiently.

Each transaction is presented to the investmentttige in a formal written report. All of our nemiestments require
unanimous approval by the investment committeehBEaember of the investment
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committee performs a similar role for other acceuntinaged by Stellus Capital Management. In ceirtatances, including in
connection with co-investments under our exemptinder, our board of directors may also determim¢ its approval is
required prior to the making of an investment.

Monitoring Investments

In most cases, we do not have board influence pegfolio companies. In some instances, Stellusit@allanagement’s
investment professionals may obtain board repraientor observation rights in conjunction with avestments. Stellus
Capital Management takes an active approach intoramg all investments, including reviews of fingalgerformance on at
least a quarterly basis and regular discussiorts wiénagement. The monitoring process begins witittsiring terms and
conditions, which require the timely delivery aratess to critical financial and business informata portfolio companies.

Specifically, Stellus Capital Management’s monitgrsystem consists of the following activities:

Regular Investment Committee Updates. Key portfolio company developments are discussath week as part of the
standard investment committee agenda.

Written Reports. The deal teams provide written updates as apipteffor key events that impact portfolio company
performance or valuation. In addition, deal teammviole written updates following each portfolio coamy board meeting.

Quarterly Full Portfolio Review . Our Chief Investment Officer and Chief Compliar@fficer perform a quarterly
comprehensive review of every portfolio companyhvtiie deal teams. This process includes a writtefopnance and
valuation update, and credit-specific discussiorach of our portfolio companies. In addition, puanst to our valuation policy,
quarterly valuations are reviewed by our indepehttard party valuation firm.

As part of the monitoring process, Stellus Captahagement also tracks developments in the braaderetplace. Stellus
Capital Management’s investment professionals laawealth of information on the competitive landsgapdustry trends,
relative valuation metrics, and analyses that Bssibie execution of our investment strategy.dditon, Stellus Capital
Management's extensive communications with brokedsdealers allows its investment professionatadaitor market and
industry trends that could affect portfolio invesimts. Stellus Capital Management may provide ongsirategic, financial and
operational guidance to some portfolio companiteeeidirectly or by recommending its investmentfessionals or other
experienced representatives to participate on dlaedbof directors. Stellus Capital Management nad@mstan extensive network
of strategic and operational advisers to call ufporindustry expertise or to supplement existinghagement teams.

Risk Ratings

In addition to various risk management and monigptbols, Stellus Capital Management uses an imagst rating system
to characterize and monitor the credit profile ardected level of returns on each investment irpoutfolio. This investment
rating system uses a five-level numeric scale.fohewing is a description of the conditions assted with each investment
rating:

Investment Rating 1 is used for investments thaparforming above expectations, and whose riskairefavorable
compared to the expected risk at the time of tigiral investment.

Investment Rating 2 is used for investments thatparforming within expectations and whose risksai@ neutral
compared to the expected risk at the time of tigiral investment. All new loans are initially rdt@.

Investment Rating 3 is used for investments thatparforming below expectations and that requivsal monitoring, but
where no loss of return or principal is expectenttfdlio companies with a rating of 3 may be outompliance with financial
covenants.

Investment Rating 4 is used for investments thafparforming substantially below expectations ahdse risks have
increased substantially since the original invesitm€&hese investments are often in work out. Innesits with a rating of 4 are
those for which some loss of contractual returnrimiboss of principal is expected.
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Investment Rating 5 is used for investments thafparforming substantially below expectations ahdse risks have
increased substantially since the original invesitme&hese investments are almost always in worklauestments with a rating
of 5 are those for which some loss of return amacjpal is expected.

In the event that Stellus Capital Management detersthat an investment is underperforming, onuirstances suggest
that the risk associated with a particular investhntas significantly increased, Stellus Capital Bgament will increase its
monitoring intensity and prepare regular updatestfe investment committee, summarizing currentajeg results and
material impending events and suggesting recomntead#ons. While the investment rating system iifiestthe relative risk
for each investment, the rating alone does noatiche scope and/or frequency of any monitoriag ithperformed. The
frequency of Stellus Capital Management’'s moniiaf an investment is determined by a number dbfa¢including, but not
limited to, the trends in the financial performaméé¢he portfolio company, the investment structamel the type of collateral
securing the investment.

Determination of Net Asset Value and Portfolio Valtion Process

The net asset value per share of our outstandimgstof common stock is determined quarterly bjdidig the value of
total assets minus liabilities by the total numbieshares outstanding.

In calculating the value of our total assets, itwent transactions will be recorded on the trade.dRealized gains or
losses will be computed using the specific idecaiion method. Investments for which market quotetiare readily available
are valued at such market quotations. Debt andyegecurities that are not publicly traded or whoseket price is not readily
available are valued at fair value as determinegbind faith by our board of directors based onirthbet of our management and
audit committee. In addition, our board of direstogtains one or more independent valuation fiomevtiew each quarter, the
valuation of each portfolio investment for whicimarket quotation is not available. We also haveptathbAccounting
Standards Board Accounting Standards Codificatie® Bair Value Measurements and Disclosures, or “ASC 820.” This
accounting statement requires us to assume thaotti®lio investment is assumed to be sold inghiecipal market to market
participants, or in the absence of a principal ragrthe most advantageous market, which may beathgtical market. Market
participants are defined as buyers and selledseiptincipal or most advantageous market thatratependent, knowledgeable,
and willing and able to transact. In accordancé WEC Topic 820, the market in which we can exittipdio investments with
the greatest volume and level activity is considerer principal market.

A readily available market value is not expecteeétist for most of the investments in our portfpbmd we value these
portfolio investments at fair value as determinedaod faith by our board of directors under odu&ton policy and process.
The types of factors that our board of directory tad&e into account in determining the fair vald®or investments generally
include, as appropriate, comparisons of finangtbs portfolio company to peer companies thapaltgic, the nature and
realizable value of any collateral, the portfolanmgpany’s ability to make payments and its earnamgs$ discounted cash flow,
the markets in which the portfolio company doesress, and other relevant factors.

When an external event such as a purchase tramsagtiblic offering or subsequent equity sale ogcwe consider the
pricing indicated by the external event to corraberour valuation. Due to the inherent uncertaifitgetermining the fair value
of investments that do not have a readily availaiéeket value, the fair value of the investmenty atiffer materially from the
values that would have been used had a readilyadaimarket value existed for such investmentsaddition, changes in the
market environment and other events that may omeeir the life of the investments may cause thegaidosses ultimately
realized on these investments to be different filoenvaluations currently assigned.
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With respect to investments for which market quotet are not readily available, our board of divestundertakes a multi-
step valuation process each quarter, as descrided/b

e our quarterly valuation process begins with gaatifolio company or investment being initially ueld by the
investment professionals of Stellus Capital Managrgmesponsible for the portfolio investment;

e preliminary valuation conclusions are then docoteé and discussed with our senior management tidsSCapital
Management;

e the audit committee of our board of directormtheviews these preliminary valuations;
e each quarter, the valuation for each portfolieestment is reviewed by an independent valuation; fand

« the board of directors then discusses the valoatand determines the fair value of each invedtimesur portfolio in
good faith, based on the input of Stellus Capitahslgement, the independent valuation firm and tld& aommittee.

In following these approaches, the types of factioas are taken into account in fair value pricing investments include,
as relevant, but are not limited to:

e available current market data, including relevaamd applicable market trading and transaction cvaipes;
e applicable market yields and multiples;

e security covenants;

« call protection provisions;

« information rights;

« the nature and realizable value of any collateral

» the portfolio company’s ability to make paymerits earnings and discounted cash flows and th&etaim which it
does business;

» comparisons of financial ratios of peer compatties are public;
e comparable merger and acquisition transactioms; a

« the principal market and enterprise values.

Realization of Investments

The potential exit scenarios of a portfolio compalgy an important role in evaluating investmertisiens. As such,
Stellus Capital Management formulates specific stxdtegies at the time of investment. Our del#rddtion provides for
increased potential exit opportunities, includiaythe sale of investments in the private markbjsthe refinancing of
investments held, often due to maturity or recéipdions, and (c) other liquidity events includitite sale or merger of the
portfolio company. Since we seek to maintain a deilgntation in our investments, we expect to nee@iterest income over
the course of the investment period, resulting sigaificant return on invested capital well in adee of final exit.

Managerial Assistance

As a business development company, we offer, arat provide upon request, managerial assistancertpartfolio
companies. This assistance could involve monitotfiregoperations of our portfolio companies, pgpating in board and
management meetings, consulting with and advisffigeos of portfolio companies and providing otleeganizational and
financial guidance. Stellus Capital Managementroaféiliate of Stellus Capital Management providesh managerial
assistance on our behalf to portfolio companiesrémguest this assistance. We may receive feahdse services and will
reimburse Stellus Capital Management or an aféil@ftStellus Capital Management for its allocatests in providing such
assistance, subject to the review by our boardrettbrs, including our independent directors.
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Competition

Our primary competitors in providing financing taddle-market companies include public and privateds, other business
development companies, commercial and investmarksh@ommercial financing companies and, to therexthey provide an
alternative form of financing, private equity anetge funds. Many of our competitors are substdnteiger and have
considerably greater financial, technical and mimkeresources than we do. For example, we beBewee competitors may
have access to funding sources that are not alatialvs. In addition, some of our competitors rhaye higher risk tolerances
or different risk assessments, which could alloanitto consider a wider variety of investments astdldish more relationships
than us. Furthermore, many of our competitors atesnbject to the regulatory restrictions that18d0 Act imposes on us as a
business development company or to the distribwtimh other requirements we must satisfy to mairgaimgualification as a
RIC.

We use the expertise of the investment professsaofabtellus Capital Management to which we havesg to assess
investment risks and determine appropriate priamgur investments in portfolio companies. In diddi, we believe that the
relationships of the investment professionals efl& Capital Management enable us to learn alamgt,compete effectively
for, financing opportunities with attractive midetlearket companies in the industries in which weegty

Employees

We do not have any direct employees, and our dalayoinvestment operations are managed by Stethpétal
Management. We have a chief executive officer,iaféhvestment officer, a chief financial officenéa chief compliance
officer. To the extent necessary, our board ofatimes may hire additional personnel going forw®dr officers are employees
of Stellus Capital Management and our allocableigorof the cost of our chief financial officer antief compliance officer
and their respective staffs is paid by us purstatite administration agreement that we have emitete with Stellus Capital
Management.

Management Agreements

Stellus Capital Management serves as our investatiser and is registered as an investment aduisder the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940, or the “Advisers Act.” In atldn, Stellus Capital Management serves as ourigidirator.

Investment Advisory Agreement

Subject to the overall supervision of our boardioéctors and in accordance with the 1940 Act,|@&eCapital Management
manages our day-to-day operations and providesimeant advisory services to us. Under the terntseofnvestment advisory
agreement, Stellus Capital Management:

« determines the composition of our portfolio, ttegure and timing of the changes to our portfolid the manner of
implementing such changes;

- identifies, evaluates and negotiates the streatfithe investments we make;
* executes, closes, services and monitors the imezds we make;

« determines the securities and other assets thauwchase, retain or sell;

« performs due diligence on prospective portfobmnpanies; and

»  provides us with such other investment advismegearch and related services as we may, fromttirtime, reasonably
require for the investment of our funds.

Pursuant to the investment advisory agreement,ave hgreed to pay Stellus Capital Management oféevestment
advisory and management services consisting ottwaponents — a base management fee and an incésgiv€he cost of
both the base management fee and the incentiverédeorne by our stockholders.

Management Fee

The base management fee is calculated at an arataalf 1.75% of our gross assets, including agaetshased with
borrowed funds or other forms of leverage (inclgdmeferred stock, public and private debt
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issuances, derivative instruments, repurchase iagmts and other similar instruments or arrangemenis excluding cash and
cash equivalents. For services rendered undenttestment advisory agreement, the base manageewist payable quarterly
in arrears. The base management fee is calculatstiton the average value of our gross assetsidaxglcash and cash
equivalents, at the end of the two most recentiymleted calendar quarters. Base management feagyqrartial month or
quarter are appropriately pro-rated.

Incentive Fee

We pay Stellus Capital Management an incentivelfezentive fees are calculated as below and paypldeterly in arrears.
The incentive fee, which provides Stellus Capita@mdgement with a share of the income that it géeefar us, has two
components, ordinary income and capital gainsutatied as follows:

The ordinary income component is calculated anébpl@yquarterly in arrears based on our pre-inceriée net investment
income for the immediately preceding calendar guasubject to a total return requirement, andrdafef non-cash amounts,
and is 20.0% of the amount, if any, by which ow-prcentive fee net investment income, expressedrate of return on the
value of our net assets attributable to our comstook, for the immediately preceding calendar grasgxceeds a 2.0% (which
is 8.0% annualized) hurdle rate and a “catch-up¥jsion measured as of the end of each calendatequelnder this
provision, in any calendar quarter, Stellus Capitahagement receives no incentive fee until oufipecentive fee net
investment income equals the hurdle rate of 2.0%btHen receives, as a “catch-up,” 100% of ouripcentive fee net
investment income with respect to that portionuadtspre-incentive fee net investment income, if,dhgt exceeds the hurdle
rate but is less than 2.5%.

The effect of the “catch-up” provision is that, fdi to the total return provision discussed beldywre-incentive fee net
investment income exceeds 2.5% in any calendateyu&tellus Capital Management receives 20.0%uopoe-incentive fee
net investment income as if a hurdle rate did ppiya For this purpose, pre-incentive fee net itwesst income means interest
income, dividend income and any other income (idiclg any other fees, such as commitment, originastructuring,
diligence, managerial assistance and consultingdeether fees that we receive from portfolio camips) accrued during the
calendar quarter, minus our operating expensethéoguarter (including the base management feenesqgs payable under the
administration agreement (as described below)aaydnterest expense and any distributions paidnynissued and
outstanding preferred stock, but excluding thenitive fee). Pre-incentive fee net investment incametudes, in the case of
investments with a deferred interest feature (aschriginal issue discount, debt instruments wit iBterest and zero coupon
securities), accrued income that we have not y&tived in cash. The foregoing incentive fee is aciijo a total return
requirement, which provides that no incentive feesispect of the Company’s pre-incentive fee natstment income will be
payable except to the extent 20.0% of the cumudaiit increase in net assets resulting from opermtver the then current
and 11 preceding quarters exceeds the cumulatbemfive fees accrued and/or paid for the 11 precegliarters. In other
words, any ordinary income incentive fee that iggtde in a calendar quarter will be limited to tbsser of (i) 20.0% of the
amount by which our pre-incentive fee net investniiecome for such calendar quarter exceeds the Ail¥tle, subject to the
“catch-up” provision, and (ii) (x) 20.0% of the culative net increase in net assets resulting frpsrations for the then current
and 11 preceding calendar quart@rsus (y) the cumulative incentive fees accrued and/dd fixr the 11 preceding calendar
quarters.

For the foregoing purpose, the “cumulative netéase in net assets resulting from operations"@sthount, if positive, of
the sum of pre-incentive fee net investment incamaljzed gains and losses and unrealized app@tiand depreciation of the
Company for the then current and 11 preceding dalequarters. In addition, the portion of such imbe fee that is
attributable to deferred interest (such as PIKrageor OID) will be paid to Stellus Capital Managent, without any interest
thereon, only if and to the extent we actually heeesuch interest in cash, and any accrual thexdbbe reversed if and to the
extent such interest is reversed in connection aiihwrite-off or similar treatment of the investmgiving rise to any deferred
interest accrual. Any reversal of such amounts doedluce net income for the quarter by the net annoiithe reversal (after
taking into account the reversal of incentive fpagable) and would result in a reduction and pdsslmination of the
incentive fees for such quarter. There is no acdatiom of amounts on the hurdle rate from quarneguarter, and accordingly
there is no clawback of amounts previously pagulisequent quarters are below the quarterly huadithere is no delay of
payment if
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prior quarters are below the quarterly hurdle.|8¢eCapital Management has agreed to permanentieveay interest accrued
on the portion of the incentive fee attributableléderred interest (such as PIK interest or OID).

Pre-incentive fee net investment income does rabade any realized capital gains, realized capisdes or unrealized
capital appreciation or depreciation. Because @fsthucture of the incentive fee, it is possiblgt the may pay an incentive fee
in a quarter where we incur a loss, subject taated return requirement. For example, if we reegive-incentive fee net
investment income in excess of the quarterly mimmwrdle rate, we will pay the applicable incentige even if we have
incurred a loss in that quarter due to realizedwréalized capital losses. Our net investmentrireased to calculate this
component of the incentive fee is also includethemamount of our gross assets used to calculate. 5% base management
fee. These calculations are appropriately prorfaedny period of less than three months and aeljLfsr any share issuances
or repurchases during the current quarter.

The following is a graphical representation of tiadculation of the income-related portion of thedntive fee:

Quarterly Incentive Fee Based on Net Investment Irame
Pre-Incentive Fee Net Investment Income
(expressed as a percentage of the value of net dsye

Pre-incentive Fee Net Investment Income
(expressed as a percentage of the value of net assets)

0 2.0% 2.5%

I | I
I I I

0% >+ 100% > 4 20% ———»

F 1

Percentage of Pre-incentive Fee Net Investment Income
Allocated to Income-Related Portion of Incentive Fee

Percentage of Pre-incentive Fee Net Investment Inoe
Allocated to Income-Related Portion of Incentive Fe

The capital gains component of the incentive fedeiermined and payable in arrears as of the epddaf calendar year (or
upon termination of the investment advisory agre@nes of the termination date), is equal to 20d#%ur cumulative
aggregate realized capital gains from inceptionubh the end of that calendar year, computed netiodggregate cumulative
realized capital losses and our aggregate cumalativealized capital depreciation through the drslioh year, less the
aggregate amount of any previously paid capitaigaicentive fees. If such amount is negative, ti®npapital gains incentive
fee will be payable for such year. Additionallyilie investment advisory agreement is terminatesf asdate that is not a
calendar year end, the termination date will batee as though it were a calendar year end forgsepof calculating and
paying the capital gains incentive fee.

Examples of Quarterly Incentive Fee Calculation
Example 1: Income Related Portion of Incentive Febefore Total Return Requirement Calculation:

Alternative 1
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividenagd, etc.) = 1.25%
Hurdle rate) = 2.0%

Management fe®) = 0.4375%

Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian, feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%
Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exgsghs 0.6125%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income does noeé@x hurdle rate, therefore there is no incomdeglamcentive fee.
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Alternative 2
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividengsd, etc.) = 2.9%

Hurdle rate) = 2.0%

Management fe® = 0.4375%

Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian,feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%
Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exgsns 2.2625%

Incentive fee = 100% x Pre-incentive fee net investt income (subject to “catch-ug®

= 100% % (2.2625% — 2.0%)
=0.2625%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income exceedbuhdle rate, but does not fully satisfy the “catgd? provision, therefore
the income related portion of the incentive fe@.2625%.

Alternative 3
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividengsd, etc.) = 3.5%
Hurdle rate® = 2.0%

Management fe®) = 0.4375%

Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian,feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%
Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exgsns 2.8625%

Incentive fee = 100% x Pre-incentive fee net investt income (subject to “catch-ug®
Incentive fee = 100% x “catch-up” + (20.0% x (Pnedntive Fee Net Investment Income — 2.5%))
“Catch-up” = 2.5% — 2.0%

=0.5%
Incentive fee = (100% x 0.5%) + (20.0% x (2.8625%:5%))

= 0.5% + (20.0% x 0.3625%)
= 0.5% + 0.0725%
= 0.5725%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income exceedbuhdle rate, and fully satisfies the “catch-updyision, therefore the
income related portion of the incentive fee is @%%.

(1) Represents 8.0% annualized hurdle rate.
(2) Represents 1.75% annualized base management fee

(3) The “catch-up” provision is intended to provi@itellus Capital Management with an incentive fe200% on all pre-
incentive fee net investment income as if a hurale did not apply when our net investment incoweeeds 2.5% in any
fiscal quarter.

Example 2: Income Portion of Incentive Fee with Tal Return Requirement Calculation:

Alternative 1:
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividenggd, etc.) = 3.5%
Hurdle rate) = 2.0%

Management fe®) = 0.4375%

Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian,feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%
Pre-incentive fee net investment income



(investment income — (management fee + other exg3®@rs2.8625%
Cumulative incentive compensation accrued and/mt foa preceding 11 calendar quarters = $9,000,000
20.0% of cumulative net increase in net assetdtiegudrom operations over current and precedingalendar quarters =

$8,000,000
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Although our pre-incentive fee net investment inecemceeds the hurdle rate of 2.0% (as shown inrdteve 3 of
Example 1 above), no incentive fee is payable bee20.0% of the cumulative net increase in netssssulting from
operations over the then current and 11 preceditendar quarters did not exceed the cumulativentgcand capital gains
incentive fees accrued and/or paid for the pregetiincalendar quarters.

Alternative 2:
Assumptions

Investment income (including interest, dividenggd, etc.) = 3.5%

Hurdle rate) = 2.0%

Management fe®) = 0.4375%

Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian,feaagent, etc.) = 0.2%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income

(investment income — (management fee + other exg3@rs2.8625%

Cumulative incentive compensation accrued and/mt foa preceding 11 calendar quarters = $9,0002m0% of
cumulative net increase in net assets resulting fsperations over current and preceding 11 calequaiarters =
$10,000,000

Because our pre-incentive fee net investment incexaeeds the hurdle rate of 2.0% and because 26%.@8é cumulative
net increase in net assets resulting from operaterr the then current and 11 preceding calendaters exceeds the
cumulative income and capital gains incentive e@sued and/or paid for the preceding 11 calendarters, an incentive fee
would be payable, as shown in Alternative 3 of Egkani above.

(1) Represents 8.0% annualized hurdle rate.

(2) Represents 1.75% annualized base management fee
Example 3: Capital Gains Portion of Incentive Fee(}:

Alternative 1:
Assumptions

Year 1: $2.0 million investment made in Compang‘lAvestment A”), and $3.0 million investment maideCompany B
(“Investment B”)

Year 2: Investment A sold for $5.0 million andrfaiarket value (“FMV”) of Investment B determinemtie $3.5 million
Year 3: FMV of Investment B determined to be $ai0ion

Year 4: Investment B sold for $3.25 million

The capital gains portion of the incentive fee vaoloé:

Year 1: None

Year 2: Capital gains incentive fee of $0.6 miilie- ($3.0 million realized capital gains on saldrofestment A multiplied
by 20.0%)

Year 3: None — $0.4 million (20.0% multiplied $3(0 million cumulative capital gains less $1.0limil cumulative
capital depreciation)) less $0.6 million (previaapital gains fee paid in Year 2)

Year 4. Capital gains incentive fee of $50,000 8-:65 million ($3.25 million cumulative realized ¢&gb gains multiplied
by 20.0%) less $0.6 million (capital gains inceatfee taken in Year 2)
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Alternative 2
Assumptions

Year 1: $2.0 million investment made in Compang‘lAvestment A”), $5.25 million investment made@ompany B
(“Investment B”) and $4.5 million investment madeGompany C (“Investment C”)

Year 2: Investment A sold for $4.5 million, FMV bfvestment B determined to be $4.75 million and&f Investment C
determined to be $4.5 million

Year 3: FMV of Investment B determined to be $®i0ion and Investment C sold for $5.5 million
Year 4: FMV of Investment B determined to be $®i0ion

Year 5: Investment B sold for $4.0 million

The capital gains incentive fee, if any, would be:

Year 1: None

Year 2: $0.4 million capital gains incentive fee28.0% multiplied by $2.0 million ($2.5 million rized capital gains on
Investment A less $0.5 million unrealized capitapreciation on Investment B)

Year 3: $0.25 million capital gains incentive f&e— $0.65 million (20.0% multiplied by $3.25 milligi$3.5 million
cumulative realized capital gains less $0.25 millimrealized capital depreciation)) less $0.4 onillcapital gains incentive
fee received in Year 2

Year 4: $0.05 million capital gains incentive fee$0.7 million ($3.50 million cumulative realizedmital gains multiplied
by 20.0%) less $0.65 million cumulative capitalrgaincentive fee paid in Year 2 and Year 3

Year 5: None — $0.45 million (20.0% multiplied $2.25 million (cumulative realized capital gains$&t5 million less
realized capital losses of $1.25 million)) less7$fillion cumulative capital gains incentive feedbm Year 2, Year 3 and
Year 4

* The hypothetical amounts of returns shown areetdas a percentage of our total net assets anthasso leverage. There is
no guarantee that positive returns will be realized actual returns may vary from those shownimakample.

(1) As illustrated in Year 3 of Alternative 1 aboveaiportfolio company were to be wound up on a d#ter than its fiscal ye
end of any year, it may have paid aggregate cagdiials incentive fees that are more than the anafusuch fees that wou
be payable if such portfolio company had been wayman its fiscal year end of such year.

(2) As noted above, it is possible that the cunivgaiggregate capital gains fee received by St€lmtal Management ($0.70
million) is effectively greater than $0.45 millig@0.0% of cumulative aggregate realized capitahigé&ss net realized
capital losses or net unrealized depreciation &gilion)).

Payment of Our Expenses

All investment professionals of Stellus Capital Mgament, when and to the extent engaged in prayidirestment
advisory and management services to us, and thpermsation and routine overhead expenses of persaitoEable to these
services to us, are provided and paid for by Stellapital Management and not by us. We bear araiht-of-pocket costs and
expenses of our operations and transactions, imgudithout limitation, those relating to:

e organization and offering;
» calculating our net asset value (including thet@nd expenses of any independent valuation firm);

« fees and expenses payable to third parties,dimduagents, consultants or other advisors, in todng financial and
legal affairs for us and in monitoring our investiteeand performing due diligence on our prospegiiwefolio
companies or otherwise relating to, or associati#fl, wvaluating and making investments;
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e interest payable on debt, if any, incurred t@fioe our investments and expenses related to wssfatportfolio
acquisition efforts;

« offerings of our common stock and other secusijtie
« base management and incentive fees;

< administration fees and expenses, if any, payatdier the administration agreement (includingallacable portion of
Stellus Capital Management’s overhead in perfornitgbligations under the administration agreemiestuding rent
and the allocable portion of the cost of our cleimipliance officer, chief financial officer and theespective staffs);

< transfer agent, dividend agent and custodial &&ekexpenses;

e U.S. federal and state registration fees;

« all costs of registration and listing our shasasany securities exchange;

» U.S. federal, state and local taxes;

e independent directors’ fees and expenses;

e costs of preparing and filing reports or othecwents required by the SEC or other regulators;
» costs of any reports, proxy statements or otbéces to stockholders, including printing costs;

« costs and fees associated with any fidelity baliréctors and officers/errors and omissions ligbihsurance, and any
other insurance premiums;

« direct costs and expenses of administration, inofugrinting, mailing, long distance telephone, yiog, secretarial an
other staff, independent auditors and outside legsts;

e proxy voting expenses; and
» all other expenses incurred by us or Stellus @hManagement in connection with administering lousiness.

Duration and Termination

Unless terminated earlier as described below,thestment advisory agreement will continue in dffeca period of two
years from its effective date. It will remain irfeft from year to year thereafter if approved atigisy our board of directors or
by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majpof our outstanding voting securities, and, imeitcase, if also approved by a
majority of our directors who are not “interestasgpns.” The investment advisory agreement autcalibtiterminates in the
event of its assignment, as defined in the 1940 \cStellus Capital Management and may be terméhhy either party
without penalty upon 60 days’ written notice to tither. The holders of a majority of our outstagdioting securities may also
terminate the investment advisory agreement witpeuaglty upon 60 days’ written notice. See “RisktBes — Risks Relating
to our Business and Structure — We are dependamt kgy personnel of Stellus Capital Managemenbtorfuture success. If
Stellus Capital Management were to lose any dfafspersonnel, our ability to achieve our investhahjective could be
significantly harmed.”

Indemnification

The investment advisory agreement provides thdiuSt€apital Management and its officers, manageagners, agents,
employees, controlling persons and members, andtdugy person or entity affiliated with it, are iletd to indemnification
from us for any damages, liabilities, costs ande@ses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees andiateoeasonably paid in
settlement) arising from the rendering of Stell@pital Management'’s services under the investmavrisary agreement or
otherwise as our investment adviser. Our obligatiioprovide indemnification under the investmentiadry agreement,
however, is limited by the 1940 Act and Investm@ompany Act Release No. 11330, which, among ottiegs, prohibit us
from indemnifying any director, officer or otherdinidual from any liability resulting directly frorthe willful misconduct, bad
faith, gross negligence in the performance of dutiereckless disregard of applicable obligatiams duties of the directors,
officers or other individuals and require us tofeeth reasonable and fair means for determiningtivr indemnification shall
be made.
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Board Approval of the Investment Advisory Agreement

Our board of directors approved the investmentsayiagreement at its first meeting, held on Sep&ra4, 2012. In its
consideration of the investment advisory agreentibatboard of directors focused on informationaitl ieceived relating to,
among other things: (a) the nature, quality aneémf the advisory and other services to be pexVit us by our investment
adviser; (b) comparative data with respect to amyigees or similar expenses paid by other busidesslopment companies
with similar investment objectives; (c) our projtttoperating expenses and expense ratio compabesittess development
companies with similar investment objectives; (ay axisting and potential sources of indirect ineaim our investment
adviser from its relationships with us and the padiflity of those relationships; (e) informatiobaut the services to be
performed and the personnel performing such sesvioeer the investment advisory agreement; (fptiganizational capability
and financial condition of our investment advisard (g) various other factors.

Based on the information reviewed and the discuassithe board of directors, including a majoritytted non-interested
directors, concluded that the investment managefaerntates and terms are reasonable in relatimeteervices to be provided
and approved the investment advisory agreemengiag in the best interests of our stockholders.

Administration Agreement

Under the administration agreement, Stellus Capihagement furnishes us with office facilities awglipment and will
provide us with clerical, bookkeeping, recordkegpamd other administrative services at such faslitStellus Capital
Management also performs, or oversees the perfamnafiy our required administrative services, whittude being
responsible for the financial and other records weaare required to maintain and preparing regortaur stockholders and
reports and other materials filed with the SECadidition, Stellus Capital Management assists wetarmining and publishing
our net asset value, oversees the preparationlargddf our tax returns and the printing and disg®ation of reports and other
materials to our stockholders, and generally ow=rske payment of our expenses and the perforntdragministrative and
professional services rendered to us by othersetltid administration agreement, Stellus Capitah&dd@ment also provides
managerial assistance on our behalf to those fiorfompanies that have accepted our offer to pi®euch assistance.

Payments under the administration agreement ar@ &man amount based upon our allocable portiohjést to the review
of our board of directors) of Stellus Capital Maeagent's overhead in performing its obligations urttie administration
agreement, including rent, the fees and expensesiased with performing compliance functions and alocable portion of
the cost of our chief financial officer and chieihepliance officer and their respective staffs. didition, if requested to provide
significant managerial assistance to our portfobmpanies, Stellus Capital Management will be paicdditional amount
based on the services provided, which shall noteck¢he amount we receive from such portfolio cangsafor providing this
assistance. The administration agreement has t&ad term of two years and may be renewed withaproval of our board of
directors. The administration agreement may beitextad by either party without penalty upon 60 dayéiten notice to the
other party. To the extent that Stellus Capital Mggment outsources any of its functions, we wil {e fees associated with
such functions on a direct basis without any in@etal profit to Stellus Capital Management. Stod#tbpapproval is not
required to amend the administration agreement.

Indemnification

The administration agreement provides that Stéllagital Management, its affiliates and their resipec officers,
managers, partners, agents, employees, contr@érgpns and members, and any other person or effiligted with it, are
entitled to indemnification from us for any damadesilities, costs and expenses (including reabtmattorneys’ fees and
amounts reasonably paid in settlement) arising fife@rendering of Stellus Capital Management'sises/under the
administration agreement or otherwise as our aditnator. Our obligation to provide indemnificationder the administration
agreement, however, is limited by the 1940 Act bavestment Company Act Release No. 11330, whiclorepother things,
prohibit us from indemnifying any director, officer other individual from any liability resultingrdctly from the willful
misconduct, bad faith, gross negligence in thegoerance of duties or reckless disregard of applécab
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obligations and duties of the directors, officer®ther individuals and require us to set forthsaaable and fair means for
determining whether indemnification shall be made.

License Agreement

We have entered into a license agreement withuSt€hpital Management under which Stellus Capitahdfement has
agreed to grant us a non-exclusive, royalty-freerise to use the name “Stellus Capital.” Underadbieement, we have a right
to use the “Stellus Capital” name for so long adl@& Capital Management or one of its affiliatesiains our investment
adviser. Other than with respect to this limitexbtise, we have no legal right to the “Stellus Gédipitame. This license
agreement will remain in effect for so long asitheestment advisory agreement with Stellus Capitahagement is in effect.

Exchange Act Reports

We maintain a website awww.stelluscapital.com. The information on our website is not incorporabgdeference in this
annual report on Form 10-K.

We make available on or through our website cergiorts and amendments to those reports thatevevith or furnish to
the SEC in accordance with the Securities Exch&ug®f 1934, or the “Exchange Act.” These include annual reports on
Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q andaurrent reports on Form 8-K. We make this infation available on our
website free of charge as soon as reasonably pabtdi after we electronically file the informatiauith, or furnish it to, the
SEC.

Regulation as a Business Development Company

We are a business development company under tH®A&4The 1940 Act contains prohibitions and rieftins relating to
transactions between business development compamietheir affiliates (including any investment esevs), principal
underwriters and affiliates of those affiliatesumderwriters and requires that a majority of thedtors be persons other than
“interested persons,” as that term is defined @1B40 Act. In addition, the 1940 Act provides tlhatmay not change the
nature of our business so as to cease to bevathidraw our election as, a business developmemipenmy unless approved by
a majority of our outstanding voting securities.

Qualifying Assets

Under the 1940 Act, a business development compeyynot acquire any asset other than assets ¢fpkdisted in
section 55(a) of the 1940 Act, which are refereedd “qualifying assets,” unless, at the time ttiuésition is made, qualifying
assets represent at least 70% of the companylisasgtats. The principal categories of qualifyingeds relevant to our business
are the following:

(1) Securities purchased in transactions not ifaghany public offering from the issuer of suchugd@tes, which issuer
(subject to certain limited exceptions) is an dligiportfolio company, or from any person who ishas been during the
preceding 13 months, an affiliated person of agitdi portfolio company, or from any other perssabject to such rul
as may be prescribed by the SEC. Under the 194@rdtthe rules thereunder, “eligible portfolio canjes”include (1
private domestic operating companies, (2) publimestic operating companies whose securities arksted on a
national securities exchange (e.g., the New YodclSExchange), and (3) public domestic operatingmanies having
market capitalization of less than $250 millionbRudomestic operating companies whose secuitiesjuoted on the
over-the-counter bulletin board or through Pink&ke_LC are not listed on a national securitieshexge and therefore
are eligible portfolio companies.

(2) Securities of any eligible portfolio companyiaiwe control.

(3) Securities purchased in a private transactiomfa U.S. issuer that is not an investment comparisom an affiliated
person of the issuer, or in transactions incidersiich a private transaction, if the issuer isankouptcy and subject to
reorganization or if the issuer, immediately ptiothe purchase of its securities, was unable tet it obligations as
they came due without material assistance other¢baventional lending or financing arrangements.
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(4) Securities of an eligible portfolio company gliased from any person in a private transactitimeife is no ready market
for such securities and we already own 60% of titstanding equity of the eligible portfolio company

(5) Securities received in exchange for or disteébuwon or with respect to securities described apor pursuant to the
exercise of warrants or rights relating to suchusées.

(6) Cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government sexsuat high-quality debt securities that maturerie year or less from the
date of investment.

The regulations defining qualifying assets may geaover time. We may adjust our investment focusessied to comply
with and/or take advantage of any regulatory, lagjiee, administrative or judicial actions in ttasea.

Managerial Assistance to Portfolio Companies

In order to count portfolio securities as qualifyiassets for the purpose of the 70% test, a bissadmselopment company
must either control the issuer of the securitiesast offer to make available to the issuer ofgbeurities significant
managerial assistance. However, when the busirs&dagbment company purchases securities in congmetith one or more
other persons acting together, one of the othesopesrin the group may make available such mandgesestance. Making
available managerial assistance means any arramgevhereby the business development company, thrisglirectors,
officers, employees or agents, offers to provieal, & accepted, does so provide, significant godgaand counsel concerning
the management, operations or business objecthepdalicies of a portfolio company. Stellus Capltnagement will
provide such managerial assistance on our behabtifolio companies that request this assistance.

Temporary Investments

Pending investment in other types of qualifyingetssas described above, our investments may tarisiash, cash
equivalents, U.S. government securities, repurchgesements and high-quality debt investmentsrttzdtire in one year or less
from the date of investment, which we refer to)exdively, as temporary investments, so that 70%usfassets are qualifying
assets or temporary investments. Typically, we iwvitest in U.S. Treasury bills or in repurchasesagnents, so long as the
agreements are fully collateralized by cash or sges issued by the U.S. government or its agenderepurchase agreement
involves the purchase by an investor, such asfusspecified security and the simultaneous agreeimethe seller to
repurchase it at an agreed-upon future date aagbate that is greater than the purchase pricanbgmount that reflects an
agreed-upon interest rate. There is no percentajgation on the proportion of our assets that tmaynvested in such
repurchase agreements. However, if more than 258ardfotal assets constitute repurchase agreerfrenisa single
counterparty, we would not meet the diversificatiests in order to qualify as a RIC for U.S. fedi@reome tax purposes.
Accordingly, we do not intend to enter into repusl agreements with a single counterparty in exafgbss limit. Stellus
Capital Management will monitor the creditworthiaes the counterparties with which we enter infpurehase agreement
transactions.

Senior Securities

We are permitted, under specified conditions, saésmultiple classes of indebtedness and one afatsck senior to our
common stock if our asset coverage, as definelderi940 Act, is at least equal to 200% immediaaéiigr each such issuance.
In addition, while any senior securities remainstariding, we may be prohibited from making anyritigtion to our
stockholders or repurchasing our securities oreshanless we meet the applicable asset coverage aathe time of the
distribution or repurchase. We may also borrow am®up to 5% of the value of our total assetsdamgorary or emergency
purposes without regard to asset coverage. Facaiskion of the risks associated with leverage;Ris& Factors — Risks
Relating to our Business and Structure — Regulatgowverning our operation as a business developooampany will affect
our ability to, and the way in which we, raise diddial capital. As a business development comptrgynecessity of raising
additional capital may expose us to risks, inclgdime typical risks associated with leverage.”
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Common Stock

We are not generally able to issue and sell oumsomstock at a price below net asset value peeskiée may, however,
sell our common stock at a price below the curnetitasset value of the common stock if our boamdirectors determines that
such sale is in our best interests and that omakholders, and our stockholders approve sueh Bahny such case, the price
at which our securities are to be issued and salgl mot be less than a price which, in the detertiinaf our board of
directors, closely approximates the market valuguch securities (less any distributing commissiodiscount). A proposal,
approved by our stockholders at our 2013 AnnualtMgef Stockholders, authorizes us to sell shapsal to up to 25% of our
outstanding common stock below the then currentisgét value per share of our common stock in ongoee offerings for the
period ending on the earlier of the one year ansany of the date of the Company’s 2013 Annual liteedf Stockholders and
the date of the Company’s 2014 Annual Meeting otitholders, which is expected to be held in Juriet2We would need
similar future approval from our stockholders tsuie shares below the then current net asset vatughpre any time after the
expiration of the current approval. We may also enaghts offerings to our stockholders at pricesghare less than the net
asset value per share, subject to applicable remeints of the 1940 Act. See “Risk Factors — Risédafihg to this Offering —
Stockholders may incur dilution if we sell shaoé®ur common stock in one or more offerings atgsibelow the then current
net asset value per share of our common stock.”

Codes of Ethics

We and Stellus Capital Management have each adaptede of ethics pursuant to Rule 17j-1 unded8#0 Act that
establishes procedures for personal investmentsestidcts certain personal securities transactiBassonnel subject to each
such code may invest in securities for their peabarvestment accounts, including securities thay tme purchased or held by
us, so long as such investments are made in acumgdeith such code’s requirements. You may readcapg our code of
ethics at the SEC’s Public Reference Room in Waghim D.C. You may obtain information on the operabf the Public
Reference Room by calling the SEC at (202) 551-809addition, each code of ethics is availableltnEDGAR Database on
the SEC’s website atww.sec.gov. You may also obtain copies of each code of etlaiiter paying a duplicating fee, by
electronic request at the following e-mail addrgstlicinfo@sec.gov , or by writing the SEC’s Public Reference Sectiben) F
Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549.

Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures

We have delegated our proxy voting responsibiitstellus Capital Management. The proxy voting@esi and procedures
of Stellus Capital Management are set out belove. diiidelines will be reviewed periodically by StsliCapital Management
and our directors who are not “interested persamsgl, accordingly, are subject to change.

Introduction. As an investment adviser registered under théskds Act, Stellus Capital Management has a fiahycduty
to act solely in our best interests. As part o thity, Stellus Capital Management recognizesitimatist vote our securities in a
timely manner free of conflicts of interest andur best interests.

Stellus Capital Management'’s policies and proceslfoevoting proxies for its investment advisorienlts are intended to
comply with Section 206 of, and Rule 206(4)-6 undee Advisers Act.

Proxy Policies. Stellus Capital Management votes proxies rajatinour portfolio securities in what it perceitese the
best interest of our stockholders. Stellus Captahagement reviews on a case-by-case basis egebsaicsubmitted to a
stockholder vote to determine its effect on thefpbo securities we hold. In most cases Stellupi@hManagement will vote
in favor of proposals that Stellus Capital Managenielieves are likely to increase the value ofgbgfolio securities we hold.
Although Stellus Capital Management will generaibte against proposals that may have a negatieetash our portfolio
securities, Stellus Capital Management may votetdioh a proposal if there exist compelling longrteeasons to do so.

Stellus Capital Management has established a protigg committee and adopted proxy voting guidedinad related
procedures. The proxy voting committee establigiegy voting guidelines and procedures, overseedntiernal proxy voting
process, and reviews proxy voting issues. To ernbateStellus
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Capital Management'’s vote is not the product obiflict of interest, Stellus Capital Managementuiegs that (1) anyone
involved in the decision-making process discloseunChief Compliance Officer any potential coriflicat he or she is aware
of and any contact that he or she has had withraayested party regarding a proxy vote; and (2plegees involved in the
decision-making process or vote administrationpaohibited from revealing how Stellus Capital Maeagnt intends to vote
on a proposal in order to reduce any attemptedeénfte from interested parties. Where conflicttériest may be present,
Stellus Capital Management will disclose such dot#lto us, including our independent directors aray request guidance
from us on how to vote such proxies.

Proxy Voting Records. You may obtain information about how Stellus TagManagement voted proxies by making a
written request for proxy voting information toe8tis Capital Investment Corporation, Attentiorvéstor Relations, 4400 Post
Oak Parkway, Suite 500, Houston, TX 77027, or Bingaus collect at (713) 292-5414. The SEC alsonta@ns a website at
www.sec.gov that contains this information.

Privacy Principles

We are committed to maintaining the privacy of stackholders and to safeguarding their nonpublisgreal information.
The following information is provided to help yoanderstand what personal information we collect, aprotect that
information and why, in certain cases, we may sirdoemation with select other parties.

Generally, we do not receive any nonpublic persarfalmation relating to our stockholders, althowgtain nonpublic
personal information of our stockholders may becawailable to us. We do not disclose any nonpyi#isonal information
about our stockholders or former stockholders tmar, except as permitted by law or as is necessamder to service
stockholder accounts (for example, to a transfenagr third-party administrator).

We restrict access to nonpublic personal infornmagibout our stockholders to employees of Stellyst@aManagement
and its affiliates with a legitimate business nf@dhe information. We intend to maintain physjaectronic and procedural
safeguards designed to protect the nonpublic patsaformation of our stockholders.

Other

We are required to provide and maintain a boncegdiy a reputable fidelity insurance company tdqurous against
larceny and embezzlement. Furthermore, as a bgsilee®lopment company, we are prohibited from ptotg any director or
officer against any liability to us or our stockélets arising from willful misfeasance, bad faitpgs negligence or reckless
disregard of the duties involved in the conducswth person’s office.

We and Stellus Capital Management are each reqtgradopt and implement written policies and praced reasonably
designed to prevent violation of relevant fedeealwsities laws, review these policies and proceslarmually for their
adequacy and the effectiveness of their implemiemtiaaind designate a chief compliance officer todsponsible for
administering the policies and procedures.

We may also be prohibited under the 1940 Act fraravkingly participating in certain transactions withr affiliates
without the prior approval of our board of directevho are not interested persons and, in some,qas@sapproval by the
SEC. The SEC has interpreted the business develdpompany prohibition on transactions with affiéis to prohibit all “joint
transactions” between entities that share a comma@stment adviser. The staff of the SEC has gcanteaction relief
permitting purchases of a single class of privapdficed securities provided that the adviser natggtino term other than price
and certain other conditions are met. In additwa received exemptive relief from the SEC to ceestwvith investment funds
managed by Stellus Capital Management (other thabt E. Shaw group funds, as defined below) wheneg so is consistent
with our investment strategy as well as applicddnle (including the terms and conditions of the eptiwe order issued by the
SEC). Under the terms of the relief permitting ago-invest with other funds managed by Stellusit@@aplanagement, a
“required majority” (as defined in Section 57(o)tbé 1940 Act) of our independent directors muskenzertain conclusions in
connection with a co-investment transaction, intlgd1) the terms of the proposed transactionpiticlg the consideration to
be paid, are reasonable and fair to us and ouklsddders and do not involve overreaching of uswrsiockholders on the part
of any
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person concerned and (2) the transaction is cemsigtith the interests of our stockholders andisscstent with our investment
objectives and strategies. We intend to co-invasiject to the conditions included in the exemptixder we received from the
SEC, with a private credit fund managed by Stellapital Management that has an investment strategyis identical to our
investment strategy. We believe that such co-ireests may afford us additional investment oppotiesiand an ability to
achieve greater diversification.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 imposes a wide tyagkregulatory requirements on publicly held canjges and their
insiders. Many of these requirements affect us.example:

« pursuant to Rule 13a-14 under the Exchange Artpdncipal executive officer and principal finaalcofficer must
certify the accuracy of the financial statementstaimed in our periodic reports;

e pursuant to Item 307 under RegulatioiK Seur periodic reports must disclose our conclasiabout the effectiveness
our disclosure controls and procedures;

e pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Actn@anagement must prepare an annual report reggitdi
assessment of our internal control over finan@gbrting; and

e pursuant to Iltem 308 of Regulation S-K and Rule-15 under the Exchange Act, our periodic reporist disclose
whether there were significant changes in our mgtkcontrols over financial reporting or in othactors that could
significantly affect these controls subsequenhtodate of their evaluation, including any corneetactions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses

Taxation as a Regulated Investment Company

As a business development company, we have electagltreated as a RIC under Subchapter M of tlieChs a RIC, we
generally do not have to pay corporate-level UeBiefal income taxes on any income that we dis&ibubur stockholders as
dividends. To maintain our qualification as a RK& must, among other things, meet certain sourdeeaime and asset
diversification requirements (as described beldwaddition, we must distribute to our stockholdéos each taxable year, at
least 90% of our “investment company taxable incGmaich is generally our ordinary income plus #weess of our realized
net short-term capital gains over our realizedorg-term capital losses (the “Annual DistributiBequirement”).

For any taxable year in which we:
e qualify as a RIC; and
e satisfy the Annual Distribution Requirement;

we will not be subject to U.S. federal income taxtloe portion of our income we distribute (or aeeghed to distribute) to
stockholders. We will be subject to U.S. federabime tax at the regular corporate rates on anyneoor capital gains not
distributed (or deemed distributed) to our stockikos.

We will be subject to a 4% nondeductible U.S. fatlekcise tax on our undistributed income unlesslistibute in a
timely manner an amount at least equal to the suf@)®8% of our net ordinary income for each cdbamyear, (b) 98.2% of
our capital gain net income for the one-year peending October 31 in that calendar year and (g)imecome realized, but not
distributed, in the preceding year and on whichpaiel no U.S. federal income tax, or the Excise Aagidance Requirement.
For this purpose, however, any net ordinary incomeapital gain net income retained by us thatlkgect to corporate income
tax for the tax year ending in that calendar yeilrb@ considered to have been distributed by et (or earlier if estimated
taxes are paid). We currently intend to make sigfficdistributions each taxable year to satisfyEReise Tax Avoidance
Requirement.
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In order to qualify as a RIC for U.S. federal in@tax purposes, we must, among other things:
e continue to qualify as a business developmentpamy under the 1940 Act at all times during eadr;ye

< derive in each taxable year at least 90% of sasgincome from dividends, interest, payments vatpect to certain
securities loans, gains from the sale of stocktieerosecurities, or other income derived with respe our business of
investing in such stock or securities, and netimealerived from interests in “qualified publiclated
partnerships” (which generally are partnerships éin@ traded on an established securities markeadable on a
secondary market, other than partnerships thatel®0% of their income from interest, dividends aftter permitted
RIC income), or the 90% Income Test; and

« diversify our holdings so that at the end of equhbrter of the taxable year:

e atleast 50% of the value of our assets consfatash, cash equivalents, U.S. government seesirisiecurities of
other RICs, and other securities if such other ggées of any one issuer do not represent more Harof the value
of our assets or more than 10% of the outstandiigy securities of the issuer; and

* no more than 25% of the value of our assetsvissted in the securities, other than U.S. governsecurities or
securities of other RICs, of one issuer or of twanore issuers that are controlled, as determimelgiuapplicable
tax rules, by us and that are engaged in the sasiendar or related trades or businesses or irsdwirities of one
or more qualified publicly traded partnershipstta Diversification Tests.

We may invest in partnerships, including qualifipdlicly traded partnerships, which may resultum being subject to
state, local or foreign income, franchise or witldag liabilities.

We may be required to recognize taxable incoméraumstances in which we do not receive cash. kamgle, if we hold
debt obligations that are treated under applicebleules as having original issue discount (suectebt instruments with PIK
interest or, in certain cases, with increasingregerates or issued with warrants), we must ireindncome each year a portion
of the original issue discount that accrues overlife of the obligation, regardless of whethercespresenting such income is
received by us in the same taxable year. Becauserainal issue discount accrued will be include@ur investment company
taxable income for the year of accrual, we mayeugiired to make a distribution to our stockholdersrder to satisfy the
Annual Distribution Requirement, even though wd wit have received any corresponding cash amd&uné are not able to
obtain sufficient cash from other sources to satisé Annual Distribution Requirement, we may failmaintain our
qualification as a RIC and become subject to caiaslevel U.S. federal income taxes on all of @xable income without the
benefit of the dividends-paid deduction.

Although we do not presently expect to do so, veeaarthorized to borrow funds and to sell assetsder to satisfy (i) the
Annual Distribution Requirements and to otherwimi@ate our liability for U.S. federal income apsdcise taxes and/or (ii)
the Diversification Tests. However, under the 1840 we are not permitted in certain circumstartcasake distributions to
our stockholders while our debt obligations andzotenior securities are outstanding unless cetaaset coverage” tests are
met. See “Regulation as a Business Development @oynp Senior Securities.” Moreover, our abilitydispose of assets to
meet the Annual Distribution Requirement, the Exdisx Avoidance Requirement or the Diversificafi@st may be limited
by (a) the illiquid nature of our portfolio and/r) other requirements relating to our qualificatias a RIC, including the
Diversification Tests. If we dispose of assetsrithen to meet the Annual Distribution Requiremelng Excise Tax Avoidance
Requirement or the Diversification Tests, we makensuch dispositions at times that, from an invesitnstandpoint, are not
advantageous.

In addition, if we form and operate a SBIC subsigiave will be partially dependent on the SBIC ddlasy for cash
distributions to enable us to meet the RIC distidourequirements. The SBIC subsidiary may be Bahiby the Small Business
Investment Act of 1958, and SBA regulations gouwagr6BICs, from making certain distributions to bhattmay be necessary to
maintain our status as a RIC. We may have to

25




TABLE OF CONTENTS

request a waiver of the SBA'’s restrictions for 8#IC subsidiary to make certain distributions tanten our RIC status. We
cannot assure you that the SBA will grant such esilf the SBIC subsidiary is unable to obtain aweg compliance with the
SBA regulations may cause us to fail to maintaingualification as a RIC, which would result inhescoming subject to
corporate-level federal income tax. Certain of imwestment practices may be subject to speciacantplex U.S. federal
income tax provisions that may, among other thifgytreat dividends that would otherwise constiyalified dividend
income as non-qualified dividend income, (b) tidimidends that would otherwise be eligible for twgporate dividends
received deduction as ineligible for such treatm@)tdisallow, suspend or otherwise limit the aiémce of certain losses or
deductions, (d) convert lower-taxed long term amjtin into higher-taxed short-term capital gaialinary income, (e)
convert an ordinary loss or a deduction into atehjss (the deductibility of which is more limitg (f) cause us to recognize
income or gain without a corresponding receiptast; (g) adversely affect the time as to when ahase or sale of stock or
securities is deemed to occur, (h) adversely giecharacterization of certain complex finanaiahsactions and (i) produce
income that will not be qualifying income for pugas of the 90% Income Test. We intend to monitorti@nsactions and may
make certain tax elections to mitigate the effé¢hese provisions and prevent our disqualificatisra RIC.

Gain or loss realized by us from warrants acquingds as well as any loss attributable to the lapseich warrants
generally will be treated as capital gain or I&sch capital gain or loss generally will be longrter short term, depending on
how long we held a particular warrant. Some ofittteme and fees that we may recognize will nosfathe 90% Income
Test. In order to ensure that such income anddeewt disqualify us as a RIC for a failure to Sigtthe 90% Income Test, we
may hold assets that generate such income anddgreervices that generate such fees indirectlytfirone or more entities
treated as corporations for U.S. federal incomeptaposes. Such corporations will be required 1ops. federal corporate
income tax on their earnings, which ultimately wiéuce our return on such income and fees.

If we are unable to qualify for treatment as a Ri@x if certain remedial provisions are not avddatve would be subject
to tax on all of our taxable income at regular cogpe rates. We would not be able to deduct digiobs to stockholders, nor
would they be required to be made. Distributions|uding distributions of net long-term capital maivould generally be
taxable to our stockholders as ordinary dividermbime to the extent of our current and accumuladediegs and profits.
Subject to certain limitations under the Code, ocaife stockholders would be eligible to claim adtwnds received deduction
with respect to such distributions, non-corporatelholders would be able to treat such dividermbime as “qualified dividend
income,” which is subject to reduced rates of WeBeral income tax. Distributions in excess of cuirent and accumulated
earnings and profits would be treated first astarneof capital to the extent of the stockholdé&s basis, and any remaining
distributions would be treated as a capital gdiwd fail to qualify as a RIC for a period greatiean two taxable years, to
requalify as a RIC in a subsequent year we maybjest to regular corporate tax on any net builg@mns with respect to
certain of our assetd.€. , the excess of the aggregate gains, includingsitehincome, over aggregate losses that would have
been realized with respect to such assets if webkad liquidated) that we elect to recognize omaéfication or when
recognized over the next ten years (or shorteriggige period). The remainder of this discussiduages that we will maintain
our qualification as a RIC and will satisfy the Arah Distribution Requirement.

Our Status as an Emerging Growth Company

We are an “emerging growth company,” as definetth@nJumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 201thedOBS Act. As
an emerging growth company, we may take advanthgpezified reduced disclosure and other requirésidsat are otherwise
applicable generally to public companies. Thesedasquirements include an exemption from certaiaricial disclosure and
governance requirements and relaxed restrictiorth@sale of securities. The JOBS Act providesestdisclosure provisions
for emerging growth companies, including, amongpthings, removing the requirement that emergitogvth companies
comply with Sarbanes-Oxley Act Section 404(b) aardititestation of internal control over financiaporting. Section 107(b) of
the JOBS Act also permits an emerging growth congsaio elect an extended transition period for dgimg with new or
revised accounting standards that have differdatt¥e dates for public and private companieslsuith time as these new or
revised standards are made applicable to all grivampanies. We have elected to take advantade @xtended transition
period for complying with new or revised accounting
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standards, which may make it more difficult foréstwors and securities analysts to evaluate us sincfinancial statements
may not be comparable to companies that comply mitilic company effective dates. We will remaineamerging growth
company until the earlier of (a) the last day @ fiscal year (i) following the fifth anniversary the completion of our initial
public offering (IPO), (ii) in which we have totahnual gross revenue of at least $1.0 billionjigrif which we are deemed to
be a large accelerated filer, which means the mardae of our common stock that is held by norliafes exceeds $700
million as of the prior June 30, and (b) the date on which we have issued more$tz0 billion in non-convertible debt during
the prior three-year period.

The New York Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Reilations

The New York Stock Exchange has adopted corporatergance regulations that listed companies muspbowith. We
are in compliance with such corporate governarstimgj standards applicable to business developomenpanies.
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Item 1A.Risk Factors

Investing in our securities involves a number of significant risks. Before you invest in our securities, you should be aware of
various risks, including those described below. You should carefully consider these risk factors, together with all of the other
information included in this annual report on Form 10-K, before you decide whether to make an investment in our common
stock. The risks set out below are not the only risks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or not
presently deemed material by us may also impair our operations and performance. If any of the following events occur, our
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected. In such case, our
net asset value and the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Relating to our Business and Structure

We have a limited operating history as a businesselopment company and Stellus Capital Managemeas imited
experience managing a business development compangt,we may not be able to operate our businesssssfully or
generate sufficient revenue to make or sustain disftions to our stockholders.

We were formed in May 2012 and prior to the compfebf our initial public offering in November 20,1&e did not
operate as a business development company andhadailified to be treated as a RIC, and Stellysit@hManagement had
never managed any business development compargy/résalt of our limited operating history, we héingdited operating
results under these regulatory frameworks thatdesmonstrate to you either their effect on our bessrnor our ability to manage
our business under these frameworks. We are subjéioe business risks and uncertainties assoaorgtadecently formed
businesses, including the risk that we will notiaeh our investment objective and that the valugoofr investment could
decline substantially.

The 1940 Act and the Code impose numerous contgrainthe operations of business development coiepand RICs
that do not apply to other investment vehicles ngadaby Stellus Capital Management. Business dexwsdopcompanies are
required, for example, to invest at least 70% efrttotal assets primarily in securities of U.Svate or thinly traded public
companies, cash, cash equivalents, U.S. governseentities and other high-quality debt instrumeinés mature in one year or
less from the date of investment. Moreover, quaifion for taxation as a RIC requires satisfactibeource-of-income, asset
diversification and distribution requirements. Wel &tellus Capital Management have limited expegesperating or advising
under these constraints, which may hinder ourtglii take advantage of attractive investment oppities and to achieve our
investment objective.

We are dependent upon key personnel of Stellus @Gpilanagement for our future success. If Stellusafital Management
were to lose any of its key personnel, our abitibyachieve our investment objective could be sigriftly harmed.

We depend on the diligence, skill and network dfibess contacts of the investment professionaBteifus Capital
Management to achieve our investment objectivdluSt€apital Management's team of investment pisitesals evaluates,
negotiates, structures, closes and monitors o@sinvents in accordance with the terms of our imvest advisory agreement.
We can offer no assurance, however, that Stellpst&adanagement’s investment professionals wilttdoue to provide
investment advice to us.

Stellus Capital Management'’s investment commitidech provides oversight over our investment atitigi is provided to
us by Stellus Capital Management under the investiaevisory agreement. Stellus Capital Managemémiastment
committee consists of three members of our boadirettors, Messrs. Ladd, D’Angelo and Davis, amd investment
professionals of Stellus Capital Management, Me&vsrbergen and Huskinson. The loss of any mewib&tellus Capital
Management’s investment committee would limit obiliy to achieve our investment objective and @perour business. This
could have a material adverse effect on our firelramndition, results of operations and cash flows.
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Our business model depends to a significant extepon strong referral relationships. Any inabilityfdStellus Capital
Management to maintain or develop these relatiorghior the failure of these relationships to generanvestment
opportunities, could adversely affect our business.

We depend upon Stellus Capital Management to maiitsarelationships with private equity sponsqgrscement agents,
investment banks, management groups and othercfadanstitutions, and we rely to a significant ext upon these
relationships to provide us with potential investrinepportunities. If Stellus Capital Managemenisf& maintain such
relationships, or to develop new relationships wither sources of investment opportunities, we moli be able to grow our
investment portfolio. In addition, individuals withhom Stellus Capital Management has relationsiiipsiot obligated to
provide us with investment opportunities, and we afier no assurance that these relationshipsgsitierate investment
opportunities for us in the future.

Our financial condition, results of operations anchsh flows will depend on our ability to manage dousiness effectively.

Our ability to achieve our investment objectivelwigpend on our ability to manage our businesstarmgow our
investments and earnings. This will depend, in,tamStellus Capital Management's ability to idBntinvest in and monitor
portfolio companies that meet our investment datefhe achievement of our investment objectiva @ost-effective basis will
depend upon Stellus Capital Management’s execuafiaur investment process, its ability to provigenpetent, attentive and
efficient services to us and, to a lesser extantaocess to financing on acceptable terms. St€lfystal Management’s
investment professionals will have substantial oesgbilities in connection with the management thieo investment funds,
accounts and investment vehicles. The personr@glatius Capital Management may be called upondwige managerial
assistance to our portfolio companies. These dietivinay distract them from sourcing new investnogmortunities for us or
slow our rate of investment. Any failure to manage business and our future growth effectively dduhve a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, resolt operations and cash flows.

There are significant potential conflicts of intest that could negatively affect our investment rats.

The members of Stellus Capital Management’s investrnommittee serve, or may serve, as officergctirs, members, or
principals of entities that operate in the sama mlated line of business as we do, or of investriwnds, accounts, or
investment vehicles managed by Stellus Capital idameent. Similarly, Stellus Capital Management mayehother clients
with similar, different or competing investment etfives. In serving in these multiple capacitiagytmay have obligations to
other clients or investors in those entities, thiéliment of which may not be in the best intesest us or our stockholders. For
example, Stellus Capital Management currently masagprivate credit fund that has an investmeategiy that is identical to
our investment strategy. Stellus Capital Managerabsat provides sub-advisory services to the D.Hawsgroup with respect to
a private investment fund and a strategy of a peivaulti-strategy investment fund to which the D Shaw group serves as
investment adviser that have an investment stragggiar to our investment strategy.

In addition, there may be times when Stellus Capinagement, members of its investment committats mther
investment professionals have interests that diften those of our stockholders, giving rise taoaftict of interest. In
particular, a private investment fund for whichlbi® Capital Management provides investment adyiservices hold minority
equity interests in certain of the portfolio comiann which we hold debt investments. As a reSitk|lus Capital
Management, members of its investment committéts ather investment professionals may face casfié interest in
connection with making business decisions for ths#olio companies to the extent that such denssiaffect the debt and
equity holders in these portfolio companies diffelg In addition, Stellus Capital Management magef conflicts of interests
in connection with making investment or other diexcis, including granting loan waivers or concessjan our behalf with
respect to these portfolio companies given that #igeo provide investment advisory services toigape investment fund that
holds the equity interests in these portfolio conips. Although our investment adviser will endeaeohandle these
investment and other decisions in a fair and eflgtemanner, we and the holders of the shares of@umon stock could be
adversely affected by these decisions. Moreovegergthe subjective nature of the investment andradlkcisions made by our
investment adviser on our behalf, we
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are unable to monitor these potential conflictstdrest between us and our investment advisergkew our board of
directors, including the independent directorsjeee conflicts of interest in connection with iestew of the performance of
our investment adviser.

The senior investment team and other investmentfpssionals of Stellus Capital Management may, fréime to time,
possess material non-public information, limitinguo investment discretion.

The senior investment team and other investmerieégsonals of Stellus Capital Management, includitegmbers of Stellus
Capital Management’s investment committee, mayesasvdirectors of, or in a similar capacity witbrtfolio companies in
which we invest, the securities of which are pusgthor sold on our behalf. In the event that mateenpublic information is
obtained with respect to such companies, or werhecgubject to trading restrictions under the irdktrading policies of those
companies or as a result of applicable law or &iprs, we could be prohibited for a period of tifr@m purchasing or selling
the securities of such companies, and this prabibihay have an adverse effect on us.

The incentive fee structure we have with Stelluspital Management may create incentives that are fity aligned with the
interests of our stockholders.

In the course of our investing activities, we pagnagement and incentive fees to Stellus Capitaldgdament. We have
entered into an investment advisory agreement 8ii¢ius Capital Management that provides for a rgameent fee based on
the value of our gross assets. Because this tegsisd on the value of our gross assets, StellusaCilanagement will benefit
when we incur debt or use leverage. This fee siraanay encourage Stellus Capital Management teecasl to borrow money
to finance additional investments. Under certainwrnstances, the use of borrowed money may inctbadéelihood of
default, which would disfavor our stockholders.

Our board of directors is charged with protecting interests by monitoring how Stellus Capital Mgement addresses
these and other conflicts of interests associaitdits management services and compensation. V@hildoard of directors is
not expected to review or approve each investmecisibn, borrowing or incurrence of leverage, aateipendent directors will
periodically review Stellus Capital Management’s/Bees and fees as well as its portfolio managerdeatisions and portfolio
performance. In connection with these reviews,iodependent directors will consider whether ousfaed expenses
(including those related to leverage) remain appatg As a result of this arrangement, Stellusi@éhManagement may from
time to time have interests that differ from tho$eur stockholders, giving rise to a conflict.

Our incentive fee may induce Stellus Capital Managent to make speculative investments.

We pay Stellus Capital Management an incentivébéesed, in part, upon net capital gains realizedurinvestments.
Unlike that portion of the incentive fee based meoime, there is no hurdle rate applicable to thié@oof the incentive fee
based on net capital gains. Additionally, underitioentive fee structure, Stellus Capital Managemeay benefit when capital
gains are recognized and, because Stellus Capétablyement will determine when to sell a holding]IG$ Capital
Management will control the timing of the recogmitiof such capital gains. As a result, Stellus @hplanagement may have a
tendency to invest more capital in investments déinatlikely to result in capital gains as compawethcome producing
securities. Such a practice could result in ouesting in more speculative securities than woutgtatise be the case, which
could result in higher investment losses, partidylduring economic downturns.

We may be obligated to pay Stellus Capital Managahiecentive compensation even if we incur a loggdamay pay more
than 20.0% of our net capital gains because we cahrecover payments made in previous years.

Stellus Capital Management is entitled to incenti@mpensation for each fiscal quarter in an ameqguotl to a percentage
of the excess of our investment income for thattgugbefore deducting incentive compensation) abethreshold return for
that quarter and subject to a total return requén@mThe general effect of this total return reguient is to prevent payment of
the foregoing incentive compensation except toetttent 20.0% of the cumulative net increase inassets resulting from
operations over the then current
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and 11 preceding calendar quarters exceeds thelatimauncentive fees accrued and/or paid for thefdeceding calendar
quarters. Consequently, we may pay an incentivé fe@e incurred losses more than three years poidhe current calendar
quarter even if such losses have not yet been eged\n full. Thus, we may be required to pay 8tapital Management
incentive compensation for a fiscal quarter evehéfe is a decline in the value of our portfolroa@ incur a net loss for that
quarter. If we pay an incentive fee of 20.0% of malized capital gains (net of all realized cdpiases and unrealized capital
depreciation on a cumulative basis) and thereakperience additional realized capital losses oealized capital depreciation,
we will not be able to recover any portion of theantive fee previously paid.

The involvement of our interested directors in thialuation process may create conflicts of interest.

We make many of our portfolio investments in therf@f loans and securities that are not publicyléd and for which no
market based price quotation is available. As altesur board of directors determines the faiueabf these loans and
securities in good faith as described elsewhetkignannual report on Form 10-K. In connection wtitat determination,
investment professionals from Stellus Capital Ma&magnt may provide our board of directors with vibres based upon the
most recent portfolio company financial statemewiilable and projected financial results of eastifplio company. While
the valuation for each portfolio investment is esvéd by an independent valuation firm quarterlg, ultimate determination of
fair value is made by our board of directors, idahg our interested directors, and not by suchdtharty valuation firm. In
addition, Messrs. Ladd, D’Angelo and Davis, eaclinderested member of our board of directors, hdisext pecuniary interest
in Stellus Capital Management. The participatiofstellus Capital Management's investment profesdioim our valuation
process, and the pecuniary interest in Stellust@lddianagement by certain members of our boardrettbrs, could result in a
conflict of interest as Stellus Capital Managem&ntanagement fee is based, in part, on the valaarafross assets, and
incentive fees are based, in part, on realizedsgail realized and unrealized losses.

There are conflicts related to other arrangementgwStellus Capital Management.

We have entered into a license agreement withuSt€hpital Management under which Stellus Capitahdfement has
agreed to grant us a non-exclusive, royalty-freense to use the name “Stellus Capital.” In addljtiee have entered into an
administration agreement with Stellus Capital Maragnt pursuant to which we are required to payetus Capital
Management our allocable portion of overhead ahdragxpenses incurred by Stellus Capital Managemergrforming its
obligations under such administration agreemert) s1$ rent and our allocable portion of the costurfchief financial officer
and chief compliance officer and his staff. Thidl wieate conflicts of interest that our board o&dtors will monitor. For
example, under the terms of the license agreementyill be unable to preclude Stellus Capital Magragnt from licensing or
transferring the ownership of the “Stellus Capitadime to third parties, some of whom may compesénagus. Consequently,
we will be unable to prevent any damage to goodWal may occur as a result of the activities @fl8¢ Capital Management
or others. Furthermore, in the event the licenseagent is terminated, we will be required to cleaogr name and cease using
“Stellus Capital” as part of our name. Any of thesents could disrupt our recognition in the magdate, damage any
goodwill we may have generated and otherwise hambuosiness.

The investment advisory agreement and the admirmigtn agreement with Stellus Capital Management warot negotiated
on an arm’s length basis and may not be as favomts us as if they had been negotiated with an diliated third party.

The investment advisory agreement and the admatistr agreement were negotiated between relatdigpar
Consequently, their terms, including fees payabiStellus Capital Management, may not be as faletalus as if they had
been negotiated with an unaffiliated third partyatdition, we may choose not to enforce, or t@eef less vigorously, our
rights and remedies under these agreements besbosgedesire to maintain our ongoing relationshiph Stellus Capital
Management and its affiliates. Any such decisia@wéver, would breach our fiduciary obligations to etockholders.
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The time and resources that Stellus Capital Managarhdevotes to us may be diverted, and we may &alcktional
competition due to the fact that Stellus Capital kiagement and its affiliates are not prohibited froraising money for, or
managing, another entity that makes the same typemvestments that we target.

Stellus Capital Management and some of its aféilatncluding our officers and our non-independgrgctors, are not
prohibited from raising money for, or managing, #ueo investment entity that makes the same typ@svebtments as those we
target. For example, Stellus Capital Managemermneatly manages a private credit fund that has aesiment strategy that is
identical to our investment strategy and with whigh currently co-invest, subject to the conditiomduded in the exemptive
order we received from the SEC. In addition, punst@ sub-advisory arrangements, Stellus Capitaidgement provides non-
discretionary advisory services to the D. E. Shasup related to a private investment fund and atedyy of a private multi-
strategy investment fund to which the D. E. Shasugrserves as investment adviser. As a resultjrtfeeand resources they
could devote to us may be diverted. In additionmay compete with any such investment entity fersame investors and
investment opportunities.

Our incentive fee arrangements with Stellus Capiddhnagement may vary from those of other investméntds, account or
investment vehicles managed by Stellus Capital Mgaaent, which may create an incentive for Stelluspital Management
to devote time and resources to a higher fee-payfingd.

If Stellus Capital Management is paid a higher ganfance-based fee from any of its other fundsaiy imave an incentive
to devote more research and development or othieites, and/or recommend the allocation of invesiht opportunities, to
such higher fee-paying fund. For example, to tereStellus Capital Management’s incentive comagos is not subject to a
hurdle or total return requirement with respecanother fund, it may have an incentive to deveteetand resources to such
other fund.

Stellus Capital Management'’s liability is limitednder the investment advisory agreement and we hayeed to indemnify
Stellus Capital Management against certain liabiés, which may lead Stellus Capital Management td & a riskier
manner on our behalf than it would when acting fdts own account.

Under the investment advisory agreement, Stellyst@ldManagement has not assumed any responsitalitg other than
to render the services called for under that agesentt will not be responsible for any action afr doard of directors in
following or declining to follow Stellus Capital Magement’s advice or recommendations. Under thesinvent advisory
agreement, Stellus Capital Management, its offiamembers and personnel, and any person contralticgntrolled by Stellus
Capital Management will not be liable to us, anlgssdiary of ours, our directors, our stockholdarsuay subsidiary’s
stockholders or partners for acts or omissionsoperéd in accordance with and pursuant to the invest advisory agreement,
except those resulting from acts constituting gresgligence, willful misfeasance, bad faith or ftesk disregard of the duties
that Stellus Capital Management owes to us undemntirestment advisory agreement. In addition, asgidhe investment
advisory agreement, we have agreed to indemnifjuSt€apital Management and each of its officengalors, members,
managers and employees from and against any ctaitrabilities, including reasonable legal fees atioer expenses
reasonably incurred, arising out of or in connettioth our business and operations or any actikartar omitted on our
behalf pursuant to authority granted by the investhadvisory agreement, except where attributabtgdss negligence, willful
misfeasance, bad faith or reckless disregard df pacson’s duties under the investment advisorgergent. These protections
may lead Stellus Capital Management to act inkdenisnanner when acting on our behalf than it woukteen acting for its own
account.

Our ability to enter into transactions with our affates is restricted, which may limit the scopeioffestments available to us.

We are prohibited under the 1940 Act from partitiigin certain transactions with our affiliatestaut the prior approval
of our independent directors and, in some casesSHC. Any person that owns, directly or indirecB% or more of our
outstanding voting securities will be our affilid® purposes of the 1940 Act, and we are genepatihibited from buying or
selling any security from or to such affiliate wotht the prior approval of our independent directdige 1940 Act also prohibits
certain “joint” transactions with certain of oufibtes, which could include concurrent investneeint the same portfolio
company, without prior
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approval of our independent directors and, in soases, of the SEC. We are prohibited from buyingetling any security
from or to any person that controls us or who omiese than 25% of our voting securities or certdithat person’s affiliates,
or entering into prohibited joint transactions wstich persons, absent the prior approval of the. 38@ result of these
restrictions, we may be prohibited from buying elliag any security (other than any security of gthwe are the issuer) from
or to any portfolio company of a fund managed kBlI8¢ Capital Management or its affiliates withtlue prior approval of the
SEC, which may limit the scope of investment oppaittes that would otherwise be available to us.

We have received exemptive relief from the SECatéonwest with investment funds managed by Stellapital
Management (other than the D. E. Shaw group fumtigre doing so is consistent with our investmengitsty as well as
applicable law (including the terms and conditiohshe exemptive order issued by the SEC). Undetdéims of the relief
permitting us to co-invest with other funds manabgdtellus Capital Management, a “required majbiias defined in
Section 57(0) of the 1940 Act) of our independergalors must make certain conclusions in connactiith a co-investment
transaction, including that (1) the terms of thegmsed transaction, including the consideratidnetpaid, are reasonable and
fair to us and our stockholders and do not invalverreaching of us or our stockholders on the gilaany person concerned
and (2) the transaction is consistent with theregts of our stockholders and is consistent withimeestment objectives and
strategies.

Our ability to sell or otherwise exit investmentswhich affiliates of Stellus Capital Managementsad have an investment
may be restricted, which may have a materially acbeimpact on our ability to manage our investmepurtfolio.

Pursuant to the 1940 Act, unless and until we vecekemptive relief from the SEC permitting us tost, we may be
prohibited from exiting our positions in portfolemmpanies in which funds affiliated with Stellusp@tal Management also hold
positions. As more fully described elsewhere is #Hrinual report on Form 10-K, as of December 31326ur portfolio
consists of 9 assets in 6 portfolio companies draté by the D. E. Shaw group fund to which the DSEaw group serves as
investment adviser and is sub-advised by Stellyst&laManagement. However, the D. E. Shaw groupl fuas retained equity
investments in 6 of those 7 portfolio companiestA@mextent that our investments in these portfatimpanies need to be
restructured or that we choose to exit these invests in the future, our ability to do so may Ineited if such restructuring or
exit also involves an affiliate or the D. E. Shamwup fund therein because such a transaction dmuttbnsidered a joint
transaction prohibited by the 1940 Act in the alosenf our receipt of relief from the SEC in conm@tiwith such transaction.
For example, if the D. E. Shaw group fund were m&glito approve a restructuring of our investmentre of these portfolio
companies in its capacity as an equity holder tfeaad the D. E. Shaw group fund were deemed tmubeaffiliate, such
involvement by the D. E. Shaw group fund in thdrreguring transaction may constitute a prohibjtadt transaction under the
1940 Act. However, we do not believe that our &piid restructure or exit these investments wilsmificantly hampered due
to the fact that the equity investments retainethieyD. E. Shaw group fund are minority equity foes and, as a result, it is
unlikely that the D. E. Shaw group fund will bevaill be required to be involved in any such restanings or exits.

We operate in a highly competitive market for intesent opportunities, which could reduce returns anelsult in losses.

A number of entities compete with us to make thpegyof investments that we make. We compete withigand private
funds, commercial and investment banks, commeficiahcing companies and, to the extent they proaidalternative form of
financing, private equity and hedge funds. Mangwf competitors are substantially larger and haresiclerably greater
financial, technical and marketing resources tharde. For example, we believe some of our compstittay have access to
funding sources that are not available to us. titexh, some of our competitors may have highes tiderances or different
risk assessments, which could allow them to consideider variety of investments and establish nrelationships than us.
Furthermore, many of our competitors are not sulifethe regulatory restrictions that the 1940 igboses on us as a business
development company or the source-of-income, algetsification and distribution requirements westsatisfy to maintain
our RIC qualification. The competitive pressuresfa@e may have a material adverse effect on ounéss, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flowsaAssult
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of this competition, we may not be able to takezadage of attractive investment opportunities ftone to time, and we may
not be able to identify and make investments thatansistent with our investment objective.

With respect to the investments we make, we dseek to compete based primarily on the interessnat offer, and we
believe that some of our competitors may make lodtisinterest rates that are lower than the rateffer. With respect to all
investments, we may lose some investment oppoigsriftwe do not match our competitors’ pricingnts and structure.
However, if we match our competitors’ pricing, terand structure, we may experience decreasedteetshincome, lower
yields and increased risk of credit loss. We map abmpete for investment opportunities with inrrestt funds, accounts and
investment vehicles managed by Stellus Capital idameent. Although Stellus Capital Management with@dte opportunities
in accordance with its policies and proceduresgalions to such investment funds, accounts arestment vehicles will
reduce the amount and frequency of opportunitiedi@ve to us and may not be in the best inter@sts and our stockholders.

We will be subject to corporate-level income taxdamay default under the Credit Facility if we arenable to qualify or
maintain our qualification as a RIC under Subchapt® of the Code.

To maintain our qualification as a RIC under SulptéaM of the Code, we must meet certain source@dme, asset
diversification and distribution requirements. Tdistribution requirement for a RIC is satisfiedvé distribute at least 90% of
our net ordinary income and net short-term capgiséhs in excess of net long-term capital losseanyf, to our stockholders on
an annual basis. Because we incur debt, we wilufpgect to certain asset coverage ratio requiresnamer the 1940 Act and
financial covenants under loan and credit agreesrtbiat could, under certain circumstances, restadtom making
distributions necessary to maintain our qualificatas a RIC. If we are unable to obtain cash frtmemsources, we may fail to
maintain our qualification as a RIC and, thus, ayubject to corporate-level income tax. To maindar qualification as a
RIC, we must also meet certain asset diversificatgmuirements at the end of each calendar quisdédure to meet these tests
may result in our having to dispose of certain gimeents quickly in order to prevent the loss of gualification as a RIC.
Because most of our investments are in privatbiohttraded public companies, any such disposgioray be made at
disadvantageous prices and may result in subst#gies. No certainty can be provided, that wé saitisfy the asset
diversification requirements or the other requirataeecessary to maintain our qualification as@. Rlwe fail to maintain our
qualification as a RIC for any reason and beconbgestito corporate income tax, the resulting caapmincome taxes could
substantially reduce our net assets, the amotntofme available for distributions to our stocktetland the amount of funds
available for new investments. Furthermore, if wi¢tb maintain our qualification as a RIC, we ni@yin default under the
terms of the senior secured revolving credit facilihe “Credit Facility”) with SunTrust Bank, administrative agent and
lender and additional lenders. Such a failure wnalde a material adverse effect on us and our lstbdérs.

We will need to raise additional capital to growdaise we must distribute most of our income.

We will need additional capital to fund new investrts and grow our portfolio of investments. Wengt¢o access the
capital markets periodically to issue debt or ggsécurities or borrow from financial institutiomsorder to obtain such
additional capital. Unfavorable economic conditi@osild increase our funding costs, limit our acdeshe capital markets or
result in a decision by lenders not to extend ¢rediis. A reduction in the availability of new dap could limit our ability to
grow. In addition, we are required to distributdegtst 90% of our net ordinary income and net stesrh capital gains in excess
of net long-term capital losses, if any, to ourcktmlders to maintain our qualification as a RIG.&result, these earnings will
not be available to fund new investments. An irigbdn our part to access the capital markets ssfaly could limit our
ability to grow our business and execute our bissirstrategy fully and could decrease our earnihgay, which would have
an adverse effect on the value of our shares ofmamstock.

You may not receive distributions, or our distribahs may not grow over time.

We intend to make distributions on a monthly bé&sisur stockholders out of assets legally availéaistribution. We
cannot assure you that we will achieve investmesitlts that will allow us to make a specified lesktash distributions or
year-to-year increases in cash distributions. ®ilitato pay
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distributions might be adversely affected by theaat of one or more of the risk factors descrilmethis annual report on Form
10-K. Due to the asset coverage test applicabls tender the 1940 Act as a business developmemammmwe may be limited
in our ability to make distributions. All distribohs will be made at the discretion of our boardlioéctors and will depend on
our earnings, financial condition, maintenance & Rtatus, compliance with applicable business kbgweent company, SBA
regulations (if applicable) and such other facew®ur board of directors may deem relative franetto time. In addition, the
covenants contained in our Credit Facility may [ivdhus from making distributions to our stockhalgleand, as a result, could
hinder our ability to make distributions. We canassure you that we will make distributions to stackholders in the future.

We may have difficulty paying our required distritians if we recognize income before, or withoutcedving cash
representing such income.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, we includadome certain amounts that we have not yet redeiv cash, such as
the accrual of original issue discount. This mageaif we receive warrants in connection with theking of a loan and in other
circumstances, or through contracted PIK intemgbich represents contractual interest added téothe balance and due at the
end of the loan term. Such original issue discowhich could be significant relative to our ovelialvestment activities, and
increases in loan balances as a result of conttd&ité arrangements are included in income beforeageive any
corresponding cash payments. We also may be requirieclude in income certain other amounts thatwill not receive in
cash.

Since in certain cases we may recognize incomeadefowithout receiving cash representing suchrnmgove may have
difficulty meeting the requirement to distributel@dst 90% of our net ordinary income and net stesrh capital gains in excess
of net long-term capital losses, if any, to maimtaiir qualification as a RIC. In such a case, wg have to sell some of our
investments at times we would not consider advattag, raise additional debt or equity capital duce new investment
originations to meet these distribution requireraetitwe are not able to obtain such cash fromragberces, we may fail to
qualify as a RIC and thus be subject to corporatetlincome tax.

PIK interest payments we receive will increase @ssets under management and, as a result, will @ase the amount of
base management fees payable by us to Stellus Gddianagement.

Certain of our debt investments may contain prowisiproviding for the payment of PIK interest. BesmPIK interest
results in an increase in the size of the loanrz@af the underlying loan, the receipt by us ¢ Piterest will have the effect
of increasing our assets under management. Asili,lescause the base management fee that we (Bigltos Capital
Management is based on the value of our grosssasietreceipt by us of PIK interest will resuliin increase in the amount of
the base management fee payable by us. In additignsuch increase in a loan balance due to thedpteaf PIK interest will
cause such loan to accrue interest on the higherldalance, which will result in an increase in pra-incentive fee net
investment income and, as a result, an increasedémtive fees that are payable by us to Stellyst@laManagement.

Regulations governing our operation as a businesvelopment company affect our ability to, and thayin which we, raise
additional capital. As a business development compahe necessity of raising additional capital maypose us to risks,
including the typical risks associated with leverag

We may issue debt securities or preferred stockoamarrow money from banks or other financial itagions, which we
refer to collectively as “senior securities,” upth@ maximum amount permitted by the 1940 Act. Wrtde provisions of the
1940 Act, we are permitted as a business developooempany to issue senior securities in amounts et our asset
coverage ratio, as defined in the 1940 Act, eqatlsast 200% of our gross assets less all lisdsiland indebtedness not
represented by senior securities, after each issuainsenior securities. If the value of our asdetdines, we may be unable to
satisfy this test. If that happens, we would noabke to borrow additional funds until we were atoleomply with the 200%
asset coverage ratio under the 1940 Act. Also,aangunts that we use to service our indebtedneskiwot be available for
distributions to our common stockholders. If wausssenior securities, we will be exposed to typiiskis associated with
leverage, including an increased risk of loss.
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We are not generally able to issue and sell oumgomstock at a price below net asset value peeskiée may, however,
sell our common stock, or warrants, options ortsgb acquire our common stock, at a price belamtturrent net asset value
per share of our common stock if our board of doecdetermines that such sale is in our bestastey and if our stockholders
approve such sale. On July 29, 2013, our stocki®Mgted to allow us to issue common stock at @efdoelow net asset value
per share for the period ending on the earliehefdne year anniversary of the date of the Compga2§13 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders and the date of the Company’s 20141AhMeeting of Stockholders, which is expectedddibld in June 2014.
Our stockholders did not specify a maximum discdgibw net asset value at which we are able t@issu common stock,
although the number of shares sold in each offeriag not exceed 25% of our outstanding common stookediately prior to
such sale. In addition, we cannot issue sharesrof@mmon stock below net asset value unless candbaf directors
determines that it would be in our and our stocted’ best interests to do so. Sales of commork stoprices below net asset
value per share dilute the interests of existingldtolders, have the effect of reducing our nettagslue per share and may
reduce our market price per share. In additiontinaous sales of common stock below net asset valehave a negative
impact on total returns and could have a negath@act on the market price of our shares of comnbacks|f we raise
additional funds by issuing common stock, thenpgbreentage ownership of our stockholders at theg tvill decrease, and you
may experience dilution.

Because we finance our investments with borrowedney the potential for gain or loss on amounts irsted in us is
magnified and may increase the risk of investingus.

The use of leverage magnifies the potential fon gailoss on amounts invested. The use of levasgenerally considered
a speculative investment technique and increagessks associated with investing in our securitiege continue to use
leverage to partially finance our investments tigtobanks, insurance companies and other lendenisyifloexperience
increased risks of investing in our common sto@nders of these funds have fixed dollar claims wragsets that are superior
to the claims of our common stockholders, and waldvexpect such lenders to seek recovery agaimsasaets in the event of
a default. As of December 31, 2013, substantidllgfaour assets were pledged as collateral ungeCredit Facility. In
addition, under the terms of the Credit Facilitg@my borrowing facility or other debt instrumerd way enter into, we are
likely to be required to use the net proceeds gfiamestments that we sell to repay a portion efamount borrowed under
such facility or instrument before applying such pceeds to any other uses. If the value of eset decreases, leveraging
would cause net asset value to decline more shtralyit otherwise would have had we not leverateeteby magnifying
losses or eliminating our stake in a leveragedstment. Similarly, any decrease in our revenu@coriine will cause our net
income to decline more sharply than it would haad tve not borrowed. Such a decline would also meggtaffect our ability
to make distributions with respect to our commartkt Our ability to service any debt depends largel our financial
performance and is subject to prevailing econoraiwdions and competitive pressures. Moreoverhasbtase management fee
payable to Stellus Capital Management is payaldedban the value of our gross assets, includinggtlagsets acquired through
the use of leverage, Stellus Capital Managemehhaile a financial incentive to incur leverage, efhinay not be consistent
with our stockholders’ interests. In addition, @@ammon stockholders bear the burden of any increaser expenses as a
result of our use of leverage, including interegtemses and any increase in the base managemguayfalele to Stellus Capital
Management.

As a business development company, we generallsegréred to meet a coverage ratio of total agsetistal borrowings
and other senior securities, which include all af borrowings and any preferred stock that we rsayé in the future, of at
least 200%. If this ratio declines below 200%, wik mot be able to incur additional debt until weable to comply with the
200% asset coverage ratio under the 1940 Act. dthifd have a material adverse effect on our operatiand we may not be
able to make distributions. The amount of leverthge we employ will depend on Stellus Capital Magragnt’'s and our board
of directors’ assessment of market and other facibthe time of any proposed borrowing. We caasstire you that we will
be able to obtain credit at all or on terms acdaptto us.

In addition, our debt facilities may impose finaa@nd operating covenants that restrict our bgsiaetivities, including
limitations that hinder our ability to finance atidhal loans and investments or to make the distidins required to maintain
our qualification as a RIC under the Code.
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We may default under the Credit Facility or any furte borrowing facility we enter into or be unable emend, repay or
refinance any such facility on commercially reasoble terms, or at all, which could have a materiad\zerse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operatisrand cash flows.

As of December 31, 2013, substantially all of osseds were pledged as collateral under the Creditity. In the event we
default under the Credit Facility or any other fetborrowing facility, our business could be adebraffected as we may be
forced to sell all or a portion of our investmeqtsckly and prematurely at what may be disadvardaggrices to us in order to
meet our outstanding payment obligations and/opsuorking capital requirements under the Cré&ditility or such future
borrowing facility, any of which would have a ma&tiadverse effect on our business, financial cibonlj results of operations
and cash flows. In addition, following any suchaléf, the agent for the lenders under the Creditlifaor such future
borrowing facility could assume control of the disjtion of any or all of our assets, including gegection of such assets to be
disposed and the timing of such disposition, whicluld have a material adverse effect on our busirfesancial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

Because we use debt to finance our investmentsjafket interest rates were to increase, our costapital could increase,
which could reduce our net investment income.

Because we borrow money to make investments andnrthg future issue senior securities includingf@med stock and
debt securities, our net investment income willefeg) in part, upon the difference between theattehich we borrow funds
and the rate at which we invest those funds. Assalt, we can offer no assurance that a significhange in market interest
rates would not have a material adverse effectusmet investment income in the event we use daefim&nce our investments.
In periods of rising interest rates, our cost afds would increase, which could reduce our netstment income. We may use
interest rate risk management techniques in amteéfdimit our exposure to interest rate fluctoats. We may utilize
instruments such as forward contracts, currencipoptand interest rate swaps, caps, collars aodsflim seek to hedge against
fluctuations in the relative values of our portfofiositions from changes in currency exchange eatdamarket interest rates to
the extent permitted by the 1940 Act. For examipléhe extent any such instruments were to cornstgenior securities under
the 1940 Act, we would have to and will comply witie asset coverage requirements thereunder perastted in lieu thereof,
place certain assets in a segregated account & saeh instruments in accordance with SEC guidanckiding, for example,
Investment Company Act Release No. IC-10666, alcgiyte. There is otherwise no limit as to our ipilo enter into such
derivative transactions. In addition, a rise in glemeral level of interest rates typically leadbiggher interest rates applicable to
our debt investments. Accordingly, an increaseiarest rates may result in an increase of the atraflour pre-incentive fee
net investment income and, as a result, an inciedaeentive fees payable to Stellus Capital M@amagnt. Adverse
developments resulting from changes in interessrat hedging transactions could have a materiadrad effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openast

Substantially all of our assets are subject to segyinterests under the Credit Facility and if weefault on our obligations
under the Credit Facility we may suffer adverse a@guences, including foreclosure on our assets.

As of December 31, 2013, substantially all of osseds were pledged as collateral under the Creditity. If we default on
our obligations under the Credit Facility, the ler&lmay have the right to foreclose upon and seitherwise transfer, the
collateral subject to their security intereststait superior claim. In such event, we may be foitwesell our investments to
raise funds to repay our outstanding borrowingsrier to avoid foreclosure and these forced sabgshme at times and at prices
we would not consider advantageous. Moreover, setdwveraging of our company could significantly afrpur ability to
effectively operate our business in the mannertiiclvwe have historically operated. As a result,ceeld be forced to curtail
or cease new investment activities and lower oniakite the dividends that we have historically pgaidur stockholders.

In addition, if the lenders exercise their righstil the assets pledged under the Credit Facidlitgh sales may be completed
at distressed sale prices, thereby diminishingotergially eliminating the amount of cash availafdleis after repayment of the
amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility.
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Provisions in the Credit Facility or any other fute borrowing facility may limit our discretion in perating our business.

The Credit Facility is, and any future borrowingifily may be, backed by all or a portion of ouals and securities on
which the lenders will or, in the case of a futtaeility, may have a security interest. We may gkedp to 100% of our assets
and may grant a security interest in all of ouetssinder the terms of any debt instrument we éntemwith lenders. We expect
that any security interests we grant will be sethfin a guarantee and security agreement and msédieby the filing of
financing statements by the agent for the lenderaddition, we expect that the custodian for @mausities serving as collateral
for such loan would include in its electronic sysgenotices indicating the existence of such secimierests and, following
notice of occurrence of an event of default, if ayd during its continuance, will only accept sf@n instructions with respect
to any such securities from the lender or its destg If we were to default under the terms of aslyt éhstrument, the agent for
the applicable lenders would be able to assumedarftthe timing of disposition of any or all ofipassets securing such debt,
which would have a material adverse effect on ausiriess, financial condition, results of operatiand cash flows.

In addition, any security interests as well as tiggaovenants under the Credit Facility or anyeothorrowing facility may
limit our ability to incur additional liens or deahd may make it difficult for us to restructurerefinance indebtedness at or
prior to maturity or obtain additional debt or eguinancing. For example, under the terms of thed@ Facility, we have
generally agreed to not incur any additional setimdebtedness, other than certain indebtednesséhmay incur, in
accordance with the Credit Facility, to allow ugptochase investments in U.S. Treasury Bills. ldittah, we have agreed not
to incur any additional indebtedness that has antytdate prior to the maturity date of the Crdehitcility. Further, if our
borrowing base under the Credit Facility or anyeothorrowing facility were to decrease, we would&guired to secure
additional assets in an amount equal to any bonmgwase deficiency. In the event that all of owets are secured at the time
of such a borrowing base deficiency, we could logiired to repay advances under the Credit Fadilitgny other borrowing
facility or make deposits to a collection accowittier of which could have a material adverse impaur ability to fund
future investments and to make stockholder distidiis.

In addition, under the Credit Facility or any otherrowing facility we may be subject to limitat®as to how borrowed
funds may be used, which may include restrictiamg®@ographic and industry concentrations, loan giagment frequency and
status, average life, collateral interests andstment ratings, as well as regulatory restrictiom$everage which may affect the
amount of funding that may be obtained. There nisy lae certain requirements relating to portfolwfprmance, including
required minimum portfolio yield and limitations delinquencies and charge-offs, a violation of whgould limit further
advances and, in some cases, result in an evelefadlt. Furthermore, we expect that the termiefCredit Facility will
contain a covenant requiring us to maintain conmgkawith RIC provisions at all times, subject tota remedial provisions.
Thus, a failure to maintain compliance with RIC\asions could result in an event of default under €redit Facility. An event
of default under the Credit Facility or any otherdowing facility could result in an acceleratedtordy date for all amounts
outstanding thereunder, which could have a matadaérse effect on our business and financial ¢cimmdiThis could reduce
our revenues and, by delaying any cash paymemeadido us under the Credit Facility or any othetrtwving facility until the
lenders have been paid in full, reduce our liqyiditd cash flow and impair our ability to grow dawsiness and maintain our
qualification as a RIC.

We may in the future determine to fund a portion ofir investments with preferred stock, which woutthgnify the potential
for gain or loss and the risks of investing in us the same way as our borrowings.

Preferred stock, which is another form of leverdges the same risks to our common stockholdersmswings because
the dividends on any preferred stock we issue teistumulative. Payment of such dividends and repayof the liquidation
preference of such preferred stock must take preéer over any dividends or other payments to onmeon stockholders, and
preferred stockholders are not subject to any ofeapenses or losses and are not entitled to geEatécin any income or
appreciation in excess of their stated preference.
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Adverse developments in the credit markets may impar ability to enter into any other future borreing facility.

During the economic downturn in the United Staked began in mid-2007, many commercial banks ahérdinancial
institutions stopped lending or significantly ciled their lending activity. In addition, in an eff to stem losses and reduce
their exposure to segments of the economy deemieel high risk, some financial institutions limitegfinancing and loan
modification transactions and reviewed the termexidting facilities to identify bases for accetérg the maturity of existing
lending facilities. If these conditions recur, iynbe difficult for us to enter into a new borrogifacility, obtain other financing
to finance the growth of our investments, or rdficeaany outstanding indebtedness on acceptablemioterms, or at all.

If we do not invest a sufficient portion of our asts in qualifying assets, we could fail to qualifg a business development
company or be precluded from investing accordingatar current business strategy.

As a business development company, we may not@&cguoy assets other than “qualifying assets” upkgsthe time of and
after giving effect to such acquisition, at leaB¥%vof our total assets are qualifying assets.

We believe that most of the investments that we agapire in the future will constitute qualifyingsets. However, we
may be precluded from investing in what we beligvbe attractive investments if such investmengsnat qualifying assets for
purposes of the 1940 Act. If we do not invest disight portion of our assets in qualifying assete,could violate the 1940 Act
provisions applicable to business development caoegaAs a result of such violation, specific rulesler the 1940 Act could
prevent us, for example, from making follow-on istreents in existing portfolio companies (which ebrésult in the dilution
of our position).

If we do not maintain our status as a businessldpseent company, we would be subject to regulatism registered
closed-end investment company under the 1940 At Fegistered closed-end investment company, vuédwe subject to
substantially more regulatory restrictions under 1840 Act which would significantly decrease opemating flexibility.

Most of our portfolio investments are recorded airfvalue and will continue to be recorded as faialue as determined in
good faith by our board of directors and, as a réisthere may be and will continue to be uncertayras to the value of our
portfolio investments.

Most of our portfolio investments will take the foof securities that are not publicly traded. Taie ¥alue of loans,
securities and other investments that are not glytiiaded may not be readily determinable, and/alae these investments at
fair value as determined in good faith by our baafrdirectors, including to reflect significant ewe affecting the value of our
investments. Most, if not all, of our investmeraghér than cash and cash equivalents) are clatsifieevel 3 under ASC
Topic 820. This means that our portfolio valuatians based on unobservable inputs and our own @sisuns about how
market participants would price the asset or lighih question. Inputs into the determination airfvalue of our portfolio
investments require significant management judgroelstimation. Even if observable market datasélable, such
information may be the result of consensus priaifigrmation or broker quotes, which include a digtler that the broker
would not be held to such a price in an actualsiation. The non-binding nature of consensus iaimd/or quotes
accompanied by disclaimers materially reducesehahility of such information. We have retaineeé ervices of independent
service providers to review the valuation of thiesans and securities. The types of factors thabtad of directors may take
into account in determining the fair value of ouweéstments generally include, as appropriate, casgrato publicly traded
securities including such factors as yield, mayuaitd measures of credit quality, the enterprideevaf a portfolio company,
the nature and realizable value of any collaténa portfolio company’s ability to make paymentsl s earnings and
discounted cash flow, the markets in which thefpbot company does business and other relevanbfeicBecause such
valuations, and particularly valuations of privageurities and private companies, are inherenttgdain, may fluctuate over
short periods of time and may be based on estimatiesleterminations of fair value may differ méily from the values that
would have been used if a ready market for themesl@nd securities existed. Our net asset valud beuadversely affected if
our determinations regarding the fair value of imwvestments were materially higher than the vatbaswe ultimately realize
upon the disposal of such loans and securities.
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We adjust quarterly the valuation of our portfdiioreflect our board of directors’ determinatiortloé fair value of each
investment in our portfolio. Any changes in faitwaare recorded in our statement of operatiomeashange in unrealized
appreciation or depreciation.

We may experience fluctuations in our quarterly apéing results.

We could experience fluctuations in our quartepgmating results due to a number of factors, inalgithe interest rate
payable on the loans and debt securities we acgh&elefault rate on such loans and securitiesletel of our expenses,
variations in and the timing of the recognitiorreélized and unrealized gains or losses, the degnebich we encounter
competition in our markets and general economiditimms. In light of these factors, results for grgriod should not be relied
upon as being indicative of performance in futueeqds.

We are an “emerging growth company” under the JOB®t, and we cannot be certain if the reduced distice
requirements applicable to emerging growth compamnigill make our common stock less attractive toestors.

We are and we will remain an “emerging growth comgias defined in the JOBS Act until the earliefaf the last day of
the fiscal year (i) following the fifth anniversaof the completion of our initial public offeringi) in which we have total
annual gross revenue of at least $1.0 billionjigrif which we are deemed to be a large accedetrditer, which means the
market value of our common stock that is held by-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the priond 30", and (b) the date
on which we have issued more than $1.0 billionan-gonvertible debt during the prior three-yeaiqekrFor so long as we
remain an “emerging growth company” we may takeaativge of certain exemptions from various repontegirements that
are applicable to other public companies that at¢emerging growth companies” including, but riatited to, not being
required to comply with the auditor attestationuiegments of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Wet.cannot predict if
investors will find our common stock less attraethecause we will rely on some or all of these gtems. If some investors
find our common stock less attractive as a rethdte may be a less active trading market for oamroon stock and our stock
price may be more volatile.

In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also pdesi that an “emerging growth company” can take iaidege of the
extended transition period provided in Section (2(&B) of the Securities Act for complying with new revised accounting
standards. In other words, an “emerging growth comgpcan delay the adoption of certain accountiagaards until those
standards would otherwise apply to private commaiiée are choosing to take advantage of the extitndesition period for
complying with new or revised accounting standavdsch may make it more difficult for investors asekcurities analysts to
evaluate us since our financial statements map@abmparable to companies that comply with putdimpany effective dates
and may result in less investor confidence.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal control over financial reporting, we may not table to accurately report
our financial results or prevent fraud. As a resulstockholders could lose confidence in our finaatand other public
reporting, which would harm our business and theatting price of our common stock.

Effective internal controls over financial repodiare necessary for us to provide reliable findrrejports and, together with
adequate disclosure controls and procedures, argndel to prevent fraud. Any failure to implemesquired new or improved
controls, or difficulties encountered in their irapientation could cause us to fail to meet our téppobligations. In addition,
any testing by us conducted in connection with iBaet04 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, or the subseiesting by our
independent registered public accounting firm (whedertaken, as noted below), may reveal deficénici our internal
controls over financial reporting that are deenwedd material weaknesses or that may require pctispeor retroactive
changes to our consolidated financial statemenidenttify other areas for further attention or itmpement. Inferior internal
controls could also cause investors to lose contiden our reported financial information, whictutsbhave a negative effect
on the trading price of our common stock.

We are required to disclose changes made in oaimiak control and procedures on a quarterly basisoar management is
required to assess the effectiveness of theseatematnnually. However, for as long as we
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are an “emerging growth company” under the recesigcted JOBS Act, our independent registered @abtounting firm
will not be required to attest to the effectivenebeur internal control over financial reportingrpuant to Section 404. We
could be an emerging growth company for up to figars. An independent assessment of the effectgesfeour internal
controls could detect problems that our managemeastsessment might not. Undetected material wesés@s our internal
controls could lead to financial statement restateisand require us to incur the expense of reriedia

Our status as an “emerging growth company” underdldOBS Act may make it more difficult to raise céglias and when
we need it.

Because of the exemptions from various reportiggirements provided to us as an “emerging growthgany” and
because we will have an extended transition pddodomplying with new or revised financial accongtstandards, we may
be less attractive to investors and it may bediffifor us to raise additional capital as and wivemeed it. Investors may be
unable to compare our business with other compémiesr industry if they believe that our financédcounting is not as
transparent as other companies in our industryelfire unable to raise additional capital as anghwte need it, our financial
condition and results of operations may be matgréaid adversely affected.

New or modified laws or regulations governing ouperations may adversely affect our business.

We and our portfolio companies are subject to r&tiph by laws at the U.S. federal, state and Imadls. These laws and
regulations, as well as their interpretation, magrge from time to time, and new laws, regulatiamd interpretations may also
come into effect. Any such new or changed lawsegulations could have a material adverse effecturrbusiness.

Additionally, changes to the laws and regulatioogggning our operations related to permitted inwestts may cause us to
alter our investment strategy in order to availselwes of new or different opportunities. Such gesncould result in material
differences to the strategies and plans set farthis annual report on Form 10-K and may shiftiouestment focus from the
areas of expertise of Stellus Capital Managemeattter types of investments in which Stellus Capitanagement may have
little or no expertise or experience. Any such dem if they occur, could have a material adveffeeteon our results of
operations and the value of your investment.

Our board of directors may change our investmenjediive, operating policies and strategies withquitor notice or
stockholder approval.

Our board of directors has the authority, excepitherwise provided in the 1940 Act, to modify caiive certain of our
operating policies and strategies without prioiceand without stockholder approval. However, abseockholder approval,
we may not change the nature of our business En@esase to be, or withdraw our election as, anessi development
company. We cannot predict the effect any charmesit current operating policies and strategieslevhave on our business,
operating results and the market price of our comstock. Nevertheless, any such changes could selyaffect our business
and impair our ability to make distributions to @tockholders.

If we receive qualification from the SBA to be linsed as an SBIC but we are unable to comply withASig@gulations after
the SBIC subsidiary is licensed as an SBIC, our mess plan and investment objective could be adelraffected.

We have applied for a license to form and operat8BIC subsidiary; however, the application is sabjo approval by the
SBA. We can make no assurances that the SBA wplieage our application, or of the timeframe in whigh would receive a
license, should one ultimately be granted. If waenee this qualification, we will become subject3BA regulations that may
constrain our activities. We may need to make aloges in our investment activity to comply with SByulations. In
addition, SBA regulations may impose parameterswrbusiness operations and investment objectaeate different than
what we otherwise would do if we were not subjedhiese regulations. Failure to comply with the SBgulations could result
in the loss of the SBIC license and the resultivapility to participate in the SBA-sponsored debemprogram. The SBA also
limits the maximum amount that may be borrowed ty single SBIC.
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The SBA prohibits, without prior SBA approval, enange of control” of an SBIC or transfers that vebrdsult in any person
(or a group of persons acting in concert) owningpldr more of a class of capital stock of a licenS&dC. A “change of
control” is any event which would result in thertséer of the power, direct or indirect, to dirdeé tmanagement and policies of
an SBIC, whether through ownership, contractuaragements or otherwise. To the extent that we btaiSBIC license, this
would prohibit a change of control of our SBIC sidi@ry without prior SBA approval. If we are unattecomply with SBA
regulations our business plan and growth strategjddoe materially adversely affected.

Pending legislation may allow us to incur additiohkeverage.

As a business development company under the 194Quicare generally not permitted to incur indebtss unless
immediately after such borrowing we have an assetrage for total borrowings of at least 200% (tfee amount of debt may
not exceed 50% of the value of our assets). Raegisiation introduced in the U.S. House of Repnéstives, if passed, would
modify this section of the 1940 Act and increasedmount of debt that business development compamaég incur by
modifying the percentage from 200% to 150%. Assalltewe may be able to incur additional indebtedria the future and
therefore your risk of an investment in common ktoay increase.

Our board of directors is authorized to reclasstyy unissued shares of common stock into one or enolasses of preferred
stock, which could convey special rights and pragkes to its owners.

Under Maryland General Corporation Law and our teraour board of directors is authorized to clgsand reclassify any
authorized but unissued shares of stock into omeave classes of stock, including preferred stéelar to issuance of shares of
each class or series, the board of directors willdguired by Maryland law and our charter to Betterms, preferences,
conversion or other rights, voting powers, reswits, limitations as to stockholder distributiogsalifications and terms or
conditions of redemption for each class or sefiésis, the board of directors could authorize tBaasice of shares of preferred
stock with terms and conditions which could haweéffect of delaying, deferring or preventing ang@ction or a change in
control that might involve a premium price for hetd of our common stock or that otherwise mighinbéeir best interest. The
cost of any such reclassification would be born@iycommon stockholders. Certain matters undet®4® Act require the
separate vote of the holders of any issued andamdli®g preferred stock. For example, the 1940phovides that holders of
preferred stock are entitled to vote separatelyjnfrmlders of common stock to elect two preferredlstirectors. We currently
have no plans to issue preferred stock. The isguahpreferred shares convertible into shares pfraon stock may also
reduce the net income and net asset value per shaus common stock upon conversion, provided, weawill only be
permitted to issue such convertible preferred stodke extent we comply with the requirements @ftidn 61 of the 1940 Act,
including obtaining common stockholder approvale3é effects, among others, could have an advedess eh your
investment in our common stock.

Provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Laand of our charter and bylaws could deter takeowgtempts and have
an adverse impact on the price of our common stock.

The Maryland General Corporation Law and our cliatel bylaws contain provisions that may discourdgéay or make
more difficult a change in control of Stellus Capinvestment Corporation or the removal of ouediors. We are subject to
the Maryland Business Combination Act, subjectrtp applicable requirements of the 1940 Act. Ourrtiad directors has
adopted a resolution exempting from the Businegslfiimation Act any business combination betweennasaay other person,
subject to prior approval of such business comhinaty our board of directors, including approvglebmajority of our
independent directors. If the resolution exempbinginess combinations is repealed or our boarditeftdrs does not approve a
business combination, the Business Combinatiom#est discourage third parties from trying to acqueioatrol of us and
increase the difficulty of consummating such arfOur bylaws exempt from the Maryland Control i@h&cquisition Act
acquisitions of our stock by any person. If we adheur bylaws to repeal the exemption from the Gar&hare Acquisition
Act, the Control Share Acquisition Act also may matkmore difficult for a third party to obtain dwal of us and increase the
difficulty of consummating such a transaction.

We have also adopted measures that may makeidutiiffor a third party to obtain control of usclnding provisions of our
charter classifying our board of directors in thetgsses serving staggered
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three-year terms, and authorizing our board ofctlinrs to classify or reclassify shares of our stocne or more classes or
series, to cause the issuance of additional slvdu@s stock, to amend our charter without stoclkolapproval and to increase
or decrease the number of shares of stock thatawe &uthority to issue. These provisions, as veetither provisions of our
charter and bylaws, may delay, defer or preverdrasaction or a change in control that might otlesve in the best interests
of our stockholders.

Stellus Capital Management can resign as our invasint adviser or administrator upon 60 days’ notiard we may not be
able to find a suitable replacement within that tenor at all, resulting in a disruption in our opetions that could adversely
affect our financial condition, business and resalbf operations.

Stellus Capital Management has the right undemibestment advisory agreement to resign as ouisinvent adviser at any
time upon 60 days’ written notice, whether we héotend a replacement or not. Similarly, Stellus @allanagement has the
right under the administration agreement to resigany time upon 60 days’ written notice, whetherhave found a
replacement or not. If Stellus Capital Managemean v resign, we may not be able to find a newstment adviser or
administrator or hire internal management with Eméxpertise and ability to provide the same arieglent services on
acceptable terms within 60 days, or at all. If we @nable to do so quickly, our operations ardyike experience a disruption,
our financial condition, business and results afrafions as well as our ability to pay distribuddo our stockholders are likely
to be adversely affected and the market price osbares may decline. In addition, the coordinatibaur internal
management and investment or administrative aiettyins applicable, is likely to suffer if we argble to identify and reach an
agreement with a single institution or group of@xeses having the expertise possessed by Stedpgdl Management. Even
if we are able to retain comparable managementthehé@nternal or external, the integration of satdinagement and their lack
of familiarity with our investment objective mayskgt in additional costs and time delays that ndweasely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operatiand cash flows.

We are highly dependent on information systems aydtems failures could significantly disrupt our bimess, which may, in
turn, negatively affect the market price of our conon stock and our ability to make distributions ¢ar stockholders.

Our business is highly dependent on the commupicgatnd information systems of Stellus Capital Mgemaent. In
addition, certain of these systems are providestétlus Capital Management by third party servicevigers. Any failure or
interruption of such systems, including as a residhe termination of an agreement with any sinifdtparty service provider,
could cause delays or other problems in our a@#ifThis, in turn, could have a material adveffeceon our operating results
and negatively affect the market price of our commtwck and our ability to make distributions ta stockholders.

Recent market conditions materially and adverseffeated debt and equity capital markets in the UrdtStates and around
the world. If these conditions recur, debt capitalay not be available to us on favorable terms, vaH, which could
negatively affect our financial performance and nels.

From 2007 through 2009, the global capital markatserienced a period of disruption resulting inréasing spreads
between the yields realized on riskier debt seiegriind those realized on risk-free securitiesaatadgk of liquidity in parts of
the debt capital markets, significant write-offglie financial services sector relating to subprnnwtgages and the re-pricing
of credit risk in the broadly syndicated markete$é events, along with the deterioration of theshrmumarket, illiquid market
conditions, declining business and consumer conéidand the failure of major financial institutidnghe United States, led to
a decline of general economic conditions. This eouin decline materially and adversely affectedliteader financial and
credit markets and reduced the availability of ceiit equity capital for the market as a whole anithancial firms in
particular during that time. These conditions megur, in which case, to the extent that we wishst® debt to fund our
investments, the debt capital that will be ava#atol us, if at all, may be at a higher cost, anteoms and conditions that may
be less favorable, than what we expect, which coalghtively affect our financial performance amsuits. A prolonged period
of market illiquidity may cause us to reduce th&umee of loans and debt securities we originate @midhd and adversely
affect the value of our portfolio investments, whipuld have a material and adverse effect on osinbss, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.
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Risks Related to our Investments

Economic recessions or downturns could impair ousrtfolio companies and harm our operating results.

Many of the portfolio companies in which we makeg &xpect to make, investments, including thoseeetily included in
our portfolio, are likely to be susceptible to ecoric slowdowns or recessions and may be unablep@yrour loans during
such periods. Therefore, the number of our noneperihg assets are likely to increase and the vaflwair portfolio is likely to
decrease during such periods. Adverse economidtgmmglmay decrease the value of collateral segusome of our loans and
debt securities and the value of our equity investis. Economic slowdowns or recessions could ledidancial losses in our
portfolio and a decrease in revenues, net incordeaasets. Unfavorable economic conditions alsodcimgkease our funding
costs, limit our access to the capital marketsesult in a decision by lenders not to extend credits. These events could
prevent us from increasing our investments and lemoperating results.

A portfolio company’s failure to satisfy financiat operating covenants imposed by us or other isnctuld lead to
defaults and, potentially, termination of its loamal foreclosure on its assets, which could triggess-defaults under other
agreements and jeopardize our portfolio comparnlyiliyato meet its obligations under the loans aedbt securities that we
hold. We may incur expenses to the extent necessasek recovery upon default or to negotiate tems with a defaulting
portfolio company. In addition, lenders in certaases can be subject to lender liability claimsaidions taken by them when
they become too involved in the borrower’s busir@saxercise control over a borrower. It is possiblat we could become
subject to a lender’s liability claim, including asesult of actions taken if we render significar@nagerial assistance to the
borrower. Furthermore, if one of our portfolio coamges were to file for bankruptcy protection, akvaptcy court might re-
characterize our debt holding and subordinateradl portion of our claim to claims of other cred#oeven though we may have
structured our investment as senior secured déletlikelihood of such a re-characterization woutghehd on the facts and
circumstances, including the extent to which wevigled managerial assistance to that portfolio camipa

Our investments in leveraged portfolio companiesyize risky, and we could lose all or part of ounviestment.

Investment in leveraged companies involves a nurabsignificant risks. Leveraged companies in whighinvest may
have limited financial resources and may be unabiaeet their obligations under their loans and deburities that we hold.
Such developments may be accompanied by a det@sioia the value of any collateral and a reduciiothe likelihood of our
realizing any guarantees that we may have obtamednnection with our investment. Smaller levethgempanies also may
have less predictable operating results and mayinreequbstantial additional capital to support tlogierations, finance their
expansion or maintain their competitive position.

We may hold the loans and debt securities of ley@d companies that may, due to the significant agarg volatility typical
of such companies, enter into bankruptcy proceeding

Leveraged companies may experience bankruptcyrolasifinancial distress. The bankruptcy processdaumber of
significant inherent risks. Many events in a bapkey proceeding are the product of contested nsatted adversary
proceedings and are beyond the control of the ttnesdiA bankruptcy filing by a portfolio company ynadversely and
permanently affect that company. If the proceedngpnverted to a liquidation, the value of thetfmdio company may not
equal the liquidation value that was believed tisteat the time of the investment. The duratiom dlankruptcy proceeding is
also difficult to predict, and a creditor’s retwn investment can be adversely affected by delatistbie plan of reorganization
or liquidation ultimately becomes effective. Theranistrative costs in connection with a bankrugtcgceeding are frequently
high and would be paid out of the debtor’s estaitar oo any return to creditors. Because the stedslfor classification of
claims under bankruptcy law are vague, our infl@awith respect to the class of securities or otlitigations we own may be
lost by increases in the number and amount of damthe same class or by different classificatiad treatment. In the early
stages of the bankruptcy process, it is oftendliffito estimate the extent of, or even to identfiyy contingent claims that
might be made. In addition, certain claims thatehpsiority by law (for example, claims for taxesayrbe substantial.
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Our investments in private and middle-market poittbocompanies are risky, and we could lose all @rpof our investment.

Investment in private and middle-market companieslves a number of significant risks. Generaliyiel public
information exists about these companies, and Weorethe ability of Stellus Capital Managementigéstment professionals
to obtain adequate information to evaluate therg@kreturns from investing in these companiesvéfare unable to uncover
all material information about these companiesnves not make a fully informed investment decisiamg we may lose money
on our investments. Middle-market companies maHiavited financial resources and may be unablaget their obligations
under their loans and debt securities that we aldch may be accompanied by a deterioration invdiae of any collateral
and a reduction in the likelihood of our realizizngy guarantees we may have obtained in connecitbrowr investment. In
addition, such companies typically have shorterafireg histories, narrower product lines and smatlarket shares than larger
businesses, which tend to render them more vultestalzompetitors’ actions and market conditiorsswell as general
economic downturns. Additionally, middle-market quamies are more likely to depend on the managetaksmits and efforts
of a small group of persons. Therefore, the dediffability, resignation or termination of one ormmof these persons could
have a material adverse impact on one or moreegpdintfolio companies we invest in and, in turnusnMiddle-market
companies also may be parties to litigation and breagngaged in rapidly changing businesses wittymts subject to a
substantial risk of obsolescence. In addition,exacutive officers, directors and investment adwvisay, in the ordinary course
of business, be named as defendants in litigatising from our investments in portfolio companies.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advety affect our business.

Most of our assets are invested in illiquid loand aecurities, and a substantial portion of ouegtments in leveraged
companies are subject to legal and other restnistan resale or are otherwise less liquid than rogyadly traded public
securities. The illiquidity of these investmentsynmaake it difficult for us to sell such investmeiftthe need arises. In addition,
if we are required to liquidate all or a portionafr portfolio quickly, we may realize significapiless than the value at which
we have previously recorded our investments. Adsmoted above, we may be limited or prohibitedunability to sell or
otherwise exit certain positions in our portfol®such a transaction could be considered a jains#ction prohibited by the
1940 Act.

Price declines and illiquidity in the corporate detmarkets may adversely affect the fair value ofrquortfolio investments,
reducing our net asset value through increased netealized depreciation.

As a business development company, we are requgireary our investments at market value or, ifmarket value is
ascertainable, at fair value as determined in daitkd by our board of directors. As part of theuation process, we may take
into account the following types of factors, ifeeant, in determining the fair value of our investits:

e available current market data, including relevamd applicable market trading and transaction avaiges;
« applicable market yields and multiples;

e security covenants;

« call protection provisions;

« information rights;

« the nature and realizable value of any collateral

* the portfolio company’s ability to make paymerits earnings and discounted cash flows and th&etaim which it
does business;

» comparisons of financial ratios of peer compattias are public;
e comparable merger and acquisition transactioms; a

« the principal market and enterprise values.
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When an external event such as a purchase tramsagtiblic offering or subsequent equity sale ogcwe use the pricing
indicated by the external event to corroboratevaluation. We record decreases in the market valuéar values of our
investments as unrealized depreciation. Declingsiges and liquidity in the corporate debt markats/ result in significant
net unrealized depreciation in our portfolio. Thieet of all of these factors on our portfolio maduce our net asset value by
increasing net unrealized depreciation in our pticf Depending on market conditions, we could ingwbstantial realized
losses and may suffer additional unrealized loss&sgure periods, which could have a material adgeffect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cieivs.

We are a non-diversified investment company witliie meaning of the 1940 Act, and therefore we ar himited with
respect to the proportion of our assets that mayimeested in securities of a single issuer.

We are classified as a non-diversified investmentgany within the meaning of the 1940 Act, whichamethat we are not
limited by the 1940 Act with respect to the propmrtof our assets that we may invest in securifes single issuer. Beyond
the asset diversification requirements associaifdour qualification as a RIC under the Code, wendt have fixed guidelines
for diversification. To the extent that we assuargé positions in the securities of a small nundféssuers or our investments
are concentrated in relatively few industries, weirasset value may fluctuate to a greater extemt that of a diversified
investment company as a result of changes in ttamfiial condition or the market's assessment ofstheer. We may also be
more susceptible to any single economic or regoladocurrence than a diversified investment company

Our failure to make follow-on investments in our pifolio companies could impair the value of our pifolio.

Following an initial investment in a portfolio compy, we may make additional investments in thatfplas company as
“follow-on” investments, in seeking to:

* increase or maintain in whole or in part our positas a creditor or equity ownership percentageportfolio company
e exercise warrants, options or convertible seiasrithat were acquired in the original or subsetfirancing; or
e preserve or enhance the value of our investment.

We have discretion to make follow-on investmentbjact to the availability of capital resourcesili@ on our part to
make follow-on investments may, in some circumstangeopardize the continued viability of a poitialompany and our
initial investment, or may result in a missed oppioity for us to increase our participation in @asessful operation. Even if we
have sufficient capital to make a desired followhovestment, we may elect not to make a follow+orestment because we
may not want to increase our level of risk, becavsgrefer other opportunities or because we dribited by compliance with
business development company requirements of t@ A8t or RIC requirements under the Code. Ouiitgthid make follow-
on investments may also be limited by Stellus Gaptanagement’s allocation policy.

Because we generally do not hold controlling equittiyerests in our portfolio companies, we may na &ble to exercise
control over our portfolio companies or to preveticisions by management of our portfolio companibat could decrease
the value of our investments.

We do not hold controlling equity positions in asfithe portfolio companies included in our portfoéind, although we may
do so in the future, we do not currently intendhddd controlling equity positions in our portfolemmpanies (including those
included in our portfolio). As a result, we are jgab to the risk that a portfolio company may maksiness decisions with
which we disagree, and that the management anckiolders of a portfolio company may take risketherwise act in ways
that are adverse to our interests. Due to thedétiguidity of the debt and equity investmentsttte hold in our portfolio
companies, we may not be able to dispose of owsinvents in the event we disagree with the actibasportfolio company
and may therefore suffer a decrease in the valeaioinvestments.
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Defaults by our portfolio companies will harm ourperating results.

A portfolio company’s failure to satisfy financiat operating covenants imposed by us or other isnctuld lead to
defaults and, potentially, termination of its loamsl foreclosure on its assets. This could triggess-defaults under other
agreements and jeopardize such portfolio compaatyily to meet its obligations under the loangiebt or equity securities
that we hold. We may incur expenses to the extecgéssary to seek recovery upon default or to reigatiew terms, which
may include the waiver of certain financial covetsawith a defaulting portfolio company.

Prepayments of our debt investments by our portiaibmpanies could adversely impact our results pémtions and ability
to make stockholder distributions and result in &adine in the market price of our shares.

We are subject to the risk that the debt investmesmt make in our portfolio companies may be repaiar to maturity. We
expect that our investments will generally allow fepayment at any time subject to certain persaliéhen this occurs, we
intend to generally reinvest these proceeds in tearg investments, pending their future investnemiccordance with our
investment strategy. These temporary investmentsypically have substantially lower yields tharetdebt being prepaid, and
we could experience significant delays in reinvesthese amounts. Any future investment may alsat b@ver yields than the
debt that was repaid. As a result, our resultspefations could be materially adversely affectezhi# or more of our portfolio
companies elects to prepay amounts owed to ustidddily, prepayments could negatively impact obitity to make, or the
amount of, stockholder distributions with respecbtir common stock, which could result in a declinthe market price of our
shares.

Uncertainty relating to the LIBOR calculation pros may adversely affect the value of our portfabibthe LIBOR-indexed,
floating-rate debt securities.

Concerns have been publicized that some of the reebrdnks surveyed by the British Bankers’ Assoorgtor BBA, in
connection with the calculation of LIBOR acrossage of maturities and currencies may have beeartnegorting or
otherwise manipulating the inter-bank lending agtplicable to them in order to profit on their datives positions or to avoid
an appearance of capital insufficiency or adveepaitational or other consequences that may hauéieddrom reporting inter-
bank lending rates higher than those they actsalbmitted. A number of BBA member banks have edter® settlements
with their regulators and law enforcement agenwidls respect to alleged manipulation of LIBOR, andestigations and
reviews of the framework for the setting of LIBOR tegulators and governmental authorities in vegipuisdictions are
ongoing. In this regard, the recommendation of gmeernmental committee undertaking such a revielwesult in the transfer
of the administration of LIBOR to NYSE Euronext BaitAdministration Limited in early 2014. Actions the LIBOR
Administrator, regulators or law enforcement agesichay result in changes to the manner in whicfORBs determined.
Uncertainty as to the nature of such potential gearmay adversely affect the market for LIBOR-baselrities, including our
portfolio of LIBOR-indexed, floating-rate debt seities. In addition, any further changes or refotmghe determination or
supervision of LIBOR may result in a sudden or pngled increase or decrease in reported LIBOR, wtucid have an
adverse impact on the market for LIBOR-based sgesrror the value of our portfolio of LIBOR-indexdtbating-rate debt
securities.

Our portfolio companies may incur debt that rankgually with, or senior to, our investments in suclompanies.

We invest a portion of our capital in second liex subordinated loans issued by our portfolio camgsa The portfolio
companies usually have, or may be permitted torjrather debt that ranks equally with, or senigithe loans in which we
invest. By their terms, such debt instruments nrayigde that the holders are entitled to receivenpayt of interest or principal
on or before the dates on which we are entitlagt¢eive payments in respect of the loans in whiehirwest. Also, in the event
of insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, reorgartina or bankruptcy of a portfolio company, holdefglebt instruments ranking
senior to our investment in that portfolio compavguld typically be entitled to receive paymentuti before we receive any
distribution in respect of our investment. Aftepaging senior creditors, a portfolio company mayheve any remaining assets
to use for repaying its obligation to us. In theeaf debt ranking equally with
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loans in which we invest, we would have to sharedistributions on an equal and ratable basis wilter creditors holding
such debt in the event of an insolvency, liquidatidissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy of tekevant portfolio company.

Additionally, certain loans that we make to poitiaiompanies may be secured on a second priorgig lbg the same
collateral securing senior secured debt of suchpeanes. The first priority liens on the collatenall secure the portfolio
company’s obligations under any outstanding sehétat and may secure certain other future debtntiagtbe permitted to be
incurred by the portfolio company under the agragmgoverning the loans. The holders of obligatieesured by first priority
liens on the collateral will generally control thguidation of, and be entitled to receive procefdm, any realization of the
collateral to repay their obligations in full be¢aus. In addition, the value of the collateralhia vent of liquidation will depend
on market and economic conditions, the availabditpuyers and other factors. There can be no assarthat the proceeds, if
any, from sales of all of the collateral would loéfisient to satisfy the loan obligations securgcthe second priority liens after
payment in full of all obligations secured by tlmstfpriority liens on the collateral. If such pemas were not sufficient to repay
amounts outstanding under the loan obligationsre€edoy the second priority liens, then we, to tkieet not repaid from the
proceeds of the sale of the collateral, will onyvé an unsecured claim against the portfolio colyipaemaining assets, if any.

We may also make unsecured loans to portfolio comggameaning that such loans will not benefit framy interest in
collateral of such companies. Liens on such paafcbmpanies’ collateral, if any, will secure tharfolio company’s
obligations under its outstanding secured debtraayg secure certain future debt that is permittdoetincurred by the portfolio
company under its secured loan agreements. Theiisobd obligations secured by such liens will galtgrcontrol the
liquidation of, and be entitled to receive procefedm, any realization of such collateral to replagir obligations in full before
us. In addition, the value of such collateral ia #vent of liquidation will depend on market andremmic conditions, the
availability of buyers and other factors. There bamo assurance that the proceeds, if any, frées s such collateral would
be sufficient to satisfy our unsecured loan oblaya after payment in full of all secured loan ghtions. If such proceeds were
not sufficient to repay the outstanding secured loialigations, then our unsecured claims would rapkally with the unpaid
portion of such secured creditors’ claims agaihstgortfolio company’s remaining assets, if any.

The rights we may have with respect to the colidteecuring the loans we make to our portfolio canigs with senior debt
outstanding may also be limited pursuant to thesenf one or more intercreditor agreements tha¢mter into with the holders
of such senior debt. Under a typical intercreditgreement, at any time that obligations that hagebenefit of the first priority
liens are outstanding, any of the following actitimst may be taken in respect of the collaterdl vélat the direction of the
holders of the obligations secured by the firsogty liens:

« the ability to cause the commencement of enfoergmroceedings against the collateral;
« the ability to control the conduct of such pradiegs;

« the approval of amendments to collateral document

» releases of liens on the collateral; and

« waivers of past defaults under collateral docurmien

We may not have the ability to control or directisactions, even if our rights are adversely affect

If we make subordinated investments, the obligordtte portfolio companies may not generate suffistecash flow to service
their debt obligations to us.

We may make subordinated investments that rankabetber obligations of the obligor in right of pagmnt. Subordinated
investments are subject to greater risk of detaalh senior obligations as a result of adversegdsim the financial condition
of the obligor or economic conditions in generbilvé make a subordinated investment in a portfoiimpany, the portfolio
company may be highly leveraged, and its relatiédjn debt-to-equity ratio may create increasekbribat its operations might
not generate sufficient cash flow to service alit®tebt obligations.
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The disposition of our investments may result inntimgent liabilities.

Substantially all of our investments involve lo@msl private securities. In connection with the disgon of an investment
in loans and private securities, we may be requmadake representations about the business aadcfi affairs of the
portfolio company typical of those made in connattivith the sale of a business. We may also benedjto indemnify the
purchasers of such investment to the extent thasach representations turn out to be inaccuravétbrrespect to potential
liabilities. These arrangements may result in caygnt liabilities that ultimately result in fundirdpligations that we must
satisfy through our return of distributions prexsumade to us.

We may not realize gains from our equity investment

When we invest in loans and debt securities, we acgyire warrants or other equity securities offptio companies as
well. We may also invest in equity securities dilyecTo the extent we hold equity investments, wk attempt to dispose of
them and realize gains upon our disposition of thdowever, the equity interests we receive mayapptreciate in value and,
may decline in value. As a result, we may not He #brealize gains from our equity interests, anyg gains that we do realize
on the disposition of any equity interests maybw®sufficient to offset any other losses we expeege

Risks Relating to our Common Stock

Shares of closed-end investment companies, inclgdiusiness development companies, may trade aseodint to their net
asset value.

Shares of closed-end investment companies, indudisiness development companies, frequently sideadiscount from
their net asset value. This characteristic of aesed investment companies is separate and di$tortthe risk that our net
asset value per share of common stock may de&Neecannot predict whether our common stock wiliiérat, above or below
net asset value. On July 29, 2013, our stockholdzted to allow us to issue common stock at a grlew net asset value per
share for the period ending on the earlier of the year anniversary of the date of the Companyl82Zthnual Meeting of
Stockholders and the date of the Company’s 20141AhMeeting of Stockholders, which is expectedddbld in June 2014.
Our stockholders did not specify a maximum discdgibw net asset value at which we are able t@issu common stock,
although the number of shares sold in each offeriag not exceed 25% of our outstanding common stookediately prior to
such sale. In addition, we cannot issue sharesrof@mmon stock below net asset value unless candbaf directors
determines that it would be in our and our stoctd’ best interests to do so. Sales of commork stoprices below net asset
value per share dilute the interests of existingldtolders, have the effect of reducing our nettagslue per share and may
reduce our market price per share. In additiontinaous sales of common stock below net asset valehave a negative
impact on total returns and could have a negathgact on the market price of our shares of comnbacks

There is a risk that you may not receive distribortis or that our distributions may not grow over tgrand a portion of our
distributions may be a return of capital.

We intend to make distributions on a monthly b&sisur stockholders out of assets legally availdelistribution (i.e.,
not subject to any legal restrictions under Marglléaw on the distribution thereof). We cannot assuou that we will achieve
investment results that will allow us to make acéiped level of cash distributions or year-to-y@aereases in cash distributions.
Our ability to pay distributions might be adversaffected by the impact of one or more of the fadtors described in this
annual report on Form 10-K. Due to the asset coeetest applicable to us under the 1940 Act assabss development
company, we may be limited in our ability to makstigbutions. In addition, for so long as the Ctdehcility, or any other
borrowing facility that we enter into, is outstamglj we anticipate that we may be required by itsi$eto use all payments of
interest and principal that we receive from ourent investments as well as any proceeds recereed the sale of our current
investments to repay amounts outstanding thereundiéch could adversely affect our ability to makistributions.

When we make distributions, we will be requiredieédermine the extent to which such distributioresggaid out of current
or accumulated earnings and profits. Distributimnexcess of current and accumulated
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earnings and profits will be treated as a non-texedturn of capital to the extent of an investdadsis in our stock and,
assuming that an investor holds our stock as datasiset, thereafter as a capital gain.

Our shares might trade at premiums that are unsusgble or at discounts from net asset value.

Shares of business development companies like ysdnang some periods, trade at prices higher thain net asset value
per share and, during other periods, as frequeetyrs with closed-end investment companies, taageices lower than their
net asset value per share. The perceived valuerafivestment portfolio may be affected by a numifeactors including
perceived prospects for individual companies wedhin, market conditions for common stock gengrédir initial public
offerings and other exit events for venture cafitetked companies, and the mix of companies inmwstment portfolio over
time. Negative or unforeseen developments affedtiegoerceived value of companies in our investrpenifolio could result
in a decline in the trading price of our commorckteelative to our net asset value per share. Dssipility that our shares will
trade at a discount from net asset value or at jpresthat are unsustainable are risks separatdiatict from the risk that our
net asset value per share will decrease. The figkrahasing shares of a business development aoyrtpat might trade at a
discount or unsustainable premium is more pronadifieinvestors who wish to sell their shares ielatively short period of
time because, for those investors, realizationgdia or loss on their investments is likely torbere dependent upon changes
in premium or discount levels than upon increasefeoreases in net asset value per share.

Investing in our common stock may involve an abmaerage degree of risk.

The investments we make in accordance with oursiimrent objective may result in a higher amounisi, rand higher
volatility or loss of principal, than alternativeviestment options. Our investments in portfolio pames may be speculative
and, therefore, an investment in our common stoay not be suitable for someone with lower risk rafee.

The market price of our common stock may fluctuaignificantly.

The market price and liquidity of the market forsts of our common stock may be significantly aéddy numerous
factors, some of which are beyond our control aag mot be directly related to our operating perfamnge. These factors
include:

» significant volatility in the market price andtling volume of securities of business developroentpanies or other
companies in our sector, which is not necessaglted to the operating performance of these coiapan

« changes in regulatory policies or tax guidelirggticularly with respect to RICs or business dgweent companies;
* loss of our qualification as a RIC or businesgafigoment company;

» changes in earnings or variations in operatisglts;

« changes in the value of our portfolio of investise

« changes in accounting guidelines governing vanaif our investments;

* any shortfall in revenue or net income or anyéase in losses from levels expected by investoseaurities analysts;
e departure of Stellus Capital Management'’s ke @eanel;

* operating performance of companies comparablstand

* general economic trends and other external factor

If we issue preferred stock and/or debt securitiftee net asset value and market value of our comnstock may become
more volatile.

We cannot assure you that the issuance of prefstoett and/or debt securities would result in dbigyield or return to the
holders of our common stock. The issuance of predestock and/or debt securities would likely catingenet asset value and
market value of our common stock to become moratiel If the
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distribution rate on the preferred stock, or theriest rate on the debt securities, were to apprifecnet rate of return on our
investment portfolio, the benefit of leverage te tiolders of our common stock would be reducetthdfdistribution rate on the
preferred stock, or the interest rate on the detiisties, were to exceed the net rate of returowrportfolio, the use of
leverage would result in a lower rate of returth® holders of common stock than if we had notadsihe preferred stock
and/or debt securities. Any decline in the nettagaleie of our investment would be borne entirghttie holders of our
common stock. Therefore, if the market value of portfolio were to decline, the leverage would tesua greater decrease in
net asset value to the holders of our common dtwak if we were not leveraged through the issuafigeeferred stock and/or
debt securities. This decline in net asset valueldvalso tend to cause a greater decline in thé&ebg@rice for our common
stock.

There is also a risk that, in the event of a sli&gine in the value of our net assets, we woulthlmanger of failing to
maintain required asset coverage ratios which neaefuired by the preferred stock and/or debt ##upr of a downgrade in
the ratings of the preferred stock and/or debtstiesior our current investment income might netslifficient to meet the
distribution requirements on the preferred stoctherinterest payments on the debt securitiestdardo counteract such an
event, we might need to liquidate investments deoto fund redemption of some or all of the pnefdrstock and/or debt
securities. In addition, we would pay (and the kaddof our common stock would bear) all costs aqubrses relating to the
issuance and ongoing maintenance of the prefetoet and/or debt securities. Holders of prefertedisand/or debt securities
may have different interests than holders of comstonk and may at times have disproportionate émfbe over our affairs.

Future offerings of debt securities, which would Isenior to our common stock upon liquidation, or @ity securities, which
could dilute our existing stockholders and may bengor to our common stock for the purposes of distritions, may harm
the value of our common stock.

In the future, we may attempt to increase our ehpésources by making offerings of debt or eqgségurities, including
commercial paper, medium-term notes, senior or islibated notes and classes of preferred stockrmnum stock, subject to
the restrictions of the 1940 Act. Upon a liquidatmf our company, holders of our debt securities stmares of preferred stock
and lenders with respect to other borrowings weettive a distribution of our available assetsmtoahe holders of our
common stock. Additional equity offerings by us ntilyte the holdings of our existing stockholderseduce the value of our
common stock, or both. Any preferred stock we nsayé would have a preference on distributionsabiald limit our ability to
make distributions to the holders of our commorrlst®ecause our decision to issue securities infatoye offering will
depend on market conditions and other factors beypom control, we cannot predict or estimate thewam, timing or nature of
our future offerings. Thus, our stockholders béarrisk of our future offerings reducing the manggte of our common stock
and diluting their stock holdings in us. In additiproceeds from a sale of common stock will likeéyused to increase our total
assets or to pay down our borrowings, among otbes.ur his would increase our asset coverage nadigermit us to incur
additional leverage under rules pertaining to bessndevelopment companies by increasing our bangsadr issuing senior
securities such as preferred stock or additionlai gecurities.

Item 1B.Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

We do not own any real estate or other physicghgmies materially important to our operation. @aadquarters are
located at 4400 Post Oak Parkway, Suite 2200, lday3texas. We also maintain offices in New YorkyGihd the
Washington, D.C. area. All locations are provided$ by Stellus Capital Management pursuant t@timeinistration
agreement. We believe that our office facilities switable and adequate for our business as weroptdate conducting it.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We and Stellus Capital Management are not currexibyect to any material legal proceedings, noouioknowledge, is
any material legal proceeding threatened againgtrasn time to time, we may be a party to certagel proceedings in the
ordinary course of business, including proceedmetging to the
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enforcement of our rights under contracts with pantfolio companies. While the outcome of thesalggoceedings cannot be
predicted with certainty, we do not expect thasthproceedings will have a material effect uponfimancial condition or
results of operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stoc&Haxge under the symbol “SCM.” The following tabéts forth the
range of high and low sales prices of our commonksas reported on the New York Stock Exchangeéah fiscal quarter
since our IPO on November 8, 2012:

Price Range
High Low

Fiscal 2012

Fourth quarter (from November 8, 2012 through Ddwen31, 2012 ) $ 1821 $ 14.0¢
Fiscal 2013

First quarter (from January 1, 2013 through Marth213) $ 169 $ 14.2:

Second quarter (from April 1, 2013 through June28,3) $ 153t % 14.1(

Third quarter (from July 1, 2013 through Septen@r2013) $ 153¢ $ 14.67

Fourth quarter (from October 1, 2013 through Decendi, 2013) $ 1562 $ 14.2¢
Fiscal 2014

First quarter (from January 1, 2014 to March 4,401 $ 15.0¢ $ 14.17

The last reported sale price for our common staotkhe New York Stock Exchange on March 4, 2014 84647 per share.
As of March 4, 2014, we had 29 shareholders ofrceco

Shares of BDCs may trade at a market price tHasssthan the value of the net assets attributaliteose shares. The
possibility that our shares of common stock wilde at a discount from net asset value per shaaepremiums that are
unsustainable over the long term are separate iatidat from the risk that our net asset valuegiere will decrease. It is not
possible to predict whether the common stock waltle at, above, or below net asset value per share.

Dividends

Our dividends, if any, are determined by our ba#rdirectors. We have elected to be treated foeffaldncome tax
purposes as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Cosle. RIC, we will not be taxed on our investment pany taxable income
or realized net capital gains, to the extent tnahdaxable income or gains are distributed, onékto be distributed, to
stockholders on a timely basis.

To maintain our qualification for RIC tax treatmewe must, among other things, distribute at 188%b of our net ordinary
income and realized net short-term capital gairexiress of realized net long-term capital los$es)y. Depending on the level
of taxable income earned in a tax year, we may stoo carry forward taxable income in excess ofesuryear distributions
into the next tax year and pay a 4% excise taxush sncome. Any such carryover taxable income rbedfistributed through a
dividend declared prior to filing the final tax vet related to the year which generated such taxabbme. We may, in the
future, make actual distributions to our stockhadd®f our net capital gains. We can offer no aswmeahat we will achieve
results that will permit the payment of any casstritiutions and, if we issue senior securitiesywas be prohibited from
making distributions if doing so causes us totfainaintain the asset coverage ratios stipulatetthdy 940 Act or if
distributions are limited by the terms of any of borrowings.

We have adopted an “opt out” dividend reinvestnma (“DRIP") for our common stockholders. As aulsif we make
cash distributions, then stockholders’ cash distidms will be automatically reinvested in addi@gbshares of our common
stock, unless they specifically “opt out” of theridiend reinvestment plan so as to receive cashiluisbns.
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The following table reflects the distributions [stare that our board of directors has declareduoic@mmon stock since
our IPO in November 2012, none of which are exmktagnclude return of capital:

Amount

Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Per Share
Fiscal 2012

December 7, 2012 December 21, 201 December 27,201 $  0.181:
Fiscal 2013

March 7, 2013 March 21, 2013 March 28, 2013 $ 0.340(

June 6, 2013 June 21, 2013 June 28, 2013 $ 0.340(

August 21, 2013 September 5, 201.  September 27,20. $ 0.340(

November 25, 2013 December 9, 201 December 23,201 $ 0.340(
Fiscal 2014

December 27, 2013 January 15, 2014 January 24,2014  $ 0.065(

January 20, 2014 January 31, 2014 February 14,2014 $ 0.113:

January 20, 2014 February 28, 2014  March 14, 2014 $ 0.113:

January 20, 2014 March 31, 2014 April 15, 2014 $ 0.113:
Total $ 1.946:

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we isauethl of 63,998 shares of common stock undebDfREP. This
issuance was not subject to the registration reqents of the Securities Act of 1933. The aggregalige of the shares of our
common stock issued under the DRIP was approximn&&30,385.

Use of Proceeds from Recent Sales of Registered @éeEs

None.

Purchases of Equity Securities

None.
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Stock Performance Graph

This graph compares the return on our common sigitkthat of the Standard & Poor's 500 Stock Inde# the Russell
2000 Financial Services Index, for the period fiaoeption through March 4, 2014. The graph assuhms at inception, a
person invested $100 in each of our common stbekS&P 500 Index, and the Russell 2000 FinancialiSes Index. The
graph measures total stockholder return, whichstéki® account both changes in stock price andidivs. It assumes that
dividends paid are invested in like securities.
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The graph and other information furnished undes Brart Il Item 5 of this Form 10-K shall not be cheel to be “soliciting
material” or to be “filed” with the SEC or subjeict Regulation 14A or 14C, or to the liabilities®&ction 18 of the 1934 Act.
The stock price performance included in the abaeplyis not necessarily indicative of future stpdke performance.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data for the yeansled December 31, 2012 and 2013 set forth beksvdarived from our
financial statements which have been audited byGraornton LLP, our independent registered puddicounting firm. The
data should be read in conjunction with our finahstatements and related notes thereto and “Mamagges Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” included elsewhere in this report.

For the period from
Inception (May 18,

For the year ended 2012) through
Statement of Operations Data: December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Total investment income $ 29,400,73 $ 3,696,43
Total expenses, net of fee waiver $ 13,389,00 $ 2,392,071
Net investment incom $ 16,011,72 $ 1,304,35I
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers. $ 17,544,099 $ 1,298,42.
Per Share Data:
Net asset valu $ 145 $ 14.4¢
Net investment incom $ 13 % 0.11
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers. $ 148 % 0.11
Distributions declared $ 14: % 0.1¢

At December 31, At December 31,
Balance Sheet Data: 2013 2012
Investments at fair value $ 277,504,51 $ 195,451,25
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,663,54 $ 62,131,68
Total assets $ 298,128,30 $ 262,542,97
Total liabilities $ 122,236,79 $ 88,697,02
Total net assets $ 175,891,51 $ 173,845,95
Other Data:
Number of portfolio companies at period ¢ 26 15
Weighted average yield on debt investments at gesial(!) 11.2% 12.5%

(1) Computed using the effective interest ratesafbof our debt investments, including accretidrmginal issue discount.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the statements in this annual report omHAd-K constitute forward-looking statements, whielate to future
events or our future performance or financial ctodi The forward-looking statements containechis innual report on Form
10-K involve risks and uncertainties, includingtetaents as to:

« our future operating results;

* our business prospects and the prospects ofatfoflo companies;

« the effect of investments that we expect to make;

e our contractual arrangements and relationshipls third parties;

e actual and potential conflicts of interest witlelfus Capital Management;

« the dependence of our future success on the @esmnomy and its effect on the industries in Whi@ invest;
< the ability of our portfolio companies to achigheir objectives;

e the use of borrowed money to finance a portionwfinvestments;

« the adequacy of our financing sources and workaqgtal;

< the timing of cash flows, if any, from the opévat of our portfolio companies;

< the ability of Stellus Capital Management to ligcsuitable investments for us and to monitor aidiaister our
investments;

« the ability of Stellus Capital Management toadtrand retain highly talented professionals;
e our ability to maintain our qualification as adR&nd as a BDC; and

« the effect of future changes in laws or regulaidincluding the interpretation of these laws esgllations by
regulatory authorities) and conditions in our opiagpareas, particularly with respect to businesgetbpment
companies or RICs.

Such forward-looking statements may include statgsnpreceded by, followed by or that otherwiseldel the words
“may,” “might,” “will,” “intend,” “should,” “could,” “can,” “would,” “expect,” “believe,” “estimate,™anticipate,” “predict,”
“potential,” “plan” or similar words.

” ” o ” ” ” o« ” w " ” ow

We have based the forward-looking statements imelud this annual report on Form 10-K on informatavailable to us
on the date of this annual report on Form 10-Kuattesults could differ materially from those aigated in our forward-
looking statements, and future results could diff@terially from historical performance. We undket@o obligation to revise
or update any forward-looking statements, whetkex gesult of new information, future events orottise, unless required by
law or SEC rule or regulation. You are adviseddosult any additional disclosures that we may ndikertly to you or through
reports that we in the future may file with the SE®@luding annual reports on Form 10-K, quartedyorts on Form 10-Q and
current reports on Form 8-K.

Overview

We were organized as a Maryland corporation on My2012 and formally commenced operations on Ndezi, 2012.
Our investment objective is to maximize the totlirn to our stockholders in the form of currerttome and capital
appreciation through debt and related equity imaests in middle-market companies.

We are an externally managed, non-diversified,edesnd investment company that has elected tochaated as a BDC
under the 1940 Act. As a BDC, we are required toply with certain regulatory requirements. For amste, we generally have
to invest at least 70% of our total assets in “fiyialy assets,” including securities of privatetbinly traded public U.S.
companies, cash, cash equivalents, U.S. governseentities and high-quality debt investments thatiume in one year or less.
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As a BDC, we must not acquire any assets other“tnaalifying assets” specified in the 1940 Act wsdgat the time the
acquisition is made, at least 70% of our total @sae qualifying assets. Qualifying assets incingestments in “eligible
portfolio companies.” Under the relevant SEC ruths,term “eligible portfolio company” includes gllivate operating
companies, operating companies whose securitiesoatiested on a national securities exchange,canthin public operating
companies that have listed their securities ontiama securities exchange and have a market dapiian of less than $250
million, in each case organized and with their gipal of business in the United States.

In order to expedite the ramp-up of our investnaanivities and further our ability to meet our istment objectives, on
November 7, 2012, we acquired our initial portfaimmposed of investments in 11 portfolio compafiies a private
investment fund to which the D. E. Shaw group sea&investment adviser and Stellus Capital ManaggrhLC serves as a
non-discretionary sub-adviser. The total considengbaid for our initial portfolio was $194.4 mai (excluding accrued
interest of approximately $2.3 million), consistiofy$165.2 million in cash and $29.2 million in sigof our common stock
based on the price of $15.00 per share.

We financed the cash portion of the acquisitioowf initial portfolio by (i) borrowing $152.5 mithn under a $156 million
credit facility led by SunTrust Bank (the “Bridgedility”) and (ii) using the $12.7 million of proeds we received in
connection with the sale of shares of our commoaksin a private placement transaction to certairtipasers, including
persons and entities associated with Stellus dd@aaagement, at a purchase price of $15.00 peesha

On November 13, 2012, we completed our IPO and $@a0,000 shares (including 1,200,000 shares gffrthe
underwriters’ exercise of their overallotment op)iof our common stock through a group of undemwsitat an initial public
offering price of $15.00 per share. We received2i2 3nillion of total net proceeds in connectionhwtite IPO. We used the net
proceeds from our IPO and borrowings under the iCFattility (as defined below) to pay down all amtsioutstanding under
the Bridge Facility and terminated the Bridge Ffcih conjunction with such repayment.

On November 13, 2012, we entered into a senioreda@volving credit facility (the “Credit Facility, with various
lenders, including SunTrust Bank, which also seagadministrative agent. The Credit Facility pdas for borrowings in an
aggregate amount up to $115 million on a commit&sis and an accordion for an additional $35 nmilfiar a total facility size
of $150 million. The exercise of the accordion wdtjuire sufficient borrowing base and additior@hmitments from the
existing lender group and/or new lenders. On JQly2B13, we exercised a portion of the accordiatufe to increase our
borrowing capacity under the Credit Facility frorhl® million to $135 million. Borrowings under theddit Facility bear
interest, subject to the Company’s election, oegnnum basis equal to (i) LIBOR plus 3.00% withLhBOR floor or (ii)
2.00% plus an alternate base rate based on thedtighthe Prime Rate, Federal Funds Rate plus 8r586e month LIBOR
plus 1.0%. The Company pays unused commitmentdie@$0% per annum on the unused lender commitmerdsr the
Credit Facility. Interest is payable quarterly mears. Any amounts borrowed under the Credit Fgailill mature, and all
accrued and unpaid interest thereunder will beashebpayable, on November 12, 2016. As of Decembge?®13, we had $110
million in borrowings outstanding under the Crdefitcility and substantially all our assets were gétlas collateral under the
Credit Facility.

The Company incurred costs of $2.0 million in castien with obtaining the Credit Facility, which ti@®mpany has
recorded as prepaid loan structure fees on itsraeit of assets and liabilities and is amortizivesé fees over the life of the
Credit Facility. The Company incurred costs of $illion in connection with the $20 million commiemt increase. As of
December 31, 2013, $1.6 million of such prepaidhIs@ucture fees have yet to be amortized.

We have elected to be treated for tax purposesa€ ainder Subchapter M of the Code. To maintainqualification as a
RIC, we must, among other things, meet certaincauof-income and asset diversification requiremehssof December 31,
2013, we were in compliance with the RIC requiretaeAs a RIC, we generally will not have to paypmrate-level taxes on
any income we distribute to our stockholders.
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Portfolio Composition and Investment Activity

Portfolio Composition

We originate and invest primarily in privately-hetdddle-market companies (typically those with $&illion to $50.0
million of EBITDA) through first lien, second liemnitranche and mezzanine debt financing, ofteedimith a corresponding
equity investment.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $277.5 milliorfdatvalue) invested in 26 companies. As of Decen®de 2013, our
portfolio included approximately 17% of first lielebt, 43% of second lien debt, 38% of mezzaniné aled 2% of equity
investments at fair value. As of December 31, 20d&2had $195.5 million (at fair value) investedlihcompanies. As of
December 31, 2012, our portfolio included approxeha22% of first lien debt, 20% of second lien ge&d¥% of mezzanine
debt and 1% of equity investments at fair valueaddition, we held approximately $10.0 million &&D.0 million of United
States Treasury securities at fair value at Dece®be?013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.Uthited States Treasury
securities were purchased and temporarily heledimection with complying with RIC diversificatiorquirements under
Subchapter M of the Code.

The composition of our investments as of Decemtte?813 and December 31, 2012 was as follows:

As of December 31, As of December 31,
2013 2012
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Senior Secured — First Lien $ 48,341,12 $ 48,745,76 $ 44,01421 $ 44,014,21
Senior Secured — Second Lien 117,166,00 118,171,72 38,597,29 38,597,62
Unsecured Debt 107,318,51 106,219,59 111,129,87 111,125,13
Equity 4,178,82 4,367,42; 1,714,28 1,714,28
Total Investments $ 277,004,446 $ 277,504,51 $ 195,445,67 $ 195,451,25
The following is a summary of geographical concatitn of our investment portfolio as of Decembey 3113:
% of Total
Cost Fair Value Investments
New York $ 41,093,388 $ 39,601,59 14.2%
Colorado 36,412,35 37,108,66 13.3%
Minnesota 34,087,18 34,510,92 12.40%
Massachusetts 32,305,89 32,305,89 11.6%%
Canada 27,917,64 28,215,79 10.1%
Texas 17,973,04 18,200,00 6.56%
Florida 16,910,42 16,910,42 6.09%
lllinois 14,008,78 14,115,23 5.0%
Indiana 11,169,11 11,169,11 4.02%
New Jerse! 10,176,67 10,176,67 3.67%
Pennsylvania 9,669,69! 9,738,001 3.51%
Puerto Rico 8,700,32. 8,359,54. 3.01%
Missouri 7,925,24 8,120,001 2.9%
Kentucky 4,659,65 4,888,37. 1.7¢%
Virginia 2,514,92. 2,584,27, 0.9%
Georgia 1,480,11. 1,500,001 0.5%

$277,004,46 $277,504,51 100.0(%
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The following is a summary of geographical concatitn of our investment portfolio as of Decembey 3112:

% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments

Pennsylvania $ 33,708,95 $ 33,704,20 17.20%
Canada 20,778,45 20,778,45 10.6%
Colorado 19,532,63 19,532,63 9.9%
Kentucky 17,095,64 17,095,64 8.75%
Florida 16,639,88 16,639,88 8.51%
South Carolina 15,000,00 15,000,00 7.67%
New York 13,000,00 13,000,00 6.65%
Texas 12,119,67 12,120,00 6.2(%
Massachusetts 10,000,00 10,000,00 5.12%
Utah 9,902,06: 9,902,06: 5.07%
New Jerse) 9,879,18 9,879,18! 5.05%
Indiana 8,969,95! 8,969,95! 4.5%
Connecticut 7,351,60. 7,351,60. 3.7¢%
Georgia 1,477,62, 1,477,62; 0.77%
$195,455,67 $195,451,25 100.0(%

The following is a summary of industry concentrataf our investment portfolio as of December 31120

% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments

Software $ 48,570,69 $ 48,805,89 17.5%%
Healthcare & Pharmaceuticals 35,707,71 35,874,46 12.9%%
High Tech Industries 35,211,79 35,318,24 12.7%
Telecommunications 33,269,45 33,491,49 12.0%%
Transportation: Cargo 17,883,75 18,181,90 6.55%
Beverage, Food, & Tobacco 16,689,79 17,000,00 6.13%
Services: Business 16,910,42 16,910,42 6.09%
Media: Broadasting & Subscription 13,339,96 13,532,50 4.88%
Finance 12,242,88 12,491,25 4.5(%
Services: Consumer 13,133,22 11,395,29 4.1(%
Retail 10,176,67 10,176,67 3.67%
Consumer Goods: Non-Durable 9,669,69! 9,738,001 3.51%
Energy: Oil & Gas 9,538,73 9,700,001 3.4%%
Metals & Mining 4,659,65. 4,888,37. 1.7¢%
$277,004,46 $277,504,51 100.0(%
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The following is a summary of industry concentratif our investment portfolio as of December 31120):

% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments

Consumer Goods: Non-Durable $ 33,708,95 $ 33,704,20 17.2%
Services: Business 31,117,50 31,117,50 15.9%
High Tech Industries 30,778,45 30,778,45 15.7%%
Health & Pharmaceuticals 26,884,23 26,884,23 13.7%%
Retail 19,781,25 19,781,25 10.129%
Media: Broadcasting & Subscription 15,000,00 15,000,00 7.61%
Automotive 12,345,64 12,345,64 6.32%
Telecommunications 12,119,67 12,120,00 6.2(%
Transportation: Cargo 8,969,95! 8,969,95! 4.5%
Metals & Mining 4,750,001 4,750,001 2.4%
$195,455,67 $195,451,25 100.0(%

(1) The Company has changed the industry classificati@ertain investments to conform to new indusiassifications as of
December 31, 2013.

At December 31, 2013, our average portfolio compamgstment at amortized cost and fair value was@pmately $10.7
million and $10.7 million, respectively, and ourdast portfolio company investment by amortized eosl fair value was
approximately $22.3 million and $22.3 million, restively. At December 31, 2012, our average padfobmpany investment
at amortized cost and fair value was approxim&&[y.0 million and $13.0 million, respectively, amar largest portfolio
company investment by amortized cost and fair valae approximately $33.0 million and $33.0 millioespectively.

At December 31, 2013, 58% of our debt investmeats mterest based on floating rates (subjectterést rate floors),
such as LIBOR, and 42% bore interest at fixed raie®ecember 31, 2012, 40% of our debt investmbots interest based on
floating rates (subject to interest rate floorsigisas LIBOR, and 60% bore interest at fixed rates.

The weighted average yield on all of our debt itwests as of December 31, 2013 and December 32,284
approximately 11.4% and 12.5%, respectively. Thighted average yield was computed using the effedtiterest rates for all
of our debt investments, including accretion ofjoral issue discount.

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 adechsh of $3.7 million and $12.1 million, respesly, and United
States Treasury securities of approximately $10l@mand $50.0 million, respectively. The Unit&dates Treasury securities
were purchased and temporarily held in connectith @omplying with RIC diversification requiremeniader Subchapter M
of the Code.

Investment Activity

On November 7, 2012, we acquired our initial pditsfcomposed of investments in 11 portfolio comgarfrom a private
investment fund to which the D. E. Shaw group sea&investment adviser and Stellus Capital ManagerhLC serves as a
non-discretionary sub-adviser. The total considengbaid for our initial portfolio was $194.4 mdh in total (excluding
accrued interest of approximately $2.3 million) sisting of $165.2 million in cash and $29.2 millionshares of our common
stock based on the price of $15.00 per share. tialiportfolio was comprised of a portion of theans to middle-market
companies that were originated over the previoteetlgears by the Stellus Capital Management, Liv@stment team during
their time with the D. E. Shaw group and were del@or our initial portfolio because they are $anio the type of
investments we originate. Our initial portfolio inded middle-market loans that had an internal régig of 2 or better (i.e.,
investments that were performing at or above exgtiects and whose risks were neutral or favorabiepared to the expected
risk at the time of the original investment). Wegaged an independent third-party valuation firmrageist in our determination
of the acquisition price of the initial portfolishich was ultimately approved by our board of dioes (which includes a
majority of independent directors). The independkeint-party valuation firm that we engaged is dlse third party
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valuation firm that was engaged by the D. E. Sheau to value the initial portfolio for the D. Eh&w group fund in the
ordinary course of such fund’s operations.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we madé.$illion of investments in 16 new portfolio cpanies and six to
existing portfolio companies. During the year enBetember 31, 2013, we received $97.4 million imcpeds principally from
prepayments of our investments, including $3.5iamilfrom amortization of certain other investments.

Subsequent to November 7, 2012 through Decembe&(P®, we made $67.5 million ($68.4 million at pafjnvestments
in 7 new portfolio companies and none for existiogtfolio companies. During the period from NovemBe2012 through
December 31, 2012, we received $66.5 million ircpeals principally from prepayments of our investtmamd the paydown
and amortization of certain other investments.

Our level of investment activity can vary substalhifrom period to period depending on many fastamcluding the
amount of debt and equity capital to middle madahpanies, the level of merger and acquisitiorvigtithe general
economic environment and the competitive envirortmf@mthe types of investments we make.

Asset Quality

In addition to various risk management and monigtools, Stellus Capital Management uses an imagst rating system
to characterize and monitor the credit profile ardected level of returns on each investment irpoutfolio. This investment
rating system uses a five-level numeric scale.fohewing is a description of the conditions assted with each investment
rating:

« Investment Rating 1 is used for investments @inatperforming above expectations, and whose resksin favorable

compared to the expected risk at the time of tigiral investment.

« Investment Rating 2 is used for investments dnatperforming within expectations and whose rigksain neutral
compared to the expected risk at the time of thgiral investment. All new loans are initially rdte.

« Investment Rating 3 is used for investments @natperforming below expectations and that reqeloser monitoring,
but where no loss of return or principal is expdctortfolio companies with a rating of 3 may bé @ucompliance
with financial covenants.

« Investment Rating 4 is used for investments énatperforming substantially below expectations whdse risks have
increased substantially since the original investtm&hese investments are often in work out. Innesits with a rating
of 4 are those for which some loss of return butoss of principal is expected.

« Investment Rating 5 is used for investments @natperforming substantially below expectations whdse risks have
increased substantially since the original investimehese investments are almost always in worklauestments witl
a rating of 5 are those for which some loss ofrretind principal is expected.

The following table shows the investment rankinfjewr investments at fair value as of December281,3 and December
31, 2012:

Number of
Fair Value as of Portfolio

Investment Rating December 31, 201 % of Portfolio Companies
1 $ 21,169,11 8% 2
2 236,580,55 85% 22
3 8,359,54. 3% 1
4 11,395,29 4% 1
5 — 0% —

Total $ 277,504,51 10C% 26
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Number of
Fair Value as of Portfolio

Investment Rating December 31, 201 % of Portfolio Companies
1 $ — — —
2 195,451,25 10C% 15
3 — — —
4 _ _ _
5 — — —
Total $ 195,451,25 10C% 15

Loans and Debt Securities on Non-Accrual Status

We will not accrue interest on loans and debt sgesiif we have reason to doubt our ability tolecl such interest. As of
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we hézhne on non-accrual.

Results of Operations

An important measure of our financial performargaét increase (decrease) in net assets resultimgdperations, which
includes net investment income (loss), net realgaid (loss) and net unrealized appreciation (dzgtien). Net investment
income (loss) is the difference between our incmom interest, dividends, fees and other investnmegtdme and our operating
expenses including interest on borrowed funds.rf@tzed gain (loss) on investments is the diffeecbetween the proceeds
received from dispositions of portfolio investmeatw their amortized cost. Net unrealized appriecigtepreciation) on
investments is the net change in the fair valueunfinvestment portfolio.

Comparison of the Years ended December 31, 2013@edember 31, 2012
Revenues

We generate revenue in the form of interest incomedebt investments and capital gains and distabst if any, on
investment securities that we may acquire in pbotftompanies. Our debt investments typically haterm of five to seven
years and bear interest at a fixed or floating. faterest on our debt securities is generally pleyguarterly. Payments of
principal on our debt investments may be amortaest the stated term of the investment, deferreddweral years or due
entirely at maturity. In some cases, our debt immegts may pay interest in-kind, or PIK. Any outstiang principal amount of
our debt securities and any accrued but unpaidestevill generally become due at the maturity datee level of interest
income we receive is directly related to the bataoicinterest-bearing investments multiplied by wesghted average yield of
our investments. We expect that the total dollaoam of interest and any dividend income that wa ¢éaincrease as the size
of our investment portfolio increases. In additiaie, may generate revenue in the form of prepayifie&s; commitment, loan
origination, structuring or due diligence feessféar providing significant managerial assistaned eonsulting fees. Total
investment income for the year ended December @3 Btaled $29.4 million and was primarily compbsé interest income,
including $1.1 million of PIK income and $1.4 milfi of miscellaneous fees. Total investment incoonelfe period from
Inception (May 18, 2012) through December 31, 2@a8 $3.7 million and was composed entirely of igeincome, including
$18,000 of PIK income.

The increase in our total investment income fonthar ended December 31, 2013 as compared to devimdnception
(May 18, 2012) through December 31, 2012 was pilynattributable to the fact that we only acquimagt initial investment
portfolio on November 7, 2012 and, as a result,total investment income for the period from inéept(May 18, 2012)
through December 31, 2012 only reflected our raagfimvestment income from the initial investmeuottfolio for an
approximate two-month period. Our total investmanobme for year ended December 31, 2013 reflecfed-gear of
investment income from our investment portfoliocBincrease was partially offset by a decreasheémteighted average yield
of our debt investments from 12.5% to 11.4% duthmyyear-over-year period.

Expenses

Our primary operating expenses include the paymkfges to Stellus Capital Management under thestient advisory
agreement, our allocable portion of overhead exggenader the administration
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agreement and other operating costs described bélenbear all other out-of-pocket costs and expeoseur operations and
transactions, which may include:

« the cost of calculating our net asset value uidiclg the cost of any third-party valuation sersice
« the cost of effecting sales and repurchasesaeshof our common stock and other securities;

- fees payable to third parties relating to makimgestments, including out-of-pocket fees and espsr(such as travel
expenses) associated with performing due diligameckreviews of prospective investments;

- transfer agent and custodial fees;

e out-of-pocket fees and expenses associated vatketing efforts;

- federal and state registration fees and any stmckange listing fees;

* U.S. federal, state and local taxes;

e independent directors’ fees and expenses;

e brokerage commissions;

- fidelity bond, directors’ and officers’ liabilitinsurance and other insurance premiums;
« direct costs, such as printing, mailing, longatiee telephone and staff;

» fees and expenses associated with independeit$ and outside legal costs;

e costs associated with our reporting and compéantdigations under the 1940 Act and other apple&bsS. federal and
state securities laws; and

» other expenses incurred by Stellus Capital Mamege or us in connection with administering ouribess, including
payments under the administration agreement tledb@ased upon our allocable portion of overheadi€sulo the
review of our board of directors).

Operating expenses, net of fee and expense warénd year ended December 31, 2013 totaled $1BidmOperating
expenses totaled $2.4 million for the period frarodption through December 31, 2012. Operating esggemet of fee and
expense waiver consisted of base management feesitive fees, administrative services expenses,rigdated to the Credit
Facility, professional fees, valuation fees, insgmexpenses, directors’ fees and other genera@mdhistrative expenses,
partially offset by the waiver of incentive fee.

The base management fee for the year ended Dec&hp2013 was $4.2 million. The base managemerfofethe period
from Inception (May 18, 2012) through DecemberZ112 was $0.5 million, as provided for in the inwesnt advisory
agreement.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Companyred incentive fees totaling $4.6 million, asnpared to none for
the period from Inception (May 18, 2012) throughcBmber 31, 2012. The Company records an expensgshatthe
statements of operations relating to the capitedgimcentive fee payable by the Company to itestment adviser when the
unrealized gains on its investments exceed alizedicapital losses on its investments given toetfeat a capital gains
incentive fee would be owed to the investment ahifsthe Company were to liquidate its investmgaittfolio at such time.
The actual incentive fee payable to the Compamyestment adviser related to capital gains wiltlbeermined and payable in
arrears at the end of each fiscal year and willihe only realized capital gains for the period.och®ecember 31, 2013, $0.3
million of the $4.6 million in accrued incentiveeferelated to such expense accrual.

Pursuant to its agreement with the Company, St€htal Management waived $1.8 million and alitsfincentive fee for
the year ended December 31, 2013 and the periadlftoeption (May 18, 2012) through December 31,220&spectively, in
order to support a minimum annual dividend yiel®%§ based on the price per share of our commoik stc@nnection with
our IPO.
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The total gains incentive fee payable to StellupitahManagement under the investment managemeaéagnt as of
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was $0i8mand $0, respectively.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility were $110.0liori and $38.0 million as of December 31, 2013 &rtember 31,
2012, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 the effeirtteeest rate under the Credit Facility was apprately 3.3%
(approximately 3.7% including commitment fees oa timused portion of the Credit Facility). Intensgpaid quarterly in
arrears. The Company recorded interest and feensepef $3.1 million for the year ended December2813, of which $2.3
million was interest expense, $0.5 million was atmation of loan fees paid on the Credit Facil®®,3 million related to
commitment fees on the unused portion of the Cirealiflity, and $50 thousand related to loan adrriai®n fees. The average
borrowings under the Credit Facility for the yeaded December 31, 2013 were $68 million.

For the period from Inception (May 18, 2012) thrbudecember 31, 2012 the effective interest rateutite Credit Facility
was approximately 3.6% (approximately 5.4% inclgdiommitment fees on the unused portion of the iCFatility). The
Company recorded interest and fee expense of $lliBmfor the period ended December 31, 2012, bfol $0.2 million was
interest expense, $61 thousand related to commitfees on the unused portion of the Credit Facditg $18 thousand related
to other loan fees. The average borrowings undeCtiedit Facility for the period ended December2®,3 were $25 million.

Administrative services expenses for the year efszember 31, 2013 totaled $0.9 million, $0.4 mwillof which was
allocated to us from Stellus Capital Managemenguasadministration. Administrative services expngom Inception
through December 31, 2012 totaled $103 thousarglit®Bisand was related to our third party admiaistrand $40 thousand
of which was allocated to us from Stellus Capitardgement, LLC. Expenses for valuation, professiees, insurance
expenses, directors’ fees, and other general amih&drative expense for the year ended Decembge2@®113 and the period
from Inception through December 31, 2012 totale@® $2illion and $1.2 million, respectively.

Net Investment Income

For the year ended December 31, 2013, net investimesme was $16.0 million, or $1.33 per commorrst{pased on
12,059,293 weighted-average common shares outataatiDecember 31, 2013). Net investment incomledies expense
accruals of $0.3 million of incentive fees relatedealized and unrealized gains.

For the period from Inception (May 18, 2012) thrbudecember 31, 2012, net investment income wasi$illidn, or $0.11
per common share (based on a weighted average@83,823 common shares outstanding for the permd fnception
through December 31, 2012.

Net Realized Gains and Losses

We measure realized gains or losses by the differertween the net proceeds from the repaymert®asd the
amortized cost basis of the investment, using preeific identification method, without regard torealized appreciation or
depreciation previously recognized.

Repayments of investments and amortization of atbgrin investments for the year ended Decembe2(®113 totaled
$97.4 million and net realized gains totaled $1illion.

We did not recognize any realized gains or lossesun investments during the period from Incepiigiay 18, 2012)
through December 31, 2012.

Net Change in Unrealized Appreciation of Investment

Net change in unrealized appreciation primarilyeet the change in portfolio investment valuesrduthe reporting
period, including the reversal of previously reeadppreciation or depreciation when gains or base realized.

Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciaionnvestments and cash equivalents for the geded December 31,
2013 totaled $0.5 million.
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Net change in unrealized depreciation on investmnaled $6 thousand for the period from Incep(iday 18, 2012)
through December 31, 2012 and primarily relatedrieealized depreciation on our holdings of Unit¢at&s treasury securities.

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operaton

For the year ended December 31, 2013, net incieass assets resulting from operations totaled % &llion, or $1.45
per common share (based on 12,059,293 weighte@g&eommon shares outstanding at December 31, 2013.

For the period from Inception (May 18, 2012) thrbudecember 31, 2012, net increase in net assetkimgsfrom
operations totaled $1.3 million, or $0.11 per comrsbare (based on 12,035,023 common shares outgjatidDecember 31,
2012).

Financial condition, liquidity and capital resources

Cash Flows from Operating and Financing Activities

Our operating activities used cash of $68.6 milonthe year ended December 31, 2013, primarilgoinnection with the
purchase of investments. Our financing activitmstfie year ended December 31, 2013 provided da&b00l million
primarily from borrowings under the Credit Facility

Our operating activities used cash of $164.4 niilfior the period from Inception (May 18, 2012) thgh December 31,
2012, primarily in connection with the purchasensestments, including the initial investment polith we acquired
immediately prior to our IPO from a private investm fund to which the D. E. Shaw group serves @assitment adviser and
Stellus Capital Management serves as a non-disoae¥ sub-adviser. Our financing activities prodidash of $226.5 million
primarily from our IPO and borrowings under the dité&acility.

Our liquidity and capital resources are derivedrthhe Credit Facility and cash flows from operasioimcluding investment
sales and repayments, and income earned. Our primsarof funds from operations includes investmenfsortfolio companies
and other operating expenses we incur, as wellepayment of dividends to the holders of our comistock. We used, and
expect to continue to use, these capital resoasegell as proceeds from turnover within our pdigfand from public and
private offerings of securities to finance our istreent activities.

Although we expect to fund the growth of our invesht portfolio through the net proceeds from futpublic and private
equity offerings and issuances of senior securitigfsiture borrowings to the extent permitted by 1940 Act, our plans to
raise capital may not be successful. In this regaoir common stock trades at a price below bentcurrent net asset value
per share, we may be limited in our ability to eaégjuity capital given that we cannot sell our camrstock at a price below
net asset value per share unless our stockholgprs\& such a sale and our board of directors medeain determinations in
connection therewith. A proposal, approved by dockholders at our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stocklkeodd authorizes us to
sell shares equal to up to 25% of our outstandamgroon stock of our common stock below the thenesumet asset value per
share of our common stock in one or more offerfiogshe period ending on the earlier of (i) May 2814, the one year
anniversary of our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockleot] or (ii) the date of our 2014 Annual Meetingstéckholders. We
would need similar future approval from our stodklers to issue shares below the then current set aalue per share any
time after the expiration of the current approaladdition, we intend to distribute between 90%d 400% of our taxable
income to our stockholders in order to satisfyrémuirements applicable to RICs under Subchaptef tle Code.
Consequently, we may not have the funds or thébil fund new investments, to make additionakisiments in our portfolio
companies, to fund our unfunded commitments tofplastcompanies or to repay borrowings. In addititive illiquidity of our
portfolio investments may make it difficult for ts sell these investments when desired and, ifreeegjuired to sell these
investments, we may realize significantly less ttraair recorded value.

Also, as a business development company, we génaralrequired to meet a coverage ratio of tagakés, less liabilities
and indebtedness not represented by senior sesutibi total senior securities, which include &lbor borrowings and any
outstanding preferred stock, of at least 200%. Téggiirement limits
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the amount that we may borrow. We were in compkanith the asset coverage at all times. As of Déeer1, 2013 and
December 31, 2012 our asset coverage ratio was 248°809%, respectively. The amount of leverageviieaemploy will
depend on our assessment of market conditions thed factors at the time of any proposed borrowsugh as the maturity,
covenant package and rate structure of the progomedwings, our ability to raise funds through tb&uance of shares of our
common stock and the risks of such borrowings withe context of our investment outlook. Ultimatede only intend to use
leverage if the expected returns from borrowingntike investments will exceed the cost of such lvamg. As of December
31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we had cash of®8i@dn and $12.1 million, respectively, and UrdtStates Treasury
securities of approximately $10.0 million and $5tillion, respectively.

Credit Facility

The Credit Facility is a syndicated multi-curreriagility and provides for borrowings up to $135 lioih and matures in
November 2016. As of December 31, 2013, we had $iillion of borrowings outstanding under the Crdefiility.
Borrowings under the Credit Facility generally bederest at LIBOR plus 3.00%. The Credit Faciitge may be increased up
to $150 million, subject to certain conditions, wédditional new lenders or through an increassmmitments of current
lenders. On July 30, 2013, we exercised a portidhepaccordian feature to increase our borrowemggeity from $115 million
to $135 million. The Credit Facility is a four-ye@volving facility secured by substantially all@ir investment portfolio
assets. The Credit Facility contains affirmative agstrictive covenants, including but not limitednaintenance of a minimum
shareholders’ equity amount and maintenance di@ahtotal assets (less total liabilities othiean indebtedness) to total
indebtedness of not less than 2.0:1.0. In additidhe asset coverage ratio described in the piregséntence, borrowings
under the Credit Facility (and the incurrence ataie other permitted debt) are subject to compgkawith a borrowing base
that applies different advance rates to differgpes of assets in our portfolio. We have also gahyeagreed under the terms of
the Credit Facility not to incur any additional sesd indebtedness. In addition, we have agreetbrintur any additional
unsecured indebtedness that has a maturity datetprihe maturity date of the Credit Facility. th@armore, the Credit Facility
contains a covenant requiring us to maintain coamgk with RIC provisions at all times, subject ¢éotain remedial provisions.
Unless extended, the period during which the Compagly make and reinvest borrowings under the Ceatitlity will expire
on November 13, 2015 and the maturity date of tresliC Facility is November 12, 2016.

Other

We have applied for a license to form and opemat8BIC subsidiary; however, the application is sabjo approval by the
SBA. We can make no assurances that the SBA wplley@ our application, or the time frame in whicé would receive a
license, should one ultimately be granted. The S&Isidiary would be allowed to issue SBA-guarahtésbentures up to a
maximum of $150 million under current SBIC reguwas, subject to required capitalization of the SBiUBsidiary and other
requirements. SBA guaranteed debentures genemlly longer maturities and lower interest rates titaer forms of debt that
may be available to us, and we believe thereforeldveepresent an attractive source of debt capital.

Contractual Obligations
As of December 31, 2013, our future fixed committedar cash payments on contractual obligationgfmh of the next
five years and thereafter are as follows:

2019 and
Total 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 thereafter

(dollars in thousands)

Credit facility payable $110,00( $110,00(
Short-term loan $ 9,00C $ 9,00(
Administrative service
expense $ 46C $ 46C
$119,46( $ 9,46( $ — $110000 $ — $ — $ =
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We may be a party to financial instruments withtmdfance sheet risk in the normal course of busitesneet the financial
needs of our portfolio companies. As of December2B13, our only off-balance sheet arrangementsistad of $20.9 million
of unfunded commitments, which was comprised of $24illion to provide debt financing to three ofrquortfolio companies.
As of December 31, 2012, our only off-balance sheetngements consisted of a $2.0 million unfurmEdmitment to provide
debt financing to one of our portfolio companies.

Regulated Investment Company Status and Dividends

We have elected to be treated as a RIC under Spteshé of the Code. So long as we maintain ouustas a RIC, we will
not be taxed on our investment company taxablenirgcor realized net capital gains, to the exterttgbah taxable income or
gains are distributed, or deemed to be distributedtockholders on a timely basis.

Taxable income generally differs from net incomefiioancial reporting purposes due to temporary peananent
differences in the recognition of income and expenand generally excludes net unrealized appieciat depreciation until
realized. Dividends declared and paid by us inax yeay differ from taxable income for that yeasash dividends may
include the distribution of current year taxableame or the distribution of prior year taxable imscarried forward into and
distributed in the current year. Distributions atsay include returns of capital.

To qualify for RIC tax treatment, we must, amonlestthings, distribute, with respect to each tagafelar, at least 90% of
our investment company net taxable income (i.e.hetiordinary income and our realized net shortiteapital gains in excess
of realized net long-term capital losses, if aitfjve maintain our qualification as a RIC, we malsto satisfy certain
distribution requirements each calendar year iriotd avoid a federal excise tax on or undistridgarnings of a RIC.

We intend to distribute to our stockholders betw@@# and 100% of our annual taxable income (whicktudes our
taxable interest and fee income). However, the rwants contained in the Credit Facility may prohisitfrom making
distributions to our stockholders, and, as a resuolild hinder our ability to satisfy the distritmrnt requirement. In addition, we
may retain for investment some or all of our ngatde capital gains (i.e., realized net long-teapital gains in excess of
realized net short-term capital losses) and tneett amounts as deemed distributions to our stodkins! If we do this, our
stockholders will be treated as if they receivetialcdistributions of the capital gains we retaiaed then reinvested the net
after-tax proceeds in our common stock. Our stoltldre also may be eligible to claim tax credits {orcertain circumstances,
tax refunds) equal to their allocable share oftt#xewe paid on the capital gains deemed distribtagdem. To the extent our
taxable earnings for a fiscal taxable year falblethe total amount of our dividends for that fisgaar, a portion of those
dividend distributions may be deemed a return pftahto our stockholders.

We may not be able to achieve operating resultsvtiiigallow us to make distributions at a specifiwel or to increase the
amount of these distributions from time to timeatidition, we may be limited in our ability to madtistributions due to the
asset coverage test for borrowings applicable @sus business development company under the 1848nd due to
provisions in Credit Facility. We cannot assurekhmlders that they will receive any distributiarsdistributions at a
particular level.

In accordance with certain applicable Treasury lagns and private letter rulings issued by therdmal Revenue Service,
a RIC may treat a distribution of its own stocKuwafilling its RIC distribution requirements if eacstockholder may elect to
receive his or her entire distribution in eithesltar stock of the RIC, subject to a limitationtttiee aggregate amount of cash
to be distributed to all stockholders must be asi®0% of the aggregate declared distributiotadfmany stockholders elect to
receive cash, each stockholder electing to reaagsh must receive a pro rata amount of cash (Wélpalance of the
distribution paid in stock). In no event will anpskholder, electing to receive cash, receive tlikaa 20% of his or her entire
distribution in cash. If these and certain othguieements are met, for U.S. federal income taypses, the amount of the
dividend paid in stock will be equal to the amoahtash that could have been received
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instead of stock. We have no current intentionayfipg dividends in shares of our stock in accordamith these Treasury
regulations or private letter rulings.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 to the financial statements for a detsoni of recent accounting pronouncements, if amgluding the expected
dates of adoption and the anticipated impact otfittaacial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements reguinanagement to make estimates and assumptioreffénctithe reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and exgsei@hanges in the economic environment, finameéakets and any other
parameters used in determining such estimates cauwiske actual results to differ. In addition to discussion below, our
significant accounting policies are further desedlin the notes to the financial statements.

Valuation of portfolio investments

As a business development company, we generalgstrin illiquid loans and securities including dahtl equity securities
of middle-market companies. Under procedures astadadl by our board of directors, we value investiséor which market
quotations are readily available at such marketatioms. We obtain these market values from angeddent pricing service or
at the mean between the bid and ask prices obtioedat least two brokers or dealers (if availablinerwise by a principal
market maker or a primary market dealer). Debteaudty securities that are not publicly traded twoge market prices are not
readily available are valued at fair value as daeteed in good faith by our board of directors. Sdetermination of fair values
may involve subjective judgments and estimatebpaljh we engage independent valuation providemview the valuation of
each portfolio investment that does not have ailseadailable market quotation at least once eaddrigr.. Investments
purchased within 60 days of maturity are valuedoat plus accreted discount, or minus amortizethpune, which
approximates value. With respect to unquoted seesiriour board of directors, together with ourdpendent valuation
advisors, values each investment considering, arotmgy measures, discounted cash flow models, cosopa of financial
ratios of peer companies that are public and ddetors.

When an external event such as a purchase tramsagtiblic offering or subsequent equity sale ogcaur board of
directors uses the pricing indicated by the extezmant to corroborate and/or assist us in ouratédn. Because there is not a
readily available market for substantially all bétinvestments in our portfolio, we value most of portfolio investments at
fair value as determined in good faith by our baairdirectors using a documented valuation policgt a consistently applied
valuation process. Due to the inherent uncertaifiyetermining the fair value of investments thatt have a readily
available market value, the fair value of our inwesnts may differ significantly from the valuesttauld have been used had
a readily available market value existed for sustestments, and the differences could be material.

With respect to investments for which market quotet are not readily available, our board of disestundertakes a multi-
step valuation process each quarter, as descréded/b

*  Our quarterly valuation process begins with eaatifolio company or investment being initially uald by the
investment professionals of Stellus Capital Managrgmesponsible for the portfolio investment;

* Preliminary valuation conclusions are then docut®e and discussed with our senior management ifidsSCapital
Management;

e The audit committee of our board of directorstheviews these preliminary valuations;
« Atleast once each quarter, the valuation fohgaartfolio investment is reviewed by an independeuation firm; and

* The board of directors then discusses valuatiodglatermines the fair value of each investmenuinpmrtfolio in gooc
faith, based on the input of Stellus Capital Mamagt, the independent valuation firm and the acmlihmittee.
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Revenue recognition

We record interest income on an accrual basisg@xtent that we expect to collect such amountsldams and debt
securities with contractual PIK interest, whichnegents contractual interest accrued and addéet toan balance that
generally becomes due at maturity, we do not adetidenterest if the portfolio company valuatiordioates that such PIK
interest is not collectible. We will not accruedrgst on loans and debt securities if we have refmssdoubt our ability to collect
such interest. Loan origination fees, original essiscount and market discount or premium are abigpéd, and we then accrete
or amortize such amounts using the effective istareethod as interest income. Upon the prepaynfemtaan or debt security,
any unamortized loan origination is recorded asrégt income. We record prepayment premiums orslaad debt securities
as interest income. Dividend income, if any, wal lecognized on the ex-dividend date.

Net realized gains or losses and net change in walized appreciation or depreciation

We measure realized gains or losses by the differéetween the net proceeds from the repaymert@asad the
amortized cost basis of the investment, withouarddo unrealized appreciation or depreciation ipesly recognized. Net
change in unrealized appreciation or depreciagédfiects the change in portfolio investment valuesrdy the reporting period,
including any reversal of previously recorded ulizea appreciation or depreciation, when gainesés are realized.

Unrealized Gains Incentive Fee

Under GAAP, the Company calculates the unrealizédsgincentive fee payable to the Advisor as if@wenpany had
realized all investments at their fair values athefreporting date. Accordingly, the Company aesra provisional unrealized
gains incentive fee taking into account any unzealigains or losses. As the provisional incentaeei$ subject to the
performance of investments until there is a retibmaevent, the amount of provisional unrealizethgancentive fee accrued at
a reporting date may vary from the incentive fest th ultimately realized and the differences cdaddmaterial.

Payment-in-Kind Interest

We have investments in our portfolio that contalPlid interest provision. Any PIK interest is addedhe principal balance
of such investments and is recorded as incombeipbrtfolio company valuation indicates that sBtK interest is collectible.
In order to maintain our status as a RIC, substhytll of this income must be paid out to stodkless in the form of
dividends, even if we have not collected any cash.

Recent Developments

Investment Portfolio

On January 30, 2014, we made a $6.5 million investrin the unsecured term loan of SKOPOS. We algested $0.7
million in the company’s equity.

On January 31, 2014, we made a $6.1 million investrin the first lien term loan of T2 Systems.
On January 31, 2014, we made a $2.5 million investrin the second lien term loan of Vandelay Indest

On January 31, 2014, we received full repaymerdwrsecond lien loan of Ascend Learning at parltiespin total
proceeds of $10.0 million.

On February 25, 2014, we realized our second tian bf Transaction Network Services (TNS) at 10&sulting in total
proceeds of $2.6 million.

On February 28, 2014, we realized $3.0 million of $8.0 million investment in the second lien tdoan of
Telecommunications Management, LLC. at 101.5 regpin total proceeds of $3.0 million.

On February 28, 2014, we realized our second tian to Aderant North America, Inc. at 101.5 resgliin total proceeds
of $1.5 million.

Credit Facility

The outstanding balance under the Credit FacitpfaMarch 4, 2014 was $104.0 million due to npagaments subsequent
to December 31, 2013.
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Dividend Declared

On January 21, 2014, the Company announced thaisitthanging the frequency of its dividend paymenmghareholders
from quarterly to monthly. On January 20, 2014,@wmmpany’s board of directors declared a regulantivip dividend for each
of January 2014, February 2014 and March 2014 ks

Declared Ex-Dividend Date Record Date Payment Date Amount per Share
1/20/2014 1/29/201. 1/31/201- 2/14/201: $ 0.113:
1/20/2014 2/26/201- 2/28/201- 3/14/201- % 0.113:
1/20/2014 3/27/201- 3/31/201- 4/15/201: $ 0.113:
Asset Quality

Subsequent to year end we placed one loan on roaetatus, which represents approximately 4.7 #eloan portfolio
at cost and 4.1% based on valuation as of Dece&1he&2013.

ltem 7A.Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are subject to financial market risks, includatgnges in interest rates. For the years endedrbtesr 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, 58% and 40%, or 19 and 9 dbtes in our portfolio bore interest at floatinges respectively. For the
year ended December 31, 2013, 17 of these 19 Inamg portfolio have interest rate floors, whicivie effectively converted
the loans to fixed rate loans in the current irderate environment. In the future, we expect okbans in our portfolio will
have floating rates. Assuming that the Statemeitssets and Liabilities as of December 31, 2013evi@ remain constant and
no actions were taken to alter the existing inter@® sensitivity, a hypothetical one percentéase in LIBOR would increase
our net income by less than $144,000 due the cuileors in place. A hypothetical decrease in LIB@Buld not affect our net
income, again, due to the aforementioned floodae. Although we believe that this measure igcatile of our sensitivity to
interest rate changes, it does not adjust for piaterhanges in credit quality, size and compositib the assets on the balance
sheet and other business developments that cdelct akt increase in net assets resulting fromaijmers, or net income.
Accordingly, no assurances can be given that actsalts would not differ materially from the poti@houtcome simulated by
this estimate. We may hedge against interest lattftions by using standard hedging instrumentt ss futures, options and
forward contacts subject to the requirements oft®#0 Act. While hedging activities may insulateagminst adverse changes
in interest rates, they may also limit our abitibyparticipate in the benefits of lower interesesawith respect to our portfolio of
investments. For the years ended December 31, &0d December 31, 2013, we did not engage in hedgitigties.

Changes in interest rates will affect our costunfding. Our interest expense will be affected bgnges in the published
LIBOR rate in connection with the Credit Facilis of December 31, 2013, we had not entered inyargerest rate hedging
arrangements. At December 31, 2013, based on qlicaple levels of our Credit Facility, a 1% incsean interest rates would
have decreased our net investment income by appadely $671 thousand for the year ended Decemhe2(@B.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Stellus Capital Investment Corporation

We have audited the accompanying statements ofseesseé liabilities of Stellus Capital Investmentr@aration (a Maryland
corporation) (the “Company”), including the schexbubf investments, as of December 31, 2013 and, 20itPthe related
statements of operations, changes in net assetsash flows for the year ended December 31, 2@d3ree period from
inception (May 18, 2012) to December 31, 2012 &edfinancial highlights for the year ended Decen81er2013 and the
period from inception (May 18, 2012) to December&112. These financial statements and financilights are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupoasibility is to express an opinion on these foiahstatements and
financial highlights based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoemadklit to obtain reasonable assurance about whathénancial statements
are free of material misstatement. We were notg@ad#o perform an audit of the Company’s interraitol over financial
reporting. Our audits included consideration oéintl control over financial reporting as a basisdesigning audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, bufarahe purpose of expressing an opinion on thectiffeness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordlg, we express no such opinion. An audit alsoudek examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and diselssn the financial statements, assessing theuatiog principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as wellaluating the overall financial statement pregt@n. Our procedures
included verification by confirmation of securitias of December 31, 2013 and 2012, by correspordeitic the portfolio
companies and custodians, or by other appropriatiiag procedures where replies where not receiVéel believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements and finahisighlights referred to above present fairlyalhmaterial respects, the
financial position of Stellus Capital Investmentr@aration as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, andethéts of its operations
and its cash flows for the year ended Decembe2®13 and the period from inception (May 18, 201t2pecember 31, 2012
and the financial highlights for the year endedémeber 31, 2013 and the period from inception (M&y2D12) to December
31, 2012 in conformity with accounting principlesngrally accepted in the United States of America.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP
Houston, Texas
March 6, 2014
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS

Non-controlled, non-affiliated investments, at faadue (amortized cost
of $277,004,466 and $195,455,671, respectively)

Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable

Deferred offering costs

Receivable for affiliated transaction
Prepaid loan structure fees
Prepaid expenses

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Payable for investments purchased
Credit facility payable
Short-term loan
Base management fees payable
Incentive fees payable
Accrued offering costs
Interest payable
Directors' fees payable
Unearned revenue
Other accrued expenses and liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets

NET ASSETS

Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share (100,000;6ares
authorized, 12,099,022 and 12,035,023 shares issudutstanding,
respectively)

Paid-in capital
Accumulated undistributed net realized gain
Distributions in excess of net investment income

Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investiwand cash
equivalents

Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

Net Asset Value Per Share

December 31,

December 31,

2013 2012
$277,504,51  $195,451,25
13,663,54 62,131,68
4,713,91; 2,573,83.
205,16 —
43,45( —
1,586,40! 1,947,82
411,32: 438,38
$298,128,30  $262,542,97
$ — $ 4,750,00
110,000,00 38,000,00
9,000,001 45,000,94
1,176,73 527,03
1,056,94; —
— 147,12:
234,05 66,47
96,00 29,45
146,96! —
526,10 175,99:
122,236,79 88,697,02
$175,891,51  $173,845,95
$ 1209 $ 12,03
175,614,73 174,714,83
1,027,39; —
(1,262,65) (874,98()
499,94 (5,937)
$175,891,51  $173,845,95
$298,128,30  $262,542,97
$ 145  $ 14.4¢




See notes to financial statements
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the period
from Inception

For the year (May 18, 2012)

ended through
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest income $27,995,48 $ 3,696,43
Other income 1,405,25I —
Total Investment Income 29,400,73 3,696,43.
OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees 4,242 60 527,03:
Valuation fees 497,22t 184,50(
Administrative services expenses 883,05( 103,48
Incentive fees 4,647,80: —
Professional fees 649,86: 734,36!
Directors' fees 350,00( 109,43¢
Insurance expense 468,04¢ 79,27¢
Interest expense and other fees 3,123,70. 282,62¢
Credit facility fees — 317,59:
Other general and administrative expenses 314,19¢ 53,754
Total Operating Expenses 15,176,49 2,392,071
Waiver of Incentive Fees (1,787,48) —
Total expenses, net of fee waiver 13,389,00 2,392,07!
Net Investment Income 16,011,72 1,304,35
Net Realized Gain on Investments and Cash Equivalén 1,027,39. —
Net Change in Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciatiohon

Investments and Cash Equivalents 505,87¢ (5,937)

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operatian $17,54499 $ 1,298,422
Net Investment Income Per Share $ 13: % 0.11
Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from OperatianPer Share $ 148 $ 0.11
Weighted Average Shares of Common Stock Outstanding 12,059,229 12,035,02

See notes to financial statements
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operations
Net investment incom
Net realized gain on investments and cash equiis

Net change in unrealized appreciation (deprecigtioninvestments and ca

equivalents
Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operatian
Stockholder distributions
Distributions from net investment income
Capital share transactions
Issuance of common stock
Reinvestments of stockholder distributions
Sales load
Offering costs
Net increase in net assets resulting from capitahare transactions
Total increase in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year/period

Net assets at end of year/period (includes $1,268%and $874,986 of
distributions in excess of net investment income)

See notes to financial statements
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For the year

For the period
from Inception
(May 18, 2012)

ended through
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
$ 16,011,72 $ 1,304,35
1,027,39; —
505,87t (5,937)
17,544,99 1,298,42.
(16,399,40) (2,179,34)
— 180,409,14
899,96 112,94¢
- (4,959,72)
— (835,500
899,96: 174,726,87
2,045,55! 173,845,95
173,845,95 —
$175,891,51 $173,845,95
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the period
from Inception

For the year (May 18, 2012)
ended through
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers $ 17,54499 $ 1,298,42

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net agsstdting from

operations to net cash used in operating activities
Purchases of investments

(176,445,41)

(232,708,41)

Proceeds from sales and repayments of investments 97,437,43 66,458,11
Net change in unrealized appreciation on investment (504,459 4,41°¢
Increase in investments due to PIK (1,073,58) (18,049
Accretion of discount (436,58 (28,179
Net realized gain on investments (1,030,649 —
Changes in other assets and liabilities
Increase in interest receivable (2,140,08) (2,573,83)
Increase in receivable for affiliated transaction (43,450) —
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and fees 388,47¢ (2,386,20)
Increase (decrease) in payable for investmentshpsed (4,750,00) 4,750,001
Increase in management fees payable 649,69¢ 527,03:
Increase in directors' fees payable 66,54¢ 29,45
Increase in incentive fees payable 1,056,94. —
Increase in interest payable 167,57- 66,47"
Increase in unearned revenue 146,96! —
Increase in other accrued expenses and liabilities 350,11( 175,99:
Net cash used in operating activit (68,615,47) (164,404,76)
Cash flows from financing activities
Gross proceeds from common shares issued — 151,250,00
Borrowings on bridge note — 156,000,00
Payments on bridge note — (156,000,00)
Sales load — (4,959,72)
Offering costs paid (352,289 (688,37
Stockholder distributions paid (15,499,43) (2,066,39)
Net borrowings under credit facility 72,000,00 38,000,00
Net paydowns of short-term loan (36,000,94) 45,000,94
Net cash provided by financing activiti 20,147,33 226,536,45
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (48,468,14) 62,131,68
Cash and cash equivalents balance at beginningasfperiod 62,131,68 —




Non-cash items

Purchase of portfolio companies through the isse@icommon
stock $ —

Accrued deferred offering costs —

Shares issued pursuant to Dividend Reinvestment Pla 899,96

See notes to financial statements
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Principal
Headquarters/ Amount/ Amortized % of Net

Investments Industry Shares Cost Fair Value @ Assets
Non-controlled, non-affiliated investments
Aderant North America Inc. Atlanta, GA
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.75%,

LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 6/20/2019 Software $1,500,000 $ 1,480,11 $ 1,500,00 0.85%
Ascend Learning, LLC Burlington, MA
Term Loan-Second Lien, Euro + 10.009

Euro floor 1.50%, due 12/6/2017 Software $10,000,000 10,000,00 10,000,00 5.6%
Atkins Nutitional Holdings I, Inc. Denver, CO
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.50%, Beverage, Food, &

LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 4/3/2019 Tobacco $17,000,000 16,689,79 17,000,00 9.61%
ATX Networks West Ajax, Ontario
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.00% cash,

2.00% PIK, due 5/12/2018 () High Tech Industries ~ $21,203,012 21,203,01 21,203,01 12.0%%
Binder and Binder Hauppauge, NY
Term Loan-Unsecured, 13.00% cash,

2.00% PIK, due 2/27/2018) Services: Consumer $13,133,228 13,133,22 11,395,29 6.48%
Blackhawk Mining, LLC Lexington, KY
Term Loan-First Lien, 12.50%, due

10/9/2016 Metals & Mining $4,806,071 4,445,36 4,547,02. 2.5¢%
Common Shares, ClassB 36 shares 214,28 341,34 0.1%

Total 4,659,65 4,888,37 2.7¢%
Calero Software, LLC Rochester, NY
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 9.50%,

LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 6/5/2019 Telecommunications $10,000,000 9,802,54 9,802,54 5.571%
Managed Mobility Holdings, LLC Ltd.

Partnership®) 8,507 shares 500,00t 500,00 0.26%

Total 10,302,54 10,302,54 5.85%
Colford Capital Holdings, LLC () New York, NY
Term Loan-Unsecured 12.25%, due

5/31/20189 Finance $12,500,000 12,242,88 12,491,25 7.1(%
ConvergeOne Holdings Corp. Eagan, MN
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 8.00%, LIBO}

floor 1.25%, due 5/8/2019 Telecommunications $12,185,95 12,017,67 12,104,67 6.88%
Eating Recovery Center, LLC Denver, CO
Mezzanine Term Loakisecured, 12.00'

cash, 1.00% PIK, due Health &

6/28/20183) Pharmaceuticals $18,400,000 18,075,42 18,400,00 10.46%
Common Shares, Class® 17,528 share 1,647,13 1,708,66 0.97%

Total 19,722,56 20,108,66 11.43%
Empirix Inc. {0 Billerica, MA
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 9.50%,

LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 5/1/2020 Software $21,407,850 20,988,49 20,988,49 11.9%%
Common Shares, Class® 1,304 shares 1,304,23 1,304,23 0.74%

1,317,406



Total 22,305,89 22,305,89 12.68¥
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Principal
Headquarters/ Amount/ Amortized % of Net
Investments Industry Shares Cost Fair Value () Assets
Grupo HIMA San Pablo, Inc. San Juan, PR
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 7.00%, LIBO} Health &

floor 1.50%, due 1/30/2018 Pharmaceuticals $4,962,500 $ 4877,83 $ 4,811,14. 2.7%
Term Loan-Second Lien, 13.75%, due

7/30/2018 $ 4,000,000 3,822,48 3,548,401 2.02%

Total 8,700,32. 8,359,54. 4.7¢%
Help Systems, LLC Eden Prairie, MN
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.50%,

LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 6/28/2020 Software $15,000,000 $ 14,784,68 $ 15,000,00 8.5%
Hostway Corp. Chicago, Il
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.75%,

LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 12/13/2020 High Tech Industries $6,750,000 6,615,23 6,615,23 3.7¢%
Livingston International, Inc. Toronto, Ontario
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 7.75%,

LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 4/18/2028) Transportation: Cargc $6,841,739 6,714,63 7,012,78: 3.99%
Refac Optical Group{®) Blackwood, NJ
Term A Loan-First Lien, L + 7.50%, due

9/30/2018 Retail $2,924,824 2,924,82. 2,924,82. 1.6€%
Term B Loan-First Lien, L + 8.50% cast

1.75% PIK, due 9/30/2018) $ 6,151,853 6,151,85: 6,151,85: 3.5(%
Revolver-First Lien, L + 7.50%, due

9/30/2018 $ 1,100,000 $ 1,100,00 1,100,00 0.65%

Total 10,176,67 10,176,67 5.7%
Securus Technologies Holdings Dallas, TX
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 7.75%,

LIBOR floor 1.25%, due 4/30/2021 Telecommunications $8,500,000 8,434,30! 8,500,001 4.82%
Snowman Holdings, LLC®) Lebanon, IN
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.50%, due

2/15/2019 Transportation: Cargc $11,169,118 11,169,11 11,169,11 6.35%
SPM Capital, LLC Bloomington, MN
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 5.50%, LIBOI Healthcare &

floor 1.50%, due 10/31/2017 Pharmaceuticals $7,406,250 7,284,82. 7,406,25! 4.21%
SOQAD, LLC Tarrytown, NY
Term Loan-Unsecured, 11.00% cash, Media: Broadcasting &

1.25% PIK, due 4/30/2018) Subscription $5,000,000 4,914,72. 4,912,501 2.7%
Common Shares, Series® 5,000 share: 50,00( 50,00  0.0%%
Preferred Shares, Series%A 4,500 share: 450,00( 450,000  0.26%

Total 5,414,72. 5,412,501 3.08%
Studer Group, LLC (The) 49 Gulf Breeze, FL
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.00%, due

1/31/2019 Services: Business $16,910,423 16,910,42 16,910,42 9.61%
Telecommunications Management, LLC

Sikeston, MO
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.00%, Media: Broadcasting &

LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 10/30/2020 Subscription $8,000,000 7,925,24 8,120,001 4.62%
Telular Corp. Chicago, IL
Term Loan-Second Lien, Euro + 8.00%

Euro floor 1.25%, due 6/24/2020 High Tech Industries $7,500,000 7,393,55 7,500,001 4.26%
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Investments Industry Shares Cost Fair Value @ Assets
Transaction Network Services, Inc. Reston, VA
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 8.00%,

LIBOR floor 1.00%, due 8/14/2020 Telecommunications $2,550,000 $ 2,514,92. $ 2,584,27. 1.47%
Varel International Energy Funding

Corp. Carrollton, TX
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 7.75%, LIBOI

floor 1.50%, due 7/17/2017 Energy: Oil & Gas $9,700,000 9,538,73i 9,700,001 5.51%
Woodstream Corp. 1) Lititz, PA
Senior Subordinated Note-Unsecured, Consumer Goods:

11.50%, due 2/28/2017 Non-Durable $9,137,72 $ 8,825,56! $ 8,898,31. 5.06%
Woodstream Group, Inc.?) Lititz, PA
Senior Subordinated Debt-Unsecured, Consumer Goods:

11.50%, due 2/28/2017 Non-Durable $862,27' $ 844,12¢ $ 839,68° 0.48%
Total Non-controlled, non-affiliated

investments $277,004,46¢  $277,504,51( 157. 7%
Cash Equivalents®
United States Treasury Bills 0%, due

01/30/2014 $10,000,00 10,000,00 9,999,90! 5.6%%
Total Short-Term Investments 10,000,00 9,999,901 5.6%
LIABILITIES IN EXCESS OF OTHER

ASSETS (111,612,89€ (63.46)%
NET ASSETS

$175,891,51« 100.00%

(1) See Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statemfenta discussion of the methodologies used toesakcurities in the
portfolio.

(2) The Company’s obligations to the lenders of@nedit Facility are secured by a first prioritycaaty interest in all non-
controlled non-affiliated investments and cash,dxdlude Cash Equivalents.

(3) Represents a payment-in-kind security. At thgom of the issuer, interest can be paid in castash and PIK. The
percentage of PIK shown is the maximum PIK thatlbarelected by the company.

(4) The investment is not a qualifying asset uriderinvestment Company Act of 1940, as amended.
(5) Security is non-income producing.

(6) This investment also includes an unfunded term anmitment in an amount not to exceed $12,500,800nterest rate «
12.25% fixed, and a maturity of May 31, 2018. Tihigestment is accruing an unused commitment fée5% per annum.

(7) This investment also includes a delayed drawm tean commitment in an amount not to exceed £ 5D, an interest rate
of LIBOR plus 9.50%, and a maturity of May 1, 20Z0is investment is accruing an unused commitmeaof 0.50% per
annum.

(8) This investment also includes an undrawn remghloan commitment in an amount not to exceed $HIM an interest rate
of LIBOR plus 7.50%, and a maturity of SeptemberZ®L8. This investment is accruing an unused camerit fee of
0.50% per annum. This investment amended its niptiar9/30/18 on 9/30/13.

(9) This investment amended its maturity to 2/153h3/15/13. The interest rate was amended from ddsh pay plus 2% PIK
to 12.5% cash pay.

(10)This investment amended its maturity to 1/31/198/13. The interest rate was amended from 12% jgag plus 2% Pl}
to 12% cash pay.

(11)Amended maturity to 2/18/17 on 3/4/13. Amended tatkl.5% fixed on 12/6/13.
Abbreviation Legend



PIK — Payment-In-Kind
L — LIBOR
Euro — Euro Dollar
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Principal
Headquarters/ Amount/ % of Net
Investments Industry Shares Cost Fair Value @ Assets
Non-controlled, non-affiliated investments®)
Aderant North America Inc. Atlanta, GA
Term Loan-Second Lien, Prime + 7.75%
due 6/20/201%?) Services: Business $1,500,000 $ 1,477,62. $ 1,477,62. 0.85%
Ascend Learning, Inc. Burlington, MA
Term Loan-Second Lien, Euro + 10.009
Euro floor 1.50%, due 12/6/204% High Tech Industries $10,000,000 10,000,00 10,000,00 5.75%
ATX Networks West Ajax, Ontario
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.00% cash,
2.00% PIK, due 5/12/2016) (3) (4) High Tech Industries  $20,778,456 20,778,45 20,778,45  11.9:%
Baja Broadband, LLC Fort Mill, SC
Term Loan-Second Lien, L + 11.00%, Media: Broadcasting &
LIBOR floor 1.50%, due 12/20/201%) Subscription $15,000,000 15,000,00 15,000,00 8.62%
Binder and Binder Hauppauge, New Yorl
Senior Subordinated Note-Unsecured,
13.00% cash, 2.00% PIK, due
2/27/20163) Services: Business $13,000,000 13,000,00 13,000,00 7.48%
Blackhawk Mining, LLC Lexington, KY
Term Loan-First Lien, 12.50%, due
10/5/20167) Metals & Mining $5,000,000 4,535,71. 4,535,71. 2.61%
Common Shares, Class® ©® 36 shares 214,281 214,28t 0.12%
Total 4,750,001 4,750,001 2.7%
Eating Recovery Center, LLC Denver, CO
Mezzanine Term Loaksecured, 12.00'
cash, 1.00% PIK, due
12/28/20182) $18,400,000 18,032,63 18,032,63  10.31%
Healthcare &
Common Shares, SeriestA Pharmaceuticals 86,667 share 1,500,00 1,500,00t 0.86%
Total 19,532,63 19,532,63 11.2%
Holley Performance Products Bowling Green, KY
Term Loan-First Lien, Prime + 6.00%,
Prime floor 3.50%, due 11/30/20%% Automotive $12,500,000 12,345,64 12,345,64 7.1(%
Refac Optical Group & Blackwood, NJ
Term A Loan-First Lien, L + 7.50%,
LIBOR 0.2077%, due 3/23/2019 Retail $3,780,40 3,780,40: 3,780,40: 2.1¢%
Term B Loan-First Lien, L + 8.50%,
LIBOR 0.2077%, 1.75% PIK, due
3/23/20163 (3) $6,098,781 6,098,78 6,098,78 3.51%
Total 9,879,18! 9,879,18! 5.6%
Securus Technologies Holdings Dallas, TX
Term Loan-Second Lien, Euro + 9.00%
Euro floor 1.75%, due 6/1/201® Telecommunications $12,000,000 12,119,67 12,120,00 6.97%

Snowman Holdings, LLC Lebanon, IN

Term Loan-Unsecured, 11.00% cash,



SPM Capital, LLC Stamford, CT

Term LoanFirst Lien, Euro + 5.50%, Eu
floor 1.50%, due 10/31/201% Capital Markets $7,500,000 7,351,60. 7,351,60. 4.22%
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Headquarters/ Amount/ % of Net

Investments Industry Shares Cost Fair Value @ Assets
Sportsmans Warehouse Holdings, Inc. Midvale, UT
Term Loan-First Lien, L + 7.00%, LIBO}

1.50%, due 11/13/2018® Retail $10,000,000 $ 9,902,06: $ 9,902,06: 5.7(%
Studer Group, LLC (The) Gulf Breeze, FL
Term Loan-Unsecured, 12.00% cash,

2.00% PIK, due 3/29/201% Services: Business $16,639,880 16,639,88 16,639,88 9.57%
Woodstream Corp. Lititz, PA
Subordinated Debt-Unsecured, 12.00% Consumer Goods:

due 2/27/201%? Non-Durable $3,017,977 2,910,98 2,906,24. 1.67%
Woodstream Group, Inc. Lititz, PA
Senior Subordinated Note-Unsecured, Consumer Goods:

12.00%, due 2/27/2015 Non-Durable $31,982,02 30,797,96 30,797,96 17.7%
Total Non-controlled, non-affiliated

investments $195,455,67: $195,451,25 112.4%
Cash Equivalents®
United States Treasury Bills 0%, due

01/30/2013 $50,000,00 $50,001,01  $49,999,50( 28.7%
Total Short-Term Investments $50,001,01  $49,999,50( 28.7¢%
LIABILITIES IN EXCESS OF OTHER

ASSETS (71,604,80)  (41.19%

NET ASSETS $173,845,95 100.0(%

(1) See Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statemfenta discussion of the methodologies used toesakcurities in the
portfolio.

(2) Coupon is subject to Prime and LIBOR floors.

(3) Represents a payment-in-kind security whichsgaportion of interest in additional par.

(4) The investment is not a qualifying asset uriderinvestment Company Act of 1940, as amended.
(5) Security is non-income producing.

(6) Common shares position will settle after Decengii, 2012.

(7) The loan will settle after December 31, 2012.

(8) This instrument also includes an undrawn revolgan commitment in an amount not to exceed $2,@M),an interest ra
of Libor plus 7.5%, and a maturity of March 23, B0This investment is accruing an unused fee d%.per annum.

(9) The Company'’s obligations to the lenders of@nedit Facility are secured by a first prioritycadty interest in all non-
controlled non-affiliated investments and cash,dxdlude Cash Equivalents.

Abbreviation Legend
PIK — Payment-In-Kind
L —LIBOR

Euro — Euro Dollar
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STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

Stellus Capital Investment Corporation (the “Compamwas formed as a Maryland corporation on May 2&12
(“Inception”) and is an externally managed, closed: non-diversified management investment compang.Company has
elected to be treated as a business developmemiacgnunder the Investment Company Act of 1940 nasnaled (the “1940
Act”) and as a regulated investment company (“RI01)U.S. federal income tax purposes. The Compgamyestment
activities are managed by Stellus Capital Managenidi©C (“Stellus Capital” or the “Advisor”).

On November 7, 2012, the Company priced its infigblic offering (the “Offering”), at a price of $100 per share.
Through its initial public offering the Company d&,200,000 shares (including 1,200,000 sharesigfirthe underwriters’
exercise of the overallotment option) for grosscpeals of $138,000,000. As of December 31, 2013Ctmepany has raised
$180,409,145 including (i) $500,010 of seed capmitaitributed by Stellus Capital, (i) $12,749,98i private placement to
certain purchasers, including persons and entigesciated with Stellus Capital, and (iii) $29,1%8%, in connection with the
acquisition of the Company’s initial portfolio. Ti@ompany’s shares are currently listed on the NenkYstock Exchange
under the symbol “SCM”.

Immediately prior to the pricing of the OfferingetiCompany acquired its initial portfolio of asskeis$165,235,169 in cash
and $29,159,145 in shares of the Company’s comruak,sor $194,394,314 in total. The cash portiothefacquisition of the
initial portfolio was financed by (i) borrowing $2285,179 under a credit facility (“Bridge Facifityvith Sun Trust and (ii)
using the $12,749,990 of proceeds received in adiorewith the private placement. The Bridge Fagitiad a maturity date of
not more than 7 days after the pricing date ofQffering. Borrowings under the Bridge Facility ban¢erest at the highest of
(i) a prime rate, (ii) the Federal Funds Rate @I#&% and (iii) Libor plus 1.00%. The Company utieelnet proceeds from the
Offering together with borrowings under the Compar@redit Facility (see Note 9) to repay in fulktbutstanding
indebtedness under the Bridge Facility, at whicimipihe Bridge Facility terminated.

The Company’s investment objective is to maximimetbtal return to its stockholders in the forntofrent income and
capital appreciation through debt and related gdoitestments in middle-market companies. The Coms&eks to achieve its
investment objective by originating and investimgrarily in private U.S. middle-market companiegpftally those with $5.0
million to $50.0 million of EBITDA (earnings beforaterest, taxes, depreciation and amortizatidmpugh first lien, second
lien, unitranche and mezzanine debt financing, witiresponding equity co-investments. It sourcesstments primarily
through the extensive network of relationships thatprincipals of its investment adviser have tgved with financial sponsor
firms, financial institutions, middle-market compagy management teams and other professional iatkanies.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemieae been prepared on the accrual basis of acaguntconformity
with accounting principles generally accepted m thmited States of America (“GAAP”) and pursuanthe requirements for
reporting on Form 10-K and Article 10 of regulatiBX.

In the opinion of management, the consolidatediirel results included herein contain all adjusttagoonsisting solely of
normal recurring accruals, considered necessarhéofair presentation of financial statementstifigr periods included herein.
Certain reclassifications have been made to cepi@m period balances to conform with current preation.

In accordance with Regulation S-X under the Seiesrifct of 1933 and Securities Exchange Act of 1984 Company
does not consolidate portfolio company investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES - (continued)

The accounting records of the Company are mairdamé).S. dollars.

Portfolio Investment Classification

The Company classifies its portfolio investmentthwie requirements of the 1940 Act, (a) “Controldstments” are
defined as investments in which the Company owneerttan 25% of the voting securities or has rightaintain greater than
50% of the board representation, (b) “Affiliate &stments” are defined as investments in which th@agany owns between
5% and 25% of the voting securities and does ne hights to maintain greater than 50% of the beapdesentation, and (c)
“Non-controlled, non-affiliate investments” are ohefd as investments that are neither Control Ineests or Affiliate
Investments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

At December 31, 2013, cash balances totaling $3423xceeded FDIC insurance protection levelgestihg the
Company to risk related to the uninsured balandieofAhe Company’s cash deposits are held at lagiablished high credit
quality financial institutions and management hadgthat risk of loss associated with any uninsbaénces is remote.

Cash consists of bank demand deposits. We deeairceliS. Treasury Bills and other high-quality, giterm debt
securities as cash equivalents. At the end of &schl quarter, we may take proactive steps to enae are in compliance with
the RIC diversification requirements under Subcéiapt of the Internal Revenue Code, which are depetdpon the
composition of our total assets at quarter endnvilg accomplish this in several ways, including pasing U.S. Treasury Bills
and closing out positions after quarter-end or teraply drawing down on the Credit Facility (se®fioote 9). On December
31, 2013, we held approximately $10 million of UT8easury Bills with a 25 day maturity purchasethgs$1 million in margin
cash and the proceeds from a $9 million short tean from Raymond James. The loan had an effeativeial interest rate of
approximately 6.25%. On January 2, 2014, we saddmaining Treasury Bills, repaid the remaindethefloan from
Raymond James and received back the $1 million imaayment (net of fees and expenses of $1,875).

On December 31, 2012, we held approximately $50anibf U.S. Treasury Bills with a 30 day maturgiyrchased using
$5 million in cash and the proceeds from a $45iomlshort term loan from Raymond James. The loahameeffective annual
interest rate of approximately 1%. On January 232@e sold the Treasury Bills, repaid the $45ionllloan from Raymond
James and received back the $5 million margin payifreet of fees and expenses of $8,943).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the statement of assets anttitiedin conformity with GAAP requires managementmake estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amouassdts and liabilities and disclosure of contingasets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements. Changes in tha@uic environment, financial markets and any offa@ameters used in
determining these estimates could cause actudtgesudiffer materially.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs consist of fees and exggepaid in connection with the closing of creddilfies and are
capitalized at the time of payment. Deferred finagcosts are amortized using the straight linehméover the term of the
credit facility.

Investments

As a business development company, the Companyeikrally invest in illiquid loans and securitiesluding debt and
equity securities of middle-market companies. Umtecedures established by the board of directioesCompany intends to
value investments for which market quotations aeslily available at
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NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES - (continued)

such market quotations. The Company will obtairs¢hearket values from an independent pricing semicat the mean
between the bid and ask prices obtained from at t@a brokers or dealers (if available, otherwdgea principal market maker
or a primary market dealer). Debt and equity séiegrthat are not publicly traded or whose markieteg are not readily
available will be valued at fair value as deterrdiiregood faith by our board of directors. Suchedatination of fair values
may involve subjective judgments and estimatebpaljh the Company will also engage independenttialu providers to
review the valuation of each portfolio investmerdttdoes not have a readily available market quootait least once quarterly.
Investments purchased within 60 days of maturityvd valued at cost plus accreted discount, omusi@mortized premium,
which approximates value. With respect to unquaeesgirities, our board of directors, together with independent valuation
advisors, will value each investment considerimgpag other measures, discounted cash flow modatsparisons of financial
ratios of peer companies that are public and ddetors. When an external event such as a purdhasgaction, public offering
or subsequent equity sale occurs, the board wélltie pricing indicated by the external event toauworate and/or assist us in
our valuation. Because the Company expects thed thi#l not be a readily available market for masfythe investments in our
portfolio, the Company expects to value most of pantfolio investments at fair value as determimedood faith by the board
of directors using a documented valuation policg arconsistently applied valuation process. Dubédnherent uncertainty of
determining the fair value of investments that dohmve a readily available market value, thevalue of our investments may
differ significantly from the values that would leleen used had a readily available market valistegixfor such investments,
and the differences could be material.

In following these approaches, the types of factioas will be taken into account in fair value fmg investments will
include, as relevant, but not be limited to:

e available current market data, including relevaamd applicable market trading and transaction cvaiges;
e applicable market yields and multiples;

e security covenants;

e call protection provisions;

e information rights;

« the nature and realizable value of any collaferal

« the portfolio company’s ability to make paymerits,earnings and discounted cash flows and thé&etam which it
does business;

e comparisons of financial ratios of peer compatties are public;
e comparable merger and acquisition transactioms; a

< the principal market and enterprise values.

Revenue Recognition

We record interest income on an accrual basisg@ttient such interest is deemed collectible. and and debt securities
with contractual PIK interest, which representstcastual interest accrued and added to the loaambaelthat generally becomes
due at maturity, we do not accrue PIK intereshéf portfolio company valuation indicates that sBtK interest is not
collectible. We will not accrue interest on loamsl alebt securities if we have reason to doubt bilityato collect such interest.
Loan origination fees, original issue discount amatket discount or premium are capitalized, andhee accrete or amortize
such amounts using the effective interest methadtasest income. Upon the prepayment of a loatketat security, any
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NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES - (continued)

unamortized loan origination fee is recorded asregt income. We record prepayment premiums orslaad debt securities as
interest income. Dividend income, if any, will lecognized on the ex-dividend date.

Net Realized Gains or Losses and Net Change in Wtimed Appreciation or Depreciation

We measure realized gains or losses by the differéetween the net proceeds from the repaymert@asd the
amortized cost basis of the investment, withouarddo unrealized appreciation or depreciation ipesly recognized. Net
change in unrealized appreciation or depreciagédfiects the change in portfolio investment valuesrdy the reporting period,
including any reversal of previously recorded ulizea appreciation or depreciation, when gainesés are realized.

Payment-in-Kind Interest

We have investments in our portfolio that contalPllid interest provision. Any PIK interest is addedhe principal balance
of such investments and is recorded as incombeipbrtfolio company valuation indicates that sBtK interest is collectible.
In order to maintain our status as a RIC, substhiytll of this income must be paid out to stodkless in the form of
dividends, even if we have not collected any cash.

Investment Transaction Costs

Costs that are material associated with an investin@nsaction, including legal expenses, are oediin the cost basis of
purchases and deducted from the proceeds of sallessisuch costs are reimbursed by the borrower.

Payable for Unsettled Securities Transaction

The Company records all investments on a tradeluizis.

U.S. Federal Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be treated as a RIG snlehapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 188&mended, and
to operate in a manner so as to qualify for ther@atment applicable to RICs. In order to quatifya RIC, among other things,
the Company is required to timely distribute tositsckholders at least 90% of investment compaxgtiia income, as defined
by the Code, for each year. So long as the Compeaigtains its status as a RIC, it generally will pay corporate-level U.S.
federal income taxes on any ordinary income ortaapains that it distributes at least annualljtdcstockholders as dividends.
Rather, any tax liability related to income earbgdhe Company represents obligations of the Corylpanvestors and will
not be reflected in the financial statements ofGoepany.

The Company evaluates tax positions taken or egpdotbe taken in the course of preparing its éaxrns to determine
whether the tax positions are “more-likely-than®raftbeing sustained by the applicable tax autlofitax positions deemed to
meet a “more-likely-than-not” threshold would bessded as a tax benefit or expense in the appégadliod. Although the
Company files federal and state tax returns, itomntax jurisdiction is federal. The 2012 fedemt tyear for the Company
remains subject to examination by the Internal ReeeService.

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 tmepany had not recorded a liability for any ungrired tax
positions. Management’s evaluation of uncertainp@asitions may be subject to review and adjustraeatlater date based
upon factors including, but not limited to, an ovifgy analysis of tax laws, regulations and intetgtiens thereof. The
Company’s policy is to include interest and peesltielated to income taxes, if applicable, in gairemd administrative
expenses. There were no such expenses for thegdad December 31, 2013.
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NOTE 1 — NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES - (continued)

Earnings per Share

Basic per share calculations are computed utiliimgweighted average number of shares of comnoak stutstanding for
the period. The Company has no unvested shardsCessember 31, 2013 or December 31, 2012. As dtrélkare is no
difference between diluted earnings per share asitlper share amounts.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard issued Accounting Standards Update (“A207)3-04,
Liabilities (Topic 405): Obligations Resulting frodoint and Several Liability Arrangements for Whtble Total Amount of the
Obligation Is Fixed at the Reporting Date (“ASU 3@14"). ASU 2013-04 provides additional guidancetfe recognition,
measurement, and disclosure of obligations reguftiom joint and several liability arrangementsWdrich the total amount of
the obligation within the scope of this guidancéxed at the reporting date. Public companiesragaired to apply ASU 2013-
04 prospectively for interim and annual reportirgipds beginning after December 15, 2013.

In June 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@@ssued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU") 20&3Financial
Services — Investment Companies (Topic 946): Amesnumto the Scope, Measurement, and DisclosureifReggents (“ASU
2013-08"). ASU 2013-08 amends the criteria thatraeéin investment company, clarifies the measuréggdance and
requires certain additional disclosures. Public panmes are required to apply ASU 2013-08 prospelgtifor interim and
annual reporting periods beginning after DecembeR013.

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemerdgdsaued by the Financial Accounting Standards @¢&ASB”) or
other standards setting bodies that are adoptéldeb@ompany as of the specified effective date. Thmpany believes that the
impact of recently issued standards that are no¢fective will not have a material impact onfitsancial statements upon
adoption.

NOTE 2 — RELATED PARTY ARRANGEMENTS

Investment Advisory Agreement

The Company entered into an investment advisorgeagent with Stellus Capital. Pursuant to this agesd, the Company
has agreed to pay to Stellus Capital a base afeeiaf 1.75% of gross assets, including assetshpsea with borrowed funds
or other forms of leverage and excluding cash asth @quivalents, and an annual incentive fee.

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and Dece8tib2012, the Company incurred base managemenexgesise to
the Advisor of $4,242,608 and $527,034, respedtivel

The annual incentive fee consists of two parts. fiflsepart is calculated and payable quarterlgrirears and equals 20.0%
of the “pre-incentive fee net investment incomes ¢@fined in the agreement) for the immediatelg@ding quarter, subject to
a hurdle rate of 2.0% per quarter (8.0% annualiaed)a “catch-up” feature. The net pre-incentiveiferestment income used
to calculate this part of the incentive fee is atsduded in the amount of our gross assets usedltulate the 1.75% base
management fee. For the year ended December 33, @@L.Company incurred $2,554,847 of incentive fedated to pre-
incentive fee net investment income, net of amowgiised as discussed below. As of December 31, 281,856,942 of such
incentive fees are currently payable to the Adviaod $109,957 of pre-incentive fee net investnredme incentive fees
incurred by the Company were generated from defénterest (i.e. PIK and certain discount accrétenmd are not payable
until such amounts are received in cash. There neiacentive fees payable to the advisor as ofebder 31, 2012.
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The second part of the annual incentive fee isutatied and payable in arrears as of the end of easendar year (or, upon
termination of the investment advisory agreemenfahe termination date) and equals 20.0% oatigregate cumulative
realized gains from inception through the end @heealendar year, computed net of aggregate cuivelisalized losses and
aggregate cumulative unrealized depreciation thrdbg end of such year, less the aggregate ambantyqreviously paid
realized gain incentive fees. For the year endezkBer 31, 2013, the Company adjusted its reafja@ts incentive fee
accrual by $0.

With respect to the incentive fee expense accerlating to the unrealized gains incentive fee, GAARuires that the
realized gains incentive fee accrual consider thewative aggregate unrealized capital appreciatidhe calculation, as a
realized gains incentive fee would be payable ¢hsunrealized appreciation were realized, evenghauch unrealized
appreciation is not permitted to be consideredhinwdating the fee actually payable under the imest management
agreement. For accounting purposes in accordartbeG#AP only, in order to reflect the potential lizad gains incentive fee
that would be payable for a given period as itiallealized gains were realized, the Company’s atdon unrealized gains
incentive fees includes an amount related to uimedicapital appreciation of $305,467 and $0 d3exfember 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, respectively. There can be surasce that such unrealized capital appreciatidarealized in the
future. Accordingly, such fee, as calculated armchaed would not necessarily be payable under thestment management
agreement, and may never be paid based upon theutation of capital gains incentive fees in subsedqperiods.

For the years ending December 31, 2013 and Decedih@012, the Advisor agreed to waive its incenfae to the extent
required to support an annualized dividend yiel®.6P%6 (to be paid on a quarterly basis) based emptite per share of our
common stock in connection with the Offering. Hug {year ended December 31, 2013, the adviser waicedtive fees related
to pre-incentive fee net investment income of $1,487. The amounts waived in 2012 are immaterial.

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 dmepany was due $43,450 and $0, respectively, &@tellus
Capital related party for reimbursement of expemséd for by the Company that were the respongjtilf Stellus Capital. The
amount due to the Company is included in the Stat¢rof Assets and Liabilities.

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 timepany owed its independent directors $96,000629¢152,
respectively, in total for unpaid director fees.

As agreed to in the Amended and Restated Side Agmeemade and entered into as of November 12, BQEhd between
Stellus Capital and Raymond James & Associates aimt Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated,|IBteCapital has
agreed to pay on behalf of the Company, 2.41%eB6# underwriters sales load, or $3,320,280 i, tmtaonnection with the
Offering. Of this amount, $1,940,280 was paid orvéober 14, 2012, $460,000 was paid on March 253,28460,000 was
paid on June 28, 2013 and the remaining $460,080pa& on September 25, 2013.

We received exemptive relief from the SEC to ccestwith investment funds managed by Stellus Chlgitamagement
(other than the D. E. Shaw group funds, as defiredow) where doing so is consistent with our inresit strategy as well as
applicable law (including the terms and conditiohshe exemptive order issued by the SEC). Undetdéims of the relief
permitting us to co-invest with other funds manabgdtellus Capital Management, a “required majbiias defined in
Section 57(0) of the 1940 Act) of our independeargalors must make certain conclusions in connactiith a co-investment
transaction, including (1) the terms of the progbsansaction, including the consideration to biel pare reasonable and fair to
us and our stockholders and do not involve ovehiagocof us or our stockholders on the part of aegspn concerned and (2)
the transaction is consistent with the interestsurfstockholders and is consistent with our inwestt objectives and strategies.
We intend to co-invest, subject to the conditior@duded in the exemptive order we received fromSE€E, with a private credit
fund managed by Stellus Capital
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NOTE 2 — RELATED PARTY ARRANGEMENTS - (continued)

Management that has an investment strategy thdemical to our investment strategy. We beliewa guch co-investments
may afford us additional investment opportunitied an ability to achieve greater diversification.

License Agreement

We have entered into a license agreement withuSt€hpital Management under which Stellus Capitahdfement has
agreed to grant us a non-exclusive, royalty-freerise to use the name “Stellus Capital.” Underabieement, we have a right
to use the “Stellus Capital” name for so long adl@& Capital Management or one of its affiliatesiains our investment
adviser. Other than with respect to this limitexbtise, we have no legal right to the “Stellus Gédipitame. This license
agreement will remain in effect for so long asitheestment advisory agreement with Stellus Capitahagement is in effect.

Administration Agreement

The Company entered into an administration agreemigin Stellus Capital Management pursuant to wiStdllus Capital
Management will furnish the Company with officeifdies and equipment and will provide the Compavith the clerical,
bookkeeping, recordkeeping and other administra@reices necessary to conduct day-to-day opegatidmder this
administration agreement, Stellus Capital Managéméhperform, or oversee the performance ofréquired administrative
services, which includes, among other things, bedsgonsible for the financial records which itaguired to maintain and
preparing reports to its stockholders and repdgd fvith the SEC. For the year ended DecembeRB13 and the period from
Inception (May 18, 2012) through December 31, 20E2e were $443,632 and $62,716 of such costsretumder the
Administration Agreement, respectively.

Indemnifications

The investment advisory agreement provides thagrawillful misfeasance, bad faith or gross neglice in the
performance of its duties or by reason of the eskdisregard of its duties and obligations uneirvestment advisory
agreement, Stellus Capital Management and itsesffjananagers, partners, agents, employees, domgneérsons and
members, and any other person or entity affiliatét it, are entitled to indemnification from the@pany for any damages,
liabilities, costs and expenses (including reastmatiorneys’ fees and amounts reasonably paidtttement) arising from the
rendering of Stellus Capital Management's servigeger the investment advisory agreement or otheragsour investment
adviser.

NOTE 3 — DISTRIBUTIONS

The Company intends to continue to declare and makehly distributions of available net investmarntome to its
stockholders. The distribution frequency was chdrfgem quarterly to monthly subsequent to year @ee Note 12). The
Company intends to distribute net realized gaina ( net capital gains in excess of net capital Igsseany, at least annually.
The stockholder distributions, if any, will be deténed by the board of directors. Any distributikonstockholders will be
declared out of assets legally available for disition.

89




TABLE OF CONTENTS

STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

NOTE 3 — DISTRIBUTIONS - (continued)

The following table reflects the Company’s dividsrakclared during 2013 and paid or to be paidsoodinmon stock:

Amount Per
Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Share
March 7, 2013 March 21, 2013 March 28, 2013 $ 0.34
June 7, 2013 June 21, 2013 June 28,2013 % 0.34

September 27,

August 21, 2013 September 5, 20! 2013 $ 0.34
November 22, 201 December 9, 201 December 23,20. $ 0.34
December 27, 2013 January 15, 201: January 24, 201: $ 0.06¢

Unless the stockholder elects to receive its tistions in cash, the Company intends to make sisthibditions in
additional shares of the Company’s common stocleutite Company’s dividend reinvestment plan. Algitodistributions
paid in the form of additional shares of the Conyaoeommon stock will generally be subject to U&leral, state and locall
taxes in the same manner as cash distributionssfiaxs participating in the Company’s dividend vestment plan will not
receive any corresponding cash distributions witlicty to pay any such applicable taxes. If a stolddroholds shares of the
Company’s common stock in the name of a brokeimantial intermediary, the stockholder should consaich broker or
financial intermediary regarding their electiorrézeive distributions in cash in lieu of shareshef Company’s common stock.
Any distributions reinvested through the issuanicghares through the Company’s dividend reinvestrpkm will increase the
Company’s gross assets on which the base managéeeemtd the incentive fee are determined andtpdidellus Capital. Of
the total distributions of $16,399,402 made to shalders through December 31, 2013, $15,499,438weake in cash and the
remainder in shares.

NOTE 4 — PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE

In accordance with the authoritative guidance anv@ue measurements and disclosures under GAMPCbmpany
discloses the fair value of its investments inexdnichy that prioritizes the inputs to valuatiochteiques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest prioritybt@adjusted quoted prices in active markets fortideahassets or liabilities
(Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priorityrtolservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Theaggiel establishes three
levels of the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices in activeketr that are accessible at the measurement datiefdical,
unrestricted assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — Quoted prices in markets that arecooisidered to be active or financial instrumentsafbich significant
inputs are observable, either directly or indingctl

Level 3 — Prices or valuations that require iispthat are both significant to the fair value meament and
unobservable.

The level of an asset or liability within the fa@mlue hierarchy is based on the lowest level ofiapyt that is significant to
the fair value measurement. However, the determoimatf what constitutes “observable” requires digant judgment by
management.

The Company considers whether the volume and Evattivity for the asset or liability have sigmidintly decreased and
identifies transactions that are not orderly iredatining fair value. Accordingly, if the Companytelamines that either the
volume and/or level of activity for an asset oblidy has significantly decreased (from normal ditions for that asset or
liability) or price quotations or observable inpate not associated with orderly transactions giased analysis and
management judgment will be required to estimatevidue. Valuation techniques such as an inconpeageh might be
appropriate to supplement or replace a market agprin those circumstances.
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NOTE 4 — PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE - (c ontinued)

At December 31, 2013, the Company had investmar2$ iportfolio companies. The total cost and faiue of the

investments were $277,004,466 and $277,504,51pectsely. The composition of our investments aBefember 31, 2013 is
as follows:

Cost Fair Value
Senior Secured — First Lien $ 48,341,12 $ 48,745,76
Senior Secured — Second Lien 117,166,00 118,171,72
Unsecured Debt 107,318,51 106,219,59
Equity 4,178,82 4,367,42,
Total Investments $277,004,46 $ 277,504,51

At December 31, 2012, the Company had investmeari$ iportfolio companies. The total cost and faiue of the

investments were $195,455,671 and $195,451,256ec#sely. The composition of our investments aBefember 31, 2012 is
as follows:

Cost Fair Value
Senior Secured — First Lien $ 44,01421 $ 44,014,21
Senior Secured — Second Lien 38,597,29 38,597,62
Unsecured Debt 111,129,87 111,125,13
Equity 1,714,28 1,714,28
Total Investments $195,455,67 $ 195,451,25

The Company’s investment portfolio may contain k#mt are in the form of lines of credit or revnty credit facilities,
which require the Company to provide funding whequested by portfolio companies in accordance thighterms of the
underlying loan agreements. As of December 31, 20iB8December 31, 2012, the Company had threermmduzh
investments with aggregate unfunded commitmen$26f942,150 and $2,000,000, respectively. The Campzintains
sufficient liquidity to fund such unfunded loan camtments should the need arise.

The fair values of our investments disaggregatealtime three levels of the fair value hierarchydaagpon the lowest level
of significant input used in the valuation as ottBPmber 31, 2013 are as follows:

Quoted Pricesin  Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable

Securities Inputs Inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Senior Secured — First Lien $ — $ 12,104,67 $ 36,641,009 $ 48,745,76
Senior Secured — Second Lien — 21,084,27 97,087,45 118,171,72
Unsecured Debt — — 106,219,59 106,219,59
Equity — — 4,367,42. 4,367,42
Total Investments $ — $ 33,188,94 $244,315,56 $ 277,504,51
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NOTE 4 — PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE - (c ontinued)

The fair values of our investments disaggregatealtime three levels of the fair value hierarchydaagpon the lowest level
of significant input used in the valuation as ottBeber 31, 2012 are as follows:

Significant
Quoted Prices in Other Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Securities Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Senior Secured — First Lien $ — 9 — $ 44,01421 $ 44,014,221
Senior Secured — Second Lien — 12,120,00 26,477,62 38,597,62
Unsecured Debt — — 111,125,13 111,125,13
Equity — — 1,714,28 1,714,28
Total Investments $ — $ 12,120,000 $ 183,331,25 $ 195,451,25
The aggregate values of Level 3 portfolio investta@manged during the year ended December 31, 2@18s follows:
Senior Senior
Secured Loans — Secured Loans — Unsecured
First Lien Second Lien Debt Equity Total
Fair value at beginning of period  $ 44,014,21 $ 26,477,62 $111,125,13 $ 1,714,28( $183,331,25
Purchases of investments 25,858,52  104,999,97 20,158,73 2,464,54. 153,481,78
Sales and Redemptions (34,036,21) (25,253,12) (25,000,00) — (84,289,34)
Realized Gains 291,22: 203,12¢ 903,32: — 1,397,67!
Change in unrealized depreciation
included in earnings 317,65: 572,53¢ (1,094,17) 188,59! (15,39¢)
Accretion of discount 195,69! 87,32 126,57¢ — 409,59!
Transfer from Level 2 — — — —
Transfer to Level 2 —  (10,000,00) — — (10,000,00)
Fair value at end of period $36,641,09 $ 97,087,45 $106,219,59 $ 4,367,42. $244,315,56
Change in unrealized depreciation «
Level 3 investments still held as ¢
December 31, 2013 $ 31765: $ 572,53 $ (1,094,17) $ 188,59 $ (15,396

During the year ended December 31, 2013, thereowadransfer from Level 3 to Level 2 due to thedase in the
availability of significant observable inputs intdiemining the fair value of these investments.

Transfers are reflected at the value of the seearitt the beginning of the period.
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The aggregate values of Level 3 portfolio investta@manged during the period from Inception throDgleember 31, 2012
are as follows:

Senior Senior
Secured Loans — Secured Loans —  Unsecured
First Lien Second Lien Debt Equity Total
Fair value at beginning of period  $ — % — % — 3 — $ =
Purchases of investments 97,066,02 16,477,50 124,507,79 1,714,281 239,765,60
Sales and Redemptions (53,057,37) — (13,400,74) — (66,458,11)
Change in unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) included in
earnings — — (4,742 — (4,749
Accretion of discount 5,56% 122 22,82 — 28,50¢
Transfer from Level 2 — 10,000,00 — — 10,000,000
Transfer to Level 2 — — — — —
Fair value at end of period $44,014,21 $ 26,477,62 $111,125,13 $ 1,714,281 $183,331,25
Change in unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) on Level 3
investments still held as of
December 31, 2012 $ — $ — $ (4,749 $ — $ (4,744
The following is a summary of geographical concatittn of our investment portfolio as of Decembey 3113:
% of Total
Cost Fair Value Investments
New York $ 41,093,388 $ 39,601,59 14.27%
Colorado 36,412,35 37,108,66 13.3%
Minnesota 34,087,18 34,510,92 12.4%%
Massachusetts 32,305,89 32,305,89 11.6%%
Canada 27,917,64 28,215,79 10.1%%
Texas 17,973,04 18,200,00 6.5€%
Florida 16,910,42 16,910,42 6.0%
lllinois 14,008,78 14,115,23 5.0%
Indiana 11,169,11 11,169,11 4.02%
New Jerse! 10,176,67 10,176,67 3.67%
Pennsylvania 9,669,69! 9,738,00! 3.51%
Puerto Rico 8,700,32. 8,359,54. 3.01%
Missouri 7,925,24. 8,120,00! 2.9%%
Kentucky 4,659,65 4,888,37. 1.7¢%
Virginia 2,514,92. 2,584,27. 0.9%%
Georgia 1,480,11. 1,500,001 0.54%

$277,004,46 $277,504,51 100.0(%
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The following is a summary of geographical concatittn of our investment portfolio as of Decembey 3112:
% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments

Pennsylvania $ 33,708,95 $ 33,704,20 17.24%
Canada 20,778,45 20,778,45 10.62%
Colorado 19,532,63 19,532,63 9.9%%
Kentucky 17,095,64 17,095,64 8.75%
Florida 16,639,88 16,639,88 8.51%
South Carolina 15,000,00 15,000,00 7.67%
New York 13,000,00 13,000,00 6.65%
Texas 12,119,67 12,120,00 6.2(%
Massachusetts 10,000,00 10,000,00 5.12%
Utah 9,902,06: 9,902,06: 5.07%
New Jerse! 9,879,18 9,879,18 5.05%
Indiana 8,969,95! 8,969,95! 4.5%
Connecticut 7,351,60. 7,351,60. 3.7¢%
Georgia 1,477,62, 1,477,62, 0.77%
$195,455,67 $195,451,25 100.0(%

The following is a summary of industry concentrataf our investment portfolio as of December 31120
% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments
Software $ 48,570,69 $ 48,805,89 17.5%
Healthcare & Pharmaceuticals 35,707,71 35,874,46 12.9%
High Tech Industries 35,211,79 35,318,24 12.7%
Telecommunications 33,269,45 33,491,49 12.0%
Transportation: Cargo 17,883,75 18,181,90 6.55%
Beverage, Food, & Tobacco 16,689,79 17,000,00 6.15%
Services: Business 16,910,42 16,910,42 6.0%
Media: Broadasting & Subscription 13,339,96 13,532,50 4.88%
Finance 12,242,88 12,491,25 4.5(%
Services: Consumer 13,133,22 11,395,29 4.1(%
Retail 10,176,67 10,176,67 3.67%
Consumer Goods: Non-Durable 9,669,69! 9,738,00! 3.51%
Energy: Oil & Gas 9,538,73 9,700,001 3.4<%
Metals & Mining 4,659,65. 4,888,37. 1.7¢%

$277,004,46 $277,504,51 100.0(%
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The following is a summary of industry concentratif our investment portfolio as of December 31120):

% of Total

Cost Fair Value Investments

Consumer Goods: Non-Durable $ 33,708,95 $ 33,704,20 17.24%
Services: Business 31,117,50 31,117,50 15.9%
High Tech Industries 30,778,45 30,778,45 15.7"%
Health & Pharmaceuticals 26,884,23 26,884,23 13.7%%
Retail 19,781,25 19,781,25 10.12%
Media: Broadcasting & Subscription 15,000,00 15,000,00 7.67%
Automotive 12,345,64 12,345,64 6.32%
Telecommunications 12,119,67 12,120,00 6.2(%
Transportation: Cargo 8,969,95! 8,969,95! 4.5%
Metals & Mining 4,750,001 4,750,001 2.4%%
$195,455,67 $195,451,25 100.0%

(1) The Company has changed the industry classiitaf certain investments to conform to new irtdpslassifications
adopted as of December 31, 2013.

The following provides quantitative information altd.evel 3 fair value measurements as of DecembeP@13:

Description: Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range (Average)(l) ®
-1.58% to .46% (-
Income/Market HY credit spreads, .95%)
First lien debt $ 36,641,09 approacHz) Risk free rates .00% to .17% (.04%)
-1.41% to 1.40% (
Income/Market HY credit spreads, .68%)
Second lien debt $ 97,087,45 approach @ Risk free rates .04% to .81% (.21%)
-1.27% to 2.79% (
Income/Market HY credit spreads, 27%)
Unsecured debt $ 106,219,59 approach (@ Risk free rates -.42% t0 .62% (.19%)
Underwriting
Market approacl(14) multiple/EBITDA
Equity investments $ 4,367,442 Multiple 5x to 13x

Total Long Term
Level 3 Investments  $ 244,315,56

(1) Weighted average based on fair value as of Dbee 31, 2013.

(2) Inclusive of but not limited to the income apach (by discounting future cash flows using arrepate yield) and the
market approach (by ensuring sufficient enterpriee).

(3) The Company calculates the price of the loadibgounting future cash flows using an appropryaéd calculated as of the



valuation date. This yield is calculated basedhanldan’s yield at the original investment anddgiated as of the valuation
date based on: changes in comparable credit sp(gadBarclays high yield indexes), changes in risk free interates (pe
swap rates), and changes in credit quality (viestimated shadow rating). Significant movementniy of these factors
would result in a significantly lower (higher) faialue measurement. As an example, the “Range éye}t for first lien
debt instruments in the table above indicatesttieaithange in the HY spreads between the datenacloaed and the
valuation date ranged from -1.58% (158 basis ppints46% (46 basis points). The average of alhglea was -.95%.
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(4) The primary significant unobservable input usethe fair value measurement of the Company'&gqwestments is the
EBITDA multiple, or the Multiple. Significant inceses (decreases) in the Multiple in isolation woekllt in a significantl
higher (lower) fair value measurement. To deterniireeMultiple for the market approach, the Compemwsiders current
market trading and/or transaction multiple, poitf@ompany performance (financial ratios) relatiogoublic and private
peer companies and leverage levels, among othier§a€hanges in one or more of these factors aga a similar
directional change on other factors in determirthreyappropriate Multiple to use in the market applho

The following provides quantitative information altd.evel 3 fair value measurements as of DecembeP@12:

Description: Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range (Averagef(©)
-.22% to0 .00% (-
Income/Market HY credit spreads .15%)
First lien debt $ 44,014,21 approach (@ Risk free rates  -.03% to .12% (.0%)
-.49% 10 -.22% (-
Income/Market HY credit spreads .33%)
Second lien debt $ 26,477,62 approach? Risk free rates .00% to .04% (.0%)
-.31% t0 -.22% (-
Income/Market HY credit spreads .23%)
Unsecured debt $111,125,13 approach? Risk free rates .01% to .04% (.0:%)

Underwriting
multiple/EBITDA
Equity investments  $ 1,714,28  Market approacl® Multiple 5x to 13x

Total Long Term
Level 3 Investments $183,331,25

(1) Weighted average based on fair value as of mbee 31, 2012.

(2) Inclusive of but not limited to the income apach (by discounting future cash flows using arrapiate yield) and the
market approach (by ensuring sufficient enterpredee).

(3) The Company calculates the price of the loadibgounting future cash flows using an appropryédé calculated as of the
valuation date. This yield is calculated basedhanldan’s yield at the original investment anddgiated as of the valuation
date based on: changes in comparable credit sp(padBarclays high yield indexes), changes in risk free interates (pe
swap rates), and changes in credit quality (viestimated shadow rating). Significant movementniy of these factors
would result in a significantly lower (higher) faialue measurement. As an example, the “Range &yedt for first lien
debt instruments in the table above indicatesttteathange in the HY spreads and the risk fres tzéveen the date a loan
closed and the valuation date ranged from -.22%é22s points) to .00% (O basis points). The awedagll changes was -
.15%.

(4) The primary significant unobservable input usethe fair value measurement of the Company’stgguvestments is the
EBITDA multiple, or the Multiple. Significant incesses (decreases) in the Multiple in isolation waakllt in a significantl
higher (lower) fair value measurement. To deterntireeMultiple for the market approach, the Compeonsiders current
market trading and/or transaction multiple, poitf@ompany performance (financial ratios) relatiogoublic and private
peer companies and leverage levels, among othier§ac€hanges in one or more of these factors aga a similar
directional change on other factors in determirtiregyappropriate Multiple to use in the market appho
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NOTE 5 — EQUITY OFFERINGS AND RELATED EXPENSES

The Company issued 63,998 shares of common staakgdihe year ended December 31, 2013 in conneutitinthe
stockholder distribution reinvestment.

Number of Gross Sales Offering Offering
Issuance of Common Stock Shares Proceeds Load Expenses Price
March 28, 2013 15,24¢  $ 214,70t $ 14.0¢
June 28, 2018) 15,74’ 225,18 14.3(
September 27, 2013 16,20: 229,91 14.1¢
December 22, 2013 16,80( 230,16: 13.7¢

Total 63,99¢ $ 899,96

(1) Issued in connection with stockholder distribntreinvestment.

The Company issued 12,035,023 shares of commok dtoing the period from Inception through Decemb®r2012. The
proceeds raised, the related sales load, the mffeskpenses and the prices at which these sharesssaed are as follows:

Number of Gross Sales Offering Offering
Issuance of Common Stock Shares Proceeds Load Expenses Price
September 30, 2012 10C $ 500,01 $ — $ — $5,000.1(
October 25, 201 33,23¢ — — — —
November 2, 201?) 849,99¢ 12,749,99 — — 15.0C
November 7, 201©) 1,943,94: 29,159,14 — — 15.0C
835,50(
November 7, 201 9,200,001 138,000,00 4,959,72 @ 15.0C
December 28, 201%) 7,747 112,94t — — 14.5¢
Total 12,035,02 $ 180,522,09 $ 4,959,72 835,50(

(1) Stock dividend of 33,234 shares issued on @ut@b, 2012 to stockholders of record on Octobe2222. Results in
average price per share of $15.00.

(2) Issued in connection with the private placemmniNovember 2, 2012

(3) Issued in connection with the purchase andagleement with D.E. Shaw Direct Capital Portfgliod.C dated November
2, 2012.

(4) Includes $147,123 of offering expenses thaeveacrued on December 31, 2012.
(5) Issued in connection with stockholder distribntreinvestment.
NOTE 6 — NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS PERCOMMON SHARE

The following information sets forth the computatiof net increase (decrease) in net assets rag@ilim operations per
common share for the year ended December 31, 2013.

For the period



Year enaea (viay 18, £UlZ)
December 31, through December

2013 31,2012
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers. $17,54499 $ 1,298,42.
Average common shares 12,059,29 12,035,02
Basic and diluted earnings per common share $ 14 $ 0.11
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NOTE 7 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is currently not subject to any maltée@al proceedings, nor, to our knowledge, is araterial legal
proceeding threatened against us. From time to, tiveanay be a party to certain legal proceedindlerordinary course of
business, including proceedings relating to themeiment of our rights under contracts with outtfotio companies. While the
outcome of these legal proceedings cannot be pestigith certainty, we do not expect that thesepedings will have a
material effect upon our business, financial caadibr results of operations.

NOTE 8 — FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the period from
Inception (May 18,
Year ended 2012) through
December 31, 201 December 31, 2012

Per Share Data:V

Net asset value at beginning of year/pe $ 1448  $ 15.0¢
Net investment incom 1.32 0.11
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) 0.0z (0.07)
Realized gain 0.0¢ —
Total from investment operations 1.4F 0.1C
Reinvestments of stockholder distributions — 0.01
Sales load — (0.47)
Offering costs — (0.07)
Stockholder distributions (1.36) (0.18¢)
Net asset value at end of year/pel $ 145  $ 14.4¢
Per share market value at end of year/period $ 1498  $ 16.3¢
Total return based on market valée 0.42% 10.48%
Total return based on change in net asset V@lue 10.3%% (0.79%
Weighted average shares outstanding at end ofcperio 12,059,29 12,035,02
Ratio/Supplemental Data:

Net assets at end of year/per $175,891,51  $173,845,95
Average net assefd $175,398,66  $173,845,95
Annualized ratio of gross operating expenses t@gsets®) 8.65% 5.4<%
Annualized ratio of net operating expenses to ase> 7.62% 5.5(%
Annualized ratio of net investment income to nesessé®) 9.1%% 4.9%%
Portfolio Turnover? 41% 35%

(1) Financial highlights are based on weighted ayershares outstanding as of year/period ended.

(2) Total return on market value is based on thengk in market price per share since the end géribe quarter and includes
dividends paid. The total returns are not annudlize



(3) Financial highlights for periods of less than oearyare annualized and the ratios of operatingresqseto average net ass
net investment income to average net assets agdétdirn based on change in net asset value arstad accordingly.

(4) Calculated as payoffs divided by average pbetfealance and is not annualized.

(5) Total return on net asset value is based ogtihage in net asset value per share since thefehd prior year and includes
dividends paid. The total returns are not annudlize
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NOTE 9 — CREDIT FACILITY

On November 7, 2012, the Company entered into @lvieg credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) withvarious lenders.
SunTrust Bank is one of the lenders and servedraistrative agent under the Credit Facility. Tredit Facility originally
provided for borrowings in an aggregate amountoult15,000,000 on a committed basis and an aceofdican additional
$35,000,000 for a total facility size of $150,0@M00n July 30, 2013, the Company partially exextithe accordion feature
under its Credit Facility and received additionatenitments from the existing bank group in the amai $20,000,000 which
increased the total commitment to $135,000,000 wtidefacility. The exercise of the remaining ackon will require
sufficient borrowing base and additional commitnsendm the existing lender group and/or new lenders

The Company’s obligations to the lenders are selchiyea first priority security interest in its pfmfio of securities and
cash, but excluding short term investments. Theli€Facility contains certain affirmative and negatcovenants, including
but not limited to: (i) maintaining a minimum liglity test of at least 85% of adjusted borrowingehd#) maintaining an asset
coverage ratio of at least 2.0 to 1.0, and (iiiymte@ning a minimum shareholder’s equity. As of Betber 31, 2013, the
Company was in compliance with these covenants.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interasihject to the Company’s election, on a per anhasis equal to (i)
LIBOR plus 3.00% with no LIBOR floor or (ii) 2.00%lus an alternate base rate based on the hightst &rime Rate, Federal
Funds Rate plus 0.5% or one month LIBOR plus 1.08&. Company pays unused commitment fees of 0.50%rpaum on the
unused lender commitments under the Credit Faclhtgrest is payable quarterly in arrears. Any ants borrowed under the
Credit Facility will mature, and all accrued andpai interest thereunder will be due and payaliidNovember 12, 2016.

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,,800M00 and $38,000,000 was outstanding undeCitbeit Facility,
respectively. The carrying amount of the amounstauiding under the Credit Facility approximategaisvalue. From
Inception to December 31, 2012, the Company induccests of $2,015,415 in connection with obtairtimg Credit Facility,
which the Company has recorded as prepaid loantstaufees on its statement of assets and liaslaind is amortizing these
fees over the life of the Credit Facility. Durirtgetyear ended December 31, 2013, the Company attuoosts of $113,384 in
connection with the $20,000,000 commitment increAseof December 31, 2013 and December 31, 20188%1405 and
$1,947,820 of such prepaid loan structure feesykaitb be amortized, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 the effeirtteeest rate under the Credit Facility was apprately 3.3%
(approximately 3.7% including commitment fees oa timused portion of the Credit Facility). Intensgpaid quarterly in
arrears. The Company recorded interest and feensepef $3,123,701 for the year ended December@®13,2f which
$2,276,571 was interest expense, $518,106 was iaatarh of loan fees paid on the Credit Facilit279,042 related to
commitment fees on the unused portion of the Ciealiflity, and $49,982 related to loan administratiees. The Company
paid $2,377,282 in interest expense and unused domemt fees for the year ended December 31, 2048 .average
borrowings under the Credit Facility for the yeaded December 31, 2013 were $68,449,315.

For the period from Inception (May 18, 2012) thrbudecember 31, 2012 the effective interest rateutite Credit Facility
was approximately 3.6% (approximately 5.4%) inahgdcommitment fees on the unused portion of thei€CFacility). The
Company recorded interest and fee expense of $28206 the period ended December 31, 2012, of wiiP,864 was
interest expense, $61,264 related to commitmestdeghe unused portion of the Credit Facility 48,501 related to other
loan fees. The average borrowings under the Credillity for the period ended December 31, 2012ev#4,979,592.
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NOTE 10 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDI TED)

The following table sets forth the results of opierss for the year ended December 31, 2013 anthéoperiod Inception
through December 31, 2012. Results for any quartenot necessarily indicative of results for thiéyear or for any future
quarter.

2013
Qtr. 1 Qtr. 2 Qtr. 3 Qtr. 4

Total Invesment Income (Loss) $ 644644 $ 7,341,227 $ 791763 $ 7,69543
Net Investment Income (Los $ 3,687,388 $ 3,972,65¢ $ 4,133,99' $ 4,217,69
Net Increase in Net Assets frc

Operations $ 553211 $ 447759 $ 382542 $  3,709,86.
Total Investment Income (Loss) per she

@ $ 05/ $ 061 $ 0.6 $ 0.64
Net Investment Income (Loss) per sh)  $ 031 $ 03 $ 032 $ 0.3t
Net Increase in Net Assets frc

Operations per shaf® $ 0.4¢ $ 037 $ 03z $ 0.3C

2012
Qtr. 1 Qtr. 2 Qtr. 3 Qtr. 4@

Total Invesment Income (Loss) nle $ (126,629 $ (264,99) $ 3,696,43
Net Investment Income (Los nle $ (126,629 $ (264,99) $ 1,304,35
Net Increase in Net Assets frc

Operations nle $ (126,629 $ (264,99) $ 1,298,442
Total Investment Income (Loss) per she

@ n/e ne $ (2650 $ 0.3C
Net Investment Income (Loss) per sh(®) nle ne $ (2650 $ 0.11
Net Increase in Net Assets frc

Operations per shaf® n/e ne $ (2650 $ 0.11

(1) Per share amounts are calculated using weightexhge shares outstanding during the period.
(2) For the period from Inception through Decembkr2012.

NOTE 11 — INCOME TAXES

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 tlmpany had $945,186 and $0, respectively, of trilolised
ordinary income® Undistributed capital gains were $0 for the periedded December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. Al
of the undistributed ordinary income as of Decen8ier2013 will have been distributed within theuiegd period of time such
that the Company will not have to pay corporatesléy.S. federal income tax for the year ended Ddear31, 2013. We will
be subject to a 4% nondeductible U.S. federal exteis on our undistributed income to the extenthidenot distribute an
amount equal to at least 98% of our net ordinacygiime plus 98.2% of our capital gain net incomelattable to the period. The
Company has accrued approximately $24,000 anch$0.S. federal excise tax for the years ended Dbeef3il, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, respectively.

Ordinary dividend distributions from a RIC do naiadjfy for the reduced maximum tax rate on quatifédvidend income



from domestic corporations, except to the exteat the RIC received the income in the
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NOTE 11 — INCOME TAXES — (continued)

form of qualifying dividends from domestic corpacais and qualified foreign corporations. The taareteter@ of distributions
paid in the years ended December 31, 2013 and ®@%2s follows:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Ordinary income $ 16,399,40 $ 2,179,34:

Qualified dividends — —

Distributions of long-term capital gains — —
Total distributions accrued or paid to common

stockholders $ 16,399,40 $ 2,179,34

(1) The Company'’s taxable income for each periaghigstimate and will not be finally determinediluhie Company files its
tax return for each year. Therefore, final taxabt®me earned in each period, and the undistribotdithary income and
capital gains for each period carried forward fistribution in the following period, may be differethan this estimate.

(2) The character of the Company'’s distributiondégermined annually, based upon its taxable incmmtie full year and
based upon distributions made for the full yeadetermination of the character of distributions mad an interim basis
may not be representative of the final determimeliased upon taxable income computed for the &aly

The aggregate gross unrealized appreciation anedagion, the net unrealized appreciation, andatigregate cost of the
Company’s portfolio company securities for fedénabme tax purposes as of December 31, 2013 ar\®8fe as follows:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Aggregate cost of portfolio securities for federal

income tax purposes $ 277,504,51 $ 195,455,67
Gross unrealized appreciation of portfolio compan

securities 2,585,42! 32¢
Gross unrealized depreciation of portfolio compan

securities (2,085,48) (6,267)
Net unrealized appreciation of portfolio comps

securities $ 499,94. $ (5,937)

NOTE 12 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Investment Portfolio

On January 30, 2014, we made a $6.5 million investrin the unsecured term loan of SKOPOS. We algesited $0.7
million in the company’s equity.

On January 31, 2014, we made a $6.1 million investrin the first lien term loan of T2 Systems.
On January 31, 2014, we made a $2.5 million investrin the second lien term loan of Vandelay Indesst

On January 31, 2014, we received full repaymerdwrsecond lien loan to Ascend Learning at parltiegun total
proceeds of $10.0 million.

On February 25, 2014, we realized our second tian bf Transaction Network Services (TNS) at 10&shilting in total
proceeds of $2.6 million.

On February 28, 2014, we realized $3.0 million of $8.0 million investment in the second lien tdo@n of
Telecommunications Management, LLC. at 101.5 rawgplh total proceeds of $3.0 million.
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NOTE 12 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - (continued)

On February 28, 2014, we realized our second tian to Aderant North America, Inc. at 101.5 resgliin total proceeds
of $1.5 million.

Credit Facility

The outstanding balance under the Credit FaciitpfaMarch 4, 2014 was $104.0 million due to nesenents subsequent
to December 31, 2013.

Dividend Declared

On January 21, 2014, the Company announced thaisitthanging the frequency of its dividend paymenshareholders
from quarterly to monthly. On January 20, 2014,Gmanpany’s board of directors declared a regulantiiy dividend for each
of January 2014, February 2014 and March 2014 |ksv®i

Amount
Declared Ex-Dividend Date Record Date Payment Date per Share
1/20/2014 1/29/201- 1/31/201- 2/14/201- $ 0.113¢
1/20/2014 2/26/201- 2/28/201- 3/14/201. $ 0.113¢
1/20/2014 3/27/201. 3/31/201- 4/15/201: $ 0.113¢

Asset Quality

Subsequent to year end we placed one loan on roastatus, which represents approximately 4.7#eloan portfolio
at cost and 4.1% based on valuation as of Decef81he&2013.
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Indeperdt Registered Public Accounting Firm on Accountingand
Financial Disclosure

None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures.
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedwwre

As of December 31, 2013 (the end of the period ey this report), we, including our Chief ExacatOfficer and Chief
Financial Officer, evaluated the effectivenesshef design and operation of our disclosure conttntsprocedures (as defined
in Rule 13a-15(e) of the 1934 Act). Based on tatweation, our management, including our Chief Exme Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosuratcols and procedures were effective and provigadonable assurance that
information required to be disclosed in our pero8EC filings is recorded, processed, summarized-eported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, thiatlsuch information is accumulated and commueétt our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Bircial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely @&ns regarding required
disclosure. However, in evaluating the disclosunetiols and procedures, management recognize@yatontrols and
procedures, no matter how well designed and opraéa provide only reasonable assurance of acigetie desired control
objectives, and management necessarily was requairagply its judgment in evaluating the cost-b@nefationship of possible
controls and procedures.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Control Over f&ncial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financigla®ing as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f), and forf@ening an assessment of the effectiveness ofriaterontrol over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2013. Internal cordvelr financial reporting is a process designedbynder the supervision
of, our principal executive and principal finanoidficers, or persons performing similar functioasd effected by our Board of
Directors, management and other personnel, to geadasonable assurance regarding the reliabilfipancial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for extepoaposes in accordance with generally accepteduating principles. Our
internal control over financial reporting includé®se policies and procedures that (i) pertaiméonbaintenance of records that
in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reftbet transactions and dispositions of assets afdhgpany; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkstents in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, andrénagipts and expenditures are being made onlydordance with
authorizations; and (iii) provide reasonable assteaegarding prevention or timely detection ofutharized acquisition, use,
or disposition of our assets that could have a nzdteffect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d@étisstatements.
Therefore, even those systems determined to betigecan provide only reasonable assurance witheret to financial
statement preparation and presentation.

Management performed an assessment of the effaetigeof our internal control over financial repugtas of September
30, 2013 based upon the criteria set forth in trde€Control — Integrated Framework issued by then@ittee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSB3gsed on our assessment, management determinexuthaternal
control over financial reporting was effective dbecember 31, 2013.

(c) Report of the Independent Registered Public Agoting Firm

This annual report on Form 10-K does not includatestation report of our independent registerdudip accounting firm
regarding internal control over financial reportivge were not required to have, nor have we, ertjageindependent
registered public accounting firm to perform aniaatlinternal control over financial reporting puiant to the rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission that permib psdvide only management's report in this annejbrt on Form 10-K.
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(d) Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Repting

There have been no changes in our internal coowel financing reporting that occurred during therth fiscal quarter of
2013 that have materially affected, or are readgriidely to materially affect, our internal controver financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART Il

We will file a definitive Proxy Statement for oud24 Annual Meeting of Stockholders with the SEQspant to
Regulation 14A, not later than 120 days after the @& our fiscal year. Accordingly, certain infortizen required by Part 1l has
been omitted under General Instruction G(3) toameual report on Form 10-K. Only those sectionsusfdefinitive Proxy
Statement that specifically address the itemsas#t herein are incorporated by reference.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by Item 10 is hereby inmoated by reference from the Company’s definifvexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2014 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities andl&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfysgal year.

We have adopted a code of business conduct aras ¢ftat applies to our directors, officers and eygés. This code of
ethics is published on our websitenatw.stelluscapital.com . We intend to disclose any future amendmentsrtesaivers from,
this code of conduct within four business dayshefwaiver or amendment through a website posting.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is hereby immoated by reference from the Company’s definifvexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2014 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities andl&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfysgal year.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

The information required by Item 12 is hereby immoated by reference from the Company’s definifvexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2014 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities and&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfjsgal year.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 is hereby inpmoated by reference from the Company’s definifivexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2014 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities and&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfjsgal year.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is hereby inpmoated by reference from the Company’s definifivexy Statement
relating to the Company’s 2014 Annual Meeting afckholders, to be filed with the Securities andl&amge Commission
within 120 days following the end of the Comparfjsgal year.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

a. Documents Filed as Part of this Report

The following financial statements are set forthtém 8:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimgn 73
Statements of Assets and Liabilities as of DecerBtheP013 and December 31, 2012 74
Statements of Operations for the year ended Dece®ih@013 and the period from
Inception through December 31, 2012 75
Statements of Changes in Net Assets for the yadaceBecember 31, 2013 and the perio
from Inception through December 31, 2012 76
Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended Deae®ih@013 and the period from
Inception through December 31, 2013 77
Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 201Pacdmber 31, 2012 78
Notes to Financial Statemet 83
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b. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of thipoet or hereby incorporated by reference to exbipitviously filed with the
SEC:

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement (Incorporatedeference to Exhibit (a)(1) to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-B(Rb. 333184195), filed on October 23, 201

3.3 Bylaws (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (b){d}he Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form N-2 (File No. 333-184195), filed on October 2812).

4.1 Form of Stock Certificate (Incorporated by referete Exhibit (d) to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-184195), filedOctober 23, 2012).

4.2 Form of Indenture (Incorporated by reference toikixlid)(2) to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-189938, filaduhry 29, 2014).

10.1 Form of Investment Advisory Agreement between Regig and Stellus Capital Management, LLC

(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (g)(1) to Begistrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-2
(File No. 333-184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

10.2 Custodian Agreement between Registrant and Steget®ank and Trust Company (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit (j) to the Registrant’s Rémtion Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-
184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

10.3 Administration Agreement between Registrant andu&t€apital Management, LLC (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit (k)(1) to the Registra@sgistration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-
184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

10.4 Dividend Reinvestment Plan (Incorporated by refeesto Exhibit (e) to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333195), filed on October 23, 2012).
10.5 Form of License Agreement between the RegistrathitSiallus Capital Management (Incorporated

by reference to Exhibit (k)(2) to the Registrafsgistration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-
184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

10.6 Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Regig and the directors (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit (k)(3) to the Registrant’s Rémtion Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-
184195), filed on October 23, 2012).

10.7 Form of Purchase Agreement between the Registbait,Shaw Direct Capital Portfolios, L.L.C.
and DC Funding SPV, L.L.C. (Incorporated by refeesto Exhibit (k)(4) to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333195), filed on November 7, 2012).

10.8 Form of Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreemembrgg the Registrant and SunTrust Bank
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (k)(5) to fRegistrant’s Registration Statement on Form N-2
(File No. 333-184195), filed on November 7, 2012).

10.9 Form of Guarantee and Security Agreement amongégistrant and SunTrust Bank (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit (k)(6) to the Registra@sgistration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-
184195), filed on November 7, 2012).

10.12 Form of Letter Agreement between the Registrari, Bhaw Direct Capital Portfolios, L.L.C. and
DC Funding SPV, L.L.C. (Incorporated by referene&xhibit (k)(9) to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333195), filed on November 7, 2012).

10.13 Commitment Increase Letter Agreement between RagistCadence Bank, N.A., State Street E
and Trust Company, Amegy Bank, N.A. and SunTrustkB@ncorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form @-#e No. 814-00971), filed on July 30, 2013).

11.1 Computation of Per Share Earnings (included imibtes to the audited financial statements
contained in this report).

14.1 Code of Ethics (Incorporated by reference to Exiif){1) to the Registrarg’Registration Stateme
on Form N-2 (File No. 333-184195), filed on Octo8&; 2012).
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21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant and jurisdictionnabrporation/organizations:
Stellus Capital SBIC, LP — Delaware
SKP Blocker I, Inc. — Delaware
ERC Blocker, Inc. — Delaware

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pguant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley AOOR2.

*  Filed herewith.

c. Financial statement schedules

No financial statement schedules are filed herelgttause (1) such schedules are not required thé2hformation has
been presented in the aforementioned financiatrsiants.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usigeed, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 6, 2014

STELLUS CAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION

/s/ Robert T. Ladd

Robert T. Ladd
Chief Executive Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in theagpand on the dates indicated.

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

March 6, 2014

March 6, 2014

March 6, 2014

March 6, 2014

March 6, 2014

March 6, 2014

March 6, 2014

March 6, 2014

/s/ Robert T. Ladd

Robert T. Ladd
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board of Directors

/s/ W. Todd Huskinson

W. Todd Huskinson
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Compliance Officer
and Secretary
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)

/s/ Dean D’Angelo

Dean D’Angelo
Director

/s/ Joshua T. Davis

Joshua T. Davis
Director

/s/ J. Tim Arnoult

J. Tim Arnoult
Director

/sl Bruce R. Bilger

Bruce R. Bilger
Director

/sl Paul Keglevic

Paul Keglevic
Director

/s! William C. Repko

William C. Repko
Director
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Exhibit 31.1

I, Robert T. Ladd, Chief Executive Officer of StedICapital Investment Corporation certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 16f6tellus Capital Investment Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or eonditate a material

fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvwesits made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tbport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, issaf operations and cash flows of the registesnof, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}jLl&nd internal control over financial reportifas defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for iagistrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiarinéion relating to the registrant, including itmeolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being prepared,;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disesantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation;

(c) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial
reporting; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial
reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaéses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesvmanagement or other employees who have a samiifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Dated this 6"day of March 2014.

By's/ Robert T. Ladd

Robert T. Ladd
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

I, W. Todd Huskinson, Chief Financial Officer ofeBuis Capital Investment Corporation certify that:

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 16f6tellus Capital Investment Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or eonditate a material

fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvwesits made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tbport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, issaf operations and cash flows of the registesnof, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)15¢r the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedoitge designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiarinéion relating to the registrant, including itmeolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being prepared,;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disesantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation;

(c) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an amaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial
reporting; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reporting thatomed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial
reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaéses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesvmanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Dated this 6"day of March 2014.

By's/ W. Todd Huskinson

W. Todd Huskinson
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (183JC. 1350)

In connection with this Annual Report on Form 1@tKe “Report”) of Stellus Capital Investment Corgion (the
“Registrant”), as filed with the Securities and Bange Commission on the date hereof, |, Roberiadd| the Chief Executive
Officer of the Registrant, hereby certify, to thesbof my knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of
operations of the Registrant.

/s/ Robert T. Ladd

Name: RobertT. Ladd
Date: March 6, 2014




Exhibit 32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (183JC. 1350)

In connection with this Annual Report on Form 1(tKe “Report”) of Stellus Capital Investment Corgion (the
“Registrant”), as filed with the Securities and Bange Commission on the date hereof, I, W. Toddkldgen, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Registrant, hereby certify the best of my knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of
operations of the Registrant.

/sl W. Todd Huskinson

Name: W. Todd Huskinson
Date: March 6, 2014




